

# **EXCURSION HANDBOOK**

Prepared & Updated By: Health/Physical Education/Outdoor Education Departments November 2018

#### **REPORT APPENDIX B**

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Health, Physical and Outdoor Education Department expresses its gratitude to the following for their work in the preparation of this guide and is appreciative of the advice and suggestions made by many supervisory officers.

Dan Koenig, Superintendent, Curriculum & Accountability Team Nick Biagini, Program Coordinator, Health/Physical/Outdoor Education Patrick Keyes, Superintendent of Education, Student Success Ed Cooling, Retired Teacher, Health/Physical/Outdoor Education Department Agatha Veszeli, Resource Teacher, Health/Physical/Outdoor Education Department Robert Kelly, Resource Teacher, Health/Physical/Outdoor Education Department Nelli Domingues, Resource Teacher, Health/Physical/Outdoor Education Department John Gardiner, Manager, Risk Management Marco Iorfida, Transportation Planning Officer Alex Mazzucco, Program Coordinator, Con/Ed/International Ed. Stefan Barrans, Coordinator, Con/Ed/International Ed. David Pagniello, Outdoor Education Resource Teacher

In order to improve this resource document, classroom teachers, resource teachers, curriculum facilitators, vice-principals, principals and parents are encouraged to forward comments and suggestions to the Physical/Health/Outdoor Education Department.

Published April, 2007 (Last edited March 2019) For more information or copies of this document please refer to the TCDSB Intranet (For staff) (Supersedes the former TCDSB document titled "Toronto Catholic District School Board Excursion Handbook" September, 2002)

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### Page

- 1 Toronto Catholic District School Board Mission Statement
- 2 Vision Statements
- 3-5 Forward
- 6-10 SECTION 1 TCDSB Excursion Approval & Document Definitions
  - 1.1 Excursion Approval Required for all Excursions (6)
  - 1.2 If Excursion Approval Not Obtained (6)
  - 1.3 Definitions (6-10)
    - (a) Policy
    - (b) Regulations
    - (c) Administrative Procedures
    - (d) Educational Purpose
    - (e) Certified Teacher
    - (f) Occasional Teacher
    - (g) School Excursion
    - (h) Volunteer Driver
    - (i) Student Driver
    - (j) Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange (OSBIE)
    - (k) Ontario Physical Health Education Association (OPHEA)
    - (I) Occupational Health and Safety Act
    - (m) Ontario Highway Traffic Act
    - (n) School Excursion Handbook
    - (o) Private Trips
    - (p) Volunteer
    - (q) Supervisor
- 11-17 SECTION 2 TCDSB Policy and Regulations Regarding School Excursions
- 18 SECTION 3 Activities on School Excursions
  - 3.1 OPHEA Safety Guidelines (18)
  - 3.2 Activities Not Covered in the OPHEA Safety Guidelines (18)
  - 3.3 Areas Where No Travel is Allowed (18)
- 19-34 SECTION 4 Procedures for Taking Students on Excursions
  - 4.1 Definition of Excursion (19)
  - 4.2 All Excursions Require Approval (19)
  - 4.3 Curricular Relevance of Excursions (19-20)
  - 4.4 Co-Instructional Excursions (20)
  - 4.5 Signing Contracts for Excursions (20)
  - 4.6 Signing Waivers, Elements of Risk Notice (21)

- 4.7 Excursion Types and who Grants Approval Chart (22)
- 4.8 Non-Sanctioned Excursions (23)
- 4.9 All Excursions Supervised by a Certified Teacher (23)
- 4.10 Types of Excursions (23-24)
  - (a) Use of Local Sites
  - (b) Supplementary Programs Offered at a Different Location
  - (c) One-Day Trips within Canada
  - (d) Co-Instructional Excursions
  - (e) Overnight Excursions within Canada
  - (f) Trips/Excursions Outside of Canada
- 4.11 Principal's Responsibilities for Overnight School Excursions: Within Canada (25-26)
- 4.12 Principal's Responsibilities for International Excursions (26)
- 4.13 Staff Meeting Required for Excursion Handbook Review (27)
- 4.14 Teacher-in-charge of Excursion (27)
- 4.15 Planned Outline of Excursion Required (27)
- 4.16 Consumption of Alcohol by TCDSB Staff on Excursions Prohibited (27)
- 4.17 Supervision Requirements (28-9)
  - (a) Number of Adult Supervisors for Excursions within Canada
  - (b) Number of Adult Supervisors for International Excursions
  - (c) "Buddy System" Required
- 4.18 Requirements for Adult Volunteers for Excursions (29)
- 4.19 Inclusion of Students Unable to Pay for Trip (30)
- 4.20 Students Remaining at School (30)
- 4.21 Sunday Eucharist (30)
- 4.22 Students Billeted in Homes in Other Locations (30)
- 4.23 Christmas Break or March Break Trips (30)
- 4.24 Statement of Disclosure (31)
- 4.25 Chart of Excursion Type and Steps Required What I have to do! (31-34)

#### 35-41 SECTION 5 Descriptions of Excursion Forms

- 5.1 Chart of Excursion Type and Permission Form Required (35-6)
- 5.2 School Excursion Approval Application Form Overnight Trips (37)
- 5.3 Principal's Checklist (37)
- 5.4 Teacher's Checklist (37)
- 5.5 Standard TCDSB Parent/Guardian Permission Forms (38)
  - (a) Parent/Guardian Permission Form for Local and

Regular Use Sites – Annual Use Form

- (b) Parent/Guardian Permission Form All Excursions
- 5.6 Student Participation Form for Water Related Activities (38)
- 5.7 Student Health and Safety Information Form (39)
- 5.8 Consent to Medical Treatment Form (39)
- 5.9 Volunteer Driver Authorization to Transport Students Form (40)
- 5.10 Transportation Form Ordering TTC Tickets (40)
- 5.11 Media Consent Form (40)
- 5.12 Emergency Action Plan for Injuries Form (40)
- 5.13 Emergency Action Plan for Transportation Form (41)
- 5.14 Emergency Action Plan for One-Day Excursion Form (41)
- 5.15 Bus Seating Plans (41)
- 5.16 OSBIE Informed Consent Form (41)
- 42-49 Section 6 Transportation
  - 6.1 Emergency Action Plan for Transportation (42)
  - 6.2 School Arranged Transportation (42)
  - 6.3 Renting Vehicles (43)
  - 6.4 Bus Seating Plan (44)
  - 6.5 Severe Weather or Poor Driving Conditions (44)
  - 6.6 Students Arranging Own Transportation (45)
    - (a) Elementary Students
    - (b) Secondary Students
  - 6.7 Volunteer Drivers (45-46)
  - 6.8 Written Approval of Vehicle Owner Required (47)
  - 6.9 Air Bags (47)
  - 6.10 Child Booster Seats and Restraints (47)
  - 6.11 Parents/Guardians Must be Advised Child(ren) Being Driven by Volunteer Driver (48)
  - 6.12 Students Driving Personal Vehicles (48)
  - 6.13 Private/Rented Aircraft (49)
  - 6.14 Commercial Aircraft (49)
  - 6.15 Flight Cancellation Insurance (49)
- 50-57 SECTION 7 Safety and Medical Requirements
  - 7.1 Introduction (50)
  - 7.2 <u>Physical Education: Ontario Safety Guidelines</u> (50)
  - 7.3 Emergency Action Plan for Injuries (51)

- 7.4 Travel Medical Insurance (51)
- 7.5 Vaccinations (51)
- 7.6 Student Health Card (51-2)
- 7.7 First Aid Training (52)
- 7.8 Students Requiring Special Care (52-3)
- 7.9 Use of Prescription Medication by TCDSB Students While on Excursions (53)
- 7.10 Use of Non-Prescription or Over-the-Counter Drugs by TCDSB Students While on Excursions (53)
- 7.11 Use of Illegal Drugs/Alcohol and/or Tobacco by TCDSB Students While on Excursions (54)
- 7.12 Fire Drill Evacuation Procedure (54)
- 7.13 Anaphylaxis The Life-Threatening Allergic Reaction (55-6)
- 7.14 Emergency Procedures for Students Without a Medical Diagnosis of Anaphylaxis and Prescribed Medication (57)

#### 58-61 SECTION 8 Excursions Involving Water Activities

- 8.1 Safety and Water Activities (58)
- 8.2 Ontario Physical Health Education Safety Guidelines (58)
- 8.3 Leaving Students Unsupervised is Forbidden (58)
- 8.4 Supervising Systems (59)
- 8.5 Students Involved in a Stream or Pond Study (59)
- 8.6 Water Parks (59)
- 8.7 Using Private Pools with Students Prohibited (59)
- 8.8 Quick Reference Chart Excursions to Amusement Parks and Other Excursions Involving Water Related Activities (60)
- 8.9 Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (61)
- 62-64 SECTION 9 School Swim Program
  - 9.1 Ontario Physical Health Education Safety Guidelines (62)
  - 9.2 Classroom Teacher's Role (62)
  - 9.2 Private Home Pools or Apartment/Condominium Pools Not Allowed for Swimming Lessons (62)
  - 9.3 Limits on Non-Swimmers (63)
  - 9.4 Students with Warts, Disease, Sores (63)
  - 9.5 Lifeguard Requirements during a Physical Education Class, Competition or School Swim Team Practice (63-64)
  - 9.6 Teacher Awareness of Emergency Procedures (64)
  - 9.7 Dialling 911 in Emergencies (64)

#### 65-67 SECTION 10 Activities Involving Watercraft

- 10.1 Responsibility for Safe Use of Watercraft (65)
- 10.2 Non-Swimmers Excluded from Watercraft Activities (65)
- 10.3 Safety Training (66)
- 10.4 Safety/Rescue Equipment (66)
- 10.5 Wearing of Approved Flotation Devices (66)
  - (a) Instruction (b) Travel (c) Exceptions
- 10.6 Passenger/Weight Limitations (66)
- 10.7 Rules for Canoe Tripping (67)
- 68-71 SECTION 11 Procedures for a Medical Emergency
  - 11.1 Emergency Action Plan for Injuries (68)
  - 11.1.1 Student Plan of Care (68)
  - 11.2 Student Health & Safety Forms, Health Card Numbers (68)
  - 11.3 Location of an Excursion (68)
  - 11.4 Neck Injury (69)
  - 11.5 Concussion Protocol (69)
  - 11.6 Call 911; No Ambulance Available (69)
  - 11.7 Students Not to be Sent Home Alone (69)
  - 11.8 Contact Principal (70)
  - 11.9 Advise Parents/Guardians (70)
  - 11.10 Parent/Guardian Responsibility (70)
  - 11.11 TCDSB Staff or Volunteer Injuries (70)
  - 11.12 Reporting Accidents and/or Serious Injuries (70-1)
  - 11.13 Dealing With the Media During Emergencies (71)
- 72-75 SECTION 12 Special Considerations for Principals
  - 12.1 Excursion Planning Approval (72)
  - 12.2 Relationship to Curriculum (72)
  - 12.3 The Institute for Catholic Education (ICE) Documents (72)
  - 12.4 Duration and Distance of Excursions (73)
  - 12.5 Cancellations (73)
  - 12.6 Sending Students Home (73)
  - 12.7 Teacher Experience and Maturity (73)
  - 12.8 Use of Parent/Guardian Volunteers on Excursions (73-4)
  - 12.9 Requirements for Adult Volunteers on Excursions (74-5)
  - 12.10 Planning for Behaviour Programme Students on Excursions (75)

#### 76-79 SECTION 13 Special Considerations for Teachers

- 13.1 Excursion Planning Approval (76)
- 13.2 The Institute for Catholic Education (ICE) Documents (76)
- 13.3 Pre-trip Visit (76)
- 13.4 Excursion Impact on Students (76)
- 13.5 Keeping Students Involved (77)
- 13.6 Pre-Trip/Post-Trip Activities (77)
- 13.7 Student Planning (77)
- 13.8 Lost Students (78)
- 13.9 Use of Drugs, Alcohol and Tobacco (78)
- 13.10 Use of Personal Vehicles on TCDSB Business (78)
- 13.11 List of Students and Emergency Contacts (78)
- 13.12 Student Identification (78)
- 13.13 Student Health Card (79)
- 13.14 Students Without Ontario Medical Coverage (79)
- 13.15 Planning for the Behaviour Programme Students on Excursions (79)
- 80-84 SECTION 14 Information Regarding Insurance, Liability and

Safekeeping of Funds

- 14.1 Reporting of a TCDSB Staff Injury (80)
- 14.2 Insurance Considerations (81-3)
  - a) Liability Insurance
  - b) Student Accident Insurance (SAI)
  - c) Travel Insurance
  - d) Trip Cancellation Insurance
  - e) Automobile Insurance
- 14.3 Financial Considerations (83)
- 14.4 Safekeeping of Funds (84)
- 14.5 Withdrawal of Permission (84)
- 85 SECTION 15 Special Considerations for Students
  - 15.1 Adherence to School's Code of Conduct
  - 15.2 Student Behavior on Excursions
  - 15.3 Responsibility for Damages or Costs for Being Sent Home
  - 15.4 Responsibility for Missed Work
- 86-87 SECTION 16 School Administrative Procedures
  - 16.1 Reproduction of Forms, Checklists (86)
  - 16.2 Appendix Materials A Summary of Appendix Items (86-7)

## APPENDICES

Appendix I TCDSB Planning Requirements for International Excursions (88-116)

Appendix II Considerations for Excursion Approval (Principal/Superintendent) (117-119)

Appendix III Charts (120-125)

- Chart for Excursion Type and Permission Form Required (121-2)
- Chart for Excursion Type and Steps Required What I have to do! (123-5)

Appendix IV TCDSB Excursion Forms (126-143)

- School Excursion Approval Application Form (127)
- Principal's Checklist (128)
- Teacher's Checklist (129)
- Parent/Guardian Permission Form Local and Regular Use Sites (130)
- Parent/Guardian Permission Form All Excursions (131-132)
- Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (133-134)
- Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (135-136)
- Consent to Medical Treatment (137)
- OSBIE Informed Consent Form (138)
- Volunteer Driver Authorization Form (139-140)
- Transportation Form Ordering TTC Tickets (141)
- Media Consent Form (142)
- Ontario School Boards Insurance Exchange Incident Report (143)

Appendix V Emergency Action Plans (EAP) (144-157)

- Introduction to Emergency Action Plans (145)
  - Emergency Action Plan for Injuries (146)
    - Blank form "Emergency Action Plan for Injuries" (147)
    - When an Injury Occurs (148-149)
- Emergency Action Plans for Transportation (150-151)
  - Blank form "Emergency Action Plan for Transportation"
     (152)
- Combined Emergency Action Plan (Transportation/Injury) for One Day Trips (153)
  - Blank form "Emergency Action Plans One Day Excursion" (Injuries and Transportation) (154)

- Blank School Bus Seating Plan for Grades K-5 (3 students per seat) (155)
- Blank School Bus Seating Plan (2 students per seat) (156)
- Blank Highway Coach Seating Plan (157)
- Appendix VI Suggestions for Volunteers on Excursions (158-160)
- Appendix VII The Institute For Catholic Education Documents (ICE) (161-168)
- Appendix VIII List of Transportation Suppliers (169)
- Appendix IX Graduated Licensing for Automobile Drivers (170-172)
- Appendix X Insurance Requirements for Transportation of Students (173-174)

## TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

## **MISSION STATEMENT**

The Toronto Catholic District School Board is an inclusive learning community uniting home, parish and school and rooted in the love of Christ. We educate students to grow in grace and knowledge to lead lives of faith, hope and charity.

## VISION AND CATHOLIC VALUES OF TCDSB

#### **Our Vision**

At Toronto Catholic we transform the world through witness, faith,

innovation and action.

#### **Our Catholic Values**

We believe...

- in the worth and dignity of every person
- in the critical role that our Catholic schools play in promoting Gospel values, social justice, environmental responsibility, human solidarity and the common good

- that high standards and expectations foster greater achievement that people thrive in a safe, healthy and compassionate environment grounded in respect for the diversity of every person, that teaching is responsive to individual needs
- that teaching and learning should be rooted in research and evidence
- that each of us shares responsibility for creating collaborative

communities of learning

• that equity, diversity, accessibility and inclusivity are integral to the

Catholic community

 that the 21st century competencies – collaboration, real world problem solving and innovation, knowledge construction, skilled communication, self-regulation and the use of information communication technology for learning, are essential.

The Toronto Catholic District School Board is an inclusive learning community rooted in the love of Christ. We educate students to grow in grace and knowledge and to lead lives of faith, hope and charity

## **ONTARIO CATHOLIC SCHOOL GRADUATE EXPECTATIONS**

The graduate is expected to be:

- A discerning believer
- An effective communicator
- A reflective, creative and holistic thinker
- A self-directed, responsible, lifelong learner
- A collaborative contributor
- A caring family member
- A responsible citizen

## FORWORD

## School excursions, including residential program experiences, which complement and enrich the school curriculum, are to be encouraged.

Over the years there has been a greater recognition of the importance of out-of-classroom experiences for students. School trips can expand and reinforce concepts learned in the classroom, provide for new and unique learning activities not available in the school, and make learning experiences more interesting and practical for students.

This excursion handbook has been prepared to provide for the safety of students and staff when they are participating in an excursion outside the classroom.

The hope is that through this document the TCDSB will ensure that pupils receive the optimum value from their excursions while keeping their safety foremost in the minds of participating supervisory school personnel.

Any excursion is to be considered as an extension of the school. Therefore all rules and regulations that apply in a school apply to an excursion, where applicable. (e.g. Code of Conduct, smoking, alcohol, drugs, weapons)

#### Limitations of The TCDSB Excursion Handbook

The TCDSB Excursion Handbook is designed to assist TCDSB staff seeking to enrich student learning. It is written for TCDSB staff in all grades from kindergarten through secondary school. It must be read with an understanding that all situations cannot be covered. For those situations not covered by this document, teachers, school principals and supervisory officers will have to make decisions based on TCDSB Regulations and policy.

#### Excursion or Activity Not Included in Handbook

If a particular excursion or activity is not included within the TCDSB Excursion Handbook or covered under the OPHEA <u>Physical</u> <u>Education: Ontario Safety Guidelines</u>, please contact the for Health/Physical/Outdoor Education department or your school superintendent for further information.

TCDSB defines an excursion as any event or activity which, for educational purposes, has students leaving school property. The following are items that govern school excursions:

- The excursion shall have an educational purpose with curricular relevance that is clearly identified by staff for students and their parents/guardians.
- The written consent of parents/guardians or students over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control shall be obtained for all excursions. Students over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control. Where the written consent cannot be obtained, the student shall be excluded from the excursion, unless the principal, having regard to all the circumstances, determines that it is appropriate to allow the student to participate.
- The principal shall make the decision to approve or not approve any excursion and participants, including those requiring additional approval from senior board officials.
- Student safety shall be the priority in the planning and implementation of all excursions.
- Every reasonable effort shall be made to ensure that all excursions are available and accessible to students with special needs.
- Every reasonable effort shall be made to ensure that the excursion is appropriate to the age, maturity, experience, health, skill, physical abilities and exceptionalities of the participants. As far as possible, the excursion shall be appropriate to the cultural backgrounds and experiences of all students.

- Excursion planning shall include careful consideration and preparation in relation to the following: funding, training, travel, supervision, risk management, contingency planning and evaluation.
- An appropriate and related program, including any assessments, shall be planned for all students who do not participate in the excursion. Conversely all students participating in an excursion shall be allowed to complete any assignments or assessments missed due to the excursion within a reasonable time after the excursion, without penalty.
- The principal shall ensure that a sufficient number of teachers and adult supervisors accompany students on all excursions, in accordance with the minimum supervision ratios outlined in this document
- Any vendor used in planning an overnight or international excursion must be selected from the TCDSB Approved Vendor List

## **SECTION 1**

## **TCDSB Excursion Approval & Document Definitions**

#### 1.1 Excursion Approval is required for all Excursions

All excursions require prior approval. This applies to any excursion which may take place on school days and/or weekends, and/or holidays and/or after school hours, pursuant to the procedures and requirements outlined in this document.

#### **1.2 If Excursion approval is not obtained**

If prior approval is not obtained, the TCDSB does not assume financial or other responsibility or liability for the excursion.

All TCDSB staff and/or volunteers who do not comply with the pre-approval process and requirements are not covered by the terms of the TCDSB general liability insurance, <u>The Workplace Safety and Insurance Act</u>, or student accident insurance policies. These are serious implications; teachers and principals are strongly advised to comply with these procedures.

#### 1.3 Definitions

#### (a) **Policy**

A policy is a statement adopted by the TCDSB to chart a course of action.

#### (b) **Regulations**

Regulations, also adopted by the TCDSB, are detailed rules to be observed when the corresponding policy is put into practice by administration.

#### (c) Administrative Procedures

These are the techniques employed to ensure that regulations are followed. Usually they consist of items such as meetings, permission forms, health forms, identification cards, checklists, emergency procedures and so on.

#### (d) Educational Purpose

The term "educational purpose" refers to any event or program that is intended to complement or meet curriculum expectations.

#### (e) **Certified Teacher**

The term **"certified teacher**" refers to any employee of TCDSB who falls within the term "teacher" as defined in the "Education Quality Improvement Act" and is a member in good standing of the Ontario College of Teachers.

#### (f) Occasional Teacher

A teacher is an occasional teacher if he or she is employed by a Board to teach as a substitute for a teacher or temporary teacher who is or was employed by the Board in a position that is part of its regular teaching staff including continuing education teachers.

- Casuals are occasional teachers hired on a day-by-day basis and are paid a daily rate.
- Long-term occasional teachers sign a contract with a Board for a determined period of time (12 or more school days in the same assignment) within the school year replacing a specific teacher and assuming his or her duties.

#### (g) School Excursion

An excursion is any TCDSB or school approved event or program which, for educational purposes, has students leaving school property. A certified teacher who is a member in good standing of the Ontario College of Teachers must supervise all excursions. Demonstrations and/or marches shall not be included or interpreted as excursions. Nonetheless, those activities in alignment with the TCDSB Multi Year Strategic Plan, and in particular, the strategic priority of *Living Our Values*, may be considered by the principal in consultation with the Area Superintendent. TCDSB excursions do not include private trips. **NOTE:** All excursions must be under the supervision of a certified teacher.

Excursions will include, but will not be limited to, the following:

i. the use of local sites;

ii. supplementary programs offered at a different location;

iii. co-instructional programs;

iv. one day trips within the Greater Toronto Area or beyond;

v. overnight excursions within Canada; and

vi. International trips.

#### (h) Volunteer Driver

"Volunteer driver" is defined as an individual, authorized by the principal, who has agreed to transport students using his/her own or another licensed automobile and who meets the requirements of the TCDSB, as outlined in Section 6.6, pages 45.

#### (i) Student Driver

**"Student driver"** is defined as an individual who is presently attending school and is under the age of 21.

#### (j) Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange (OSBIE)

The **Ontario School Boards' Insurance Exchange** is a school board owned, non-profit insurance program representing the school boards in Ontario. The primary goals of the Exchange are to insure member school boards against losses, and to promote safe school practices. The OSBIE website is: <u>www.osbie.on.ca</u>

#### (k) Ontario Physical Health and Safety Association (OPHEA)

OPHEA is a not-for-profit organization that champions healthy, active living in schools and communities through quality programs and services, partnerships and advocacy, and is led by the vision that all children and youth value and enjoy the lifelong benefits of healthy, active living. OPHEA Safety Guidelines <u>must</u> be followed when planning activities during all excursions.

#### (I) Occupational Health and Safety Act

This legislation intends to protect workers from risks and hazards in the workplace. It sets out duties for all workplace parties and rights for workers and establishes procedures for dealing with workplace hazards.

#### (m) Ontario Highway Traffic Act

This legislation applies to the provisional use of commercial and noncommercial motor vehicles on the roads and highways of Ontario, Canada. In the context of this policy, it references the transportation of students during excursions or sporting events.

#### (n) School Excursion Handbook

The TCDSB Excursion Handbook prescribes the operational procedures for all excursions offered at TCDSB, including administrative procedures for planning and supervising excursions, types of excursions, application

9

and permission forms, transportation requirements, emergency planning and insurance. Safety considerations for students involved in activities during an excursion are governed by the OPHEA Safety Guidelines.

#### (o) **Private Trips**

Private trips are those excursions that have not received TCDSB's approval, as set out in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook, and those trips for which the organizers have not applied for approval. They may involve staff and students of TCDSB. TCDSB will assume no liability whatsoever in connection with the organization, development or delivery of the excursion.

#### (p) Volunteer

A volunteer is an individual who gives of their time, for no remuneration, to assist school staff in carrying out his/her duties. The role and duties of the volunteer are determined by the principal. All volunteers who will be assisting students on a regular and/or an overnight excursion basis will be required to complete a Volunteer Registration Form and a Confidential Information and Communications Form as found in the <u>TCDSB Volunteer</u> <u>Manual</u> and shall be required by the Principal to submit a current Police Reference Check <u>before</u> the commencement of the assignment.

#### (q) Supervisor

A supervisor for an excursion is an individual who has been assigned specific duties and responsibilities related to the supervision, discipline and safety of the students on an excursion. In order for an individual to be classified as a supervisor on an excursion the person, and therefore included in the determination of the pupil-teacher-ratio, must either be an employee of TCDSB or a volunteer who has completed the requirements as outlined in the **TCDSB Volunteer Manual**.

10

## **SECTION 2**

## TCDSB Policy and Regulations Regarding School Excursions

The items found in this section are quoted directly from the TCDSB policy and regulation number S.E. 01.

Reading this section will provide one with an overview of statements dealing with school excursions. Explanation of the regulations, as well as forms and checklists that are necessary parts of the regulations follow in this document.

### **School Excursions**

#### **Policy:**

The Toronto Catholic District School Board believes that well planned educational excursions enhance the physical, emotional, social, spiritual and academic development of the student. Consistent with the TCDSB Multi Year Strategic Plan, the Ontario Curriculum and the Ontario Catholic School Graduate Expectations, all excursions occurring at the TCDSB that has students and staff members leaving the school facility will be for educational purposes. All excursions must follow the operational procedures outlined in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook.

#### **Regulations:**

- All excursions occurring at the Toronto Catholic District School Board that have students and staff members leaving the school facility will be for educational purposes aligned with the learning expectations of Ontario Curriculum and consistent with the Multi Year Strategic Plan.
- 2. The TCDSB Excursion Handbook of operational procedures will govern the respective aspects of this policy.

- 3. All excursions require the appropriate level of approval as prescribed in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook. The approval process will govern any contracts for services used in connection with the excursion.
- 4. The TCDSB Excursion Handbook will be reviewed annually to ensure compliance with legislation and TCDSB policies.
- 5. The TCDSB Excursion Handbook will contain the applicable administrative practices, rules and procedures which must be followed when dealing with school excursions.
- 6. All contracts will follow the process outlined in <u>F.P. 01 Purchasing Policy</u>. No teacher, principal or other employee has authority to sign any contracts that may bind or obligate TCDSB in any way, unless expressly delegated by the Director of Education; except for the person granting the approval. Approval of an excursion does not constitute a delegation of authority to sign agreements, contracts, and the like, that may be required to undertake an excursion.
- 7. Relevant information about the excursion will be provided to parents/guardians prior to obtaining permission for their child's participation. Permission forms found in or designed from directions given in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook must be used to secure the permission of parents/guardians.
- 8. For any overnight excursion, schools shall conduct at least one information meeting for parents/guardians. Exceptions to the requirement for an information meeting are secondary school retreats, TCDSB sponsored leadership programs and secondary school sport teams who have qualified for regional and provincial championships. In these instances, a notice to parents/guardians and signed parent/guardian approval may be considered in lieu of the required information meeting. (Refer to Section 4.11(c), page 26)

- 9. For overnight or international excursions, the principal will obtain the appropriate level of approval from the Superintendent or Director of Education. Overnight and international excursions will be governed by the following:
  - i. Only approved vendors and third party service providers identified in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook can be used to support an overnight or international excursion.
  - ii. The vendor will fully disclose to the principal any intention to offer remuneration, gifts or other benefits to staff or staff family members participating in a school excursion.
  - iii. No personal profit or remuneration will be gained by any staff or staff family members of the TCDSB in regards an excursion.
  - iv. Any proceeds offered by the vendor will be directed to reducing the cost of the excursion for students.
  - v. No TCDSB staff member who also is a vendor for trips and excursions shall be permitted to operate a TCDSB excursion for students.
- 10. Secondary school principals are authorized to approve excursions for retreats and school sport teams within Ontario. When other recreational activities are included in such excursions, approval is required as set out in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook.
- 11. In the event that a school team, or an individual representing the school, qualifies as a finalist for further imminent competition, approval may be granted immediately by the superintendent for overnight excursions within Canada, <u>provided that</u> the possibility of such excursions was discussed and communicated to parents/guardians at the beginning of the sport season <u>and</u> the parents/guardians have given their written approval. (Refer to Section 4.11(c), page 26).

- 12. The safety and supervision of all students in excursions is of utmost importance. The rules regarding safety and supervision will be as contained in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook.
- 13. Since an excursion is deemed to be a school-related activity, all school rules in the code of conduct will apply to students for the duration of the excursion and in those circumstances that have an impact on the school climate.
- 14. The principal will ensure that effective planning has occurred prior to the excursion, and that all procedural requirements are met according to the procedures outlined in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook, including matters relating to:
  - i. relevance to the curriculum, where applicable;
  - ii. supervision ratios;
  - iii. transportation;
  - iv. excursion itineraries/activities;
  - v. emergency plans
- 15. Responses to medical situations that occur on excursions must be consistent with the procedures outlined in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook. The subsequent reporting of accidents must comply with the reporting requirements:
  - i. Student Accidents Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange
  - ii. Staff Accidents The Occupational Health and Safety Act.
- 16.On those occasions where an excursion includes a Sunday, the teacher's plan shall specify participation in the Sunday Eucharist for all students and supervisors. (Refer to Section 4.21, page 30)
- 17. When TCDSB has approved an excursion, the total cost of the excursion may be funded wholly or partly from the appropriate school budgets, funds raised for

the excursion in accordance with the Board's policy, <u>S.M. 04 Fund Raising in</u> <u>Schools</u>, contributions made by individual students and/or parents/guardians, and costs assumed by individual students and/or parents/.

- 18. All elective personal spending by any of the participants, whether students, parents/ or staff, in preparation for or while attending any approved excursion is the responsibility of the individual; TCDSB cannot and does not accept any responsibility in connection with such personal expenses. Thus, the term "total cost of the excursion" as used in this policy does not include expenditures for items of a personal nature.
- 19. There may be occasions when the approval of an excursion previously granted must be withdrawn, the decision will be made by the staff person(s) responsible for the approval, as set out in the <u>TCDSB Excursion Handbook</u>, and only after careful thought as to what alternatives might be possible in the particular circumstances. If the approval is withdrawn, the staff person(s) responsible for the approval shall endeavor, as soon as possible, to advise all concerned and to assist them in recovering any resulting personal loss.
- 20. In the event of a cancellation or alteration of an approved excursion, reimbursement for financial losses regarding cost contributed or assumed by students, their parents/, or staff, is governed by the following:
  - i. The general rule is that TCDSB will not reimburse students, parents, or staff for any financial cost contributed or assumed by them.
  - ii. When TCDSB itself is reimbursed for some or all of the total cost of an excursion, TCDSB will share equitably the amount received in proportion to the losses incurred by the participants, including the TCDSB itself, taking into consideration amounts paid, and amounts credited or rebated, directly or indirectly, to any of the participants.

- iii. There are no circumstances in which TCDSB will reimburse or offer any reimbursement in respect of expenses incurred by students, parents, or staff in connection with any private trip or in connection with expenditures of a personal nature and the principal shall specifically bring this regulation to the attention of any student or parent/ who makes a contribution or assumes any cost in relation to an excursion.
- 21. Reasonable attempts will be made to ensure that no student shall be prevented from participating in an excursion through inability to pay.
- 22. The TCDSB extends to all teachers, students and volunteer supervisors on TCDSB approved excursions the same liability coverage that would extend to them in the normal day to day operation of the school.
- 23. The TCDSB will not assume any liability whatsoever in connection with the organization, development or delivery of any private trip by staff, students, parents/guardians or other stakeholders that fall outside the parameters of this policy.
- 24. The TCDSB assumes no responsibility or liability for activities or events that do not comply with requirements outlined in this document. Teachers shall not become involved in student activities or events that do not meet the requirements outlined in this document.
- 25.No TCDSB employee shall engage in distribution of any literature on school property or use any equipment or property of the TCDSB to organize, promote or discuss any excursions that do not comply with the requirements outlined in this document, unless specific approval is obtained in advance.
- 26.No TCDSB employee shall use any forms, literature or any documents that may indicate to the parents/guardians or the students that unapproved excursions have been approved by the TCDSB.

- 27. Any marketing or advertising materials that include TCDSB or School's name, including logo, must be approved by TCDSB prior to incorporating them in any promotion, literatures or brochures.
- 28. Any teacher or principal who becomes aware of an activity or event that has not been formally approved according to the requirements of this document, shall make every effort to inform the students involved, and their parents/guardians, that the TCDSB does not assume any responsibility for such activity or event.
- 29. Private trips are those excursions that have not received TCDSB approval, as set out in the Handbook, and those trips for which the organizers have not applied for approval.
- 30. Travel and tour operator must provide the copy of travel medical insurance coverage to TCDSB prior to the trip for the teacher/supervisor/any TCDSB employees, who are travelling with the group. The details must include the type of coverage and minimum limits.
- 31. Outside groups including colleges/universities, particularly adults, must not be combined with TCDSB school trips except other Board Schools.
- 32. Tour operator must provide some form of photo identification. (e.g. driver license, passport) for any adults, not TCDSB employees, travelling with the TCDSB group. The principal must verify the original photo identification, prior to the excursion. A copy of the photo identification must be left on file at the school.

## **SECTION 3**

## **Activities on School Excursions**

#### 3.1 **OPHEA Safety Guidelines**

Schools must refer to the appropriate OPHEA Safety Guidelines prior to taking part in any activity.

#### 3.2 Activities not Covered in the OPHEA Safety Guidelines

For participation in an activity not specifically covered in the OPHEA Safety Guidelines permission of the area superintendent is required.

For examples of risk exposures that may be beyond the control of school resources or falls outside the intended design of the school premises go to:

https://www.osbie.on.ca/riskapp/school-activities.aspx

#### 3.3 Areas Where No Travel is Allowed

No school may organize travel to:

- (a) natural disaster areas
- (b) war zones
- (c) regions with political or civil instability.

## **SECTION 4**

## **Procedures for Taking Students on Excursions**

#### 4.1 Definition of Excursion

An excursion is any TCDSB or school approved event or program which, for educational purposes, has students leaving school property.
 Demonstrations and/or marches shall not be included or interpreted as excursions. Nonetheless, those activities in alignment with the TCDSB Multi Year Strategic Plan, and in particular, the strategic priority of *Living Our Values*, may be considered by the principal in consultation with the Area Superintendent. TCDSB excursions do not include private trips.

#### 4.2 All Excursions Require Approval

All excursions require approval. This applies to any excursion which may take place on school days and/or weekends, and/or holidays and/or after school hours. If the school is responsible for organizing the excursion, approval <u>must</u> be obtained and all requirements which follow in this document <u>must</u> be met. If approval is not obtained, TCDSB schools or other sites will not support the event.

- Only approved vendors and third party service providers identified in the <u>TCDSB Excursion Handbook</u> can be used to support an overnight or international excursion.
- b. No TCDSB staff member who also is a vendor for trips and excursions shall be permitted to operate a TCDSB excursion for student.

#### 4.3 Curricular Relevance of Excursions

Any excursion, except for co-instructional excursions, must have curricular relevance in order to be considered for approval. This means the participants must be involved in activities that relate directly to the curriculum expectations for the group. As part of the approval application, excursion organizers must include specific reference to curriculum expectations.

For example, a day excursion to a ski resort for a grade eight class could be considered for approval because it meets specific curriculum expectations:

By the end of grade 8, students will:

- Participate on a regular basis in physical activities that maintain or improve physical fitness.
- Follow safety procedures related to physical activity, equipment, and facilities, and continue to take responsibility for personal safety

#### 4.4 **Co-Instructional Excursions**

Co-Instructional activities are an important aspect of any school program. As part of co-instructional activities many schools organize excursions. These excursions must be planned and organized according to the procedures laid down in the Handbook.

Section 1(1) of the Education Act defines co-instructional activities as follows:

- "... activities other than providing instruction that,
- a) support the operation of schools,
- b) enrich pupils' school-related experience, whether within or beyond the instructional program, or
- advance pupils' education and education related goals, and includes but is not limited to activities having to do with school-related sports, arts and cultural activities, . . .

Organizers of excursions that are to be considered co-instructional must be able to justify the excursion as it relates to the above definition. Excursions in isolation or of dubious relevance will not be approved.

#### 4.5 Signing Contracts for Excursions

Any contract must be signed by the person granting the approval for the excursion. That is as follows:

- Day trips Principal
- Overnight trips within Canada Superintendent
- International Trips Director of Education or designate

#### 4.6 Signing Waivers / Elements of Risk Notice

Waivers can only be signed by parent/guardian, student over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control.

The OSBIE/TCDSB Informed Consent Form, or equivalent supplied by the activity vendor, should be used for all higher risk activities. Uses include: a) activities involving water, b) contact sports (i.e. hockey, football, rugby, etc...), c) activities more susceptible to slips and falls (i.e. skating, skiing, zip lining, rock climbing walls, etc...).

For Long Distance Running activities, a permission form including an elements of risk notice should be used (see Cross Country Running Parent/Guardian Permission form)

#### 4.7 Excursion Type and Who Grants Approval (If unsure of from whom to seek approval contact the Outdoor Education Department or your superintendent)

Excursion Type	Examples	Approved By
Use of local site (No transportation required)	<ul> <li>Walking trip to local park</li> <li>Skating at local arena</li> <li>Local tournament (soccer, volleyball, chess, etc.)</li> </ul>	Principal
Supplementary programs offered at different locations	<ul> <li>Ontario Science Centre</li> <li>Art Gallery</li> <li>Computer lab</li> <li>Swimming program</li> <li>Royal Ontario Museum</li> </ul>	Principal
One day trips within Canada • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	<ul> <li>A one day tournament (soccer, volleyball, chess, etc.) where transportation is required</li> <li>Tour of Ontario Science Centre, Art Gallery, ROM</li> <li>Day trip to Niagara Falls</li> <li>One day visit to Conservation Centre, (Kortright, Pioneer Village etc.)</li> <li>Historical walk of downtown Toronto</li> <li>A one day ski trip (downhill or cross-country)</li> </ul>	Principal
One day trips within Canada involving water related activities • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	<ul> <li>Use of any small water crafts</li> <li>Use of the Water Park at Canada's Wonderland</li> <li>One day visit to Wet N' Wild Toronto</li> <li>One day visit to an outdoor education centre which involves swimming</li> </ul>	Superintendent upon recommendation of Principal
Overnight excursions within Canada • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	<ul> <li>Outdoor Education Excursion to a residential centre (Lake St. George, Teen Ranch, Mansfield)</li> <li>Residential excursion to an outdoor centre (Albion Hills, Claremont, Pioneer Camp, Muskoka Woods etc.)</li> <li>Tournament requiring a stay of one or more nights</li> <li>A band or choir excursion requiring a stay of one or more nights</li> <li>Excursion to Ottawa, Montreal, Quebec City, etc.</li> <li>Any excursion requiring a stay of one or more nights</li> <li>Camping trips, canoe trips etc.</li> </ul>	Superintendent upon recommendation of Principal

		Director of
<ul> <li>Excursions - outside of Canada</li> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>School excursion to Italy, United States, Germany etc.</li> <li>International Tournement (sports, arts etc.)</li> <li>Band or choir excursion to a foreign country</li> <li>School group (language, history etc.) trip to a foreign country</li> </ul>	Education or
		designate upon
		recommendation
		of Superintendent
• Cumcular		and Principal
		<u>L</u>

#### 4.8 Non-Sanctioned Excursions

Trips that do not reflect the curriculum, or do not have a clear educational purpose, or cannot be adequately supervised, will not be considered or approved. Certain activities should not be approved because they are deemed to be unsafe. Examples of such activities include, but are not limited to: white water rafting, white water canoeing, white water kayaking, paint-ball games, para-sailing, hang gliding and bungee jumping, 'swimming parties' at private or non-regulated pools, rivers or lakes and hot-air balloon rides.

Other examples of risk exposures that may be beyond the control of school resources or falls outside the intended design of the school premises go to:

https://www.osbie.on.ca/riskapp/school-activities.aspx

#### 4.9 All Excursions Supervised by a Certified Teacher

A certified teacher who is a member in good standing of the Ontario College of Teachers must supervise all excursions. This person will be referred to as "teacher-in-charge".

#### 4.10 Types of TCDSB Excursions

Refer to the chart in Section 5.1 page 35, for the appropriate form(s) to use for each of the following types of excursions.

#### (a) Use of Local Sites:

These sites are those to which students walk from the school.

#### (b) **Supplementary Programs Offered at a Different Location:**

These activities are regularly scheduled events to supplement classroom teaching, which may require transportation to the site. Supplementary

programs are considered programs that are repetitive in nature rather than a single event, such as swim programs, skating programs, and computer centres.

#### (c) **One-Day Trips within Canada:**

These are to a facility offering a program at a site where transportation is required, e.g., Kortright Centre for Conservation, Royal Ontario Museum, Black Creek Pioneer Village, Royal Winter Fair.

#### (d) **Co-Instructional Excursions (local day trips)**:

These activities are outgrowths of programs but are NOT mandated by the Ministry of Education. These take place off school property and may require transportation, e.g., sports tournaments, debating events, choir or band rehearsals and performances, and regional computer labs. These are considered single excursion events.

It is recommended that there be two or more adult supervisors, one of which is to be a certified teacher.

#### (e) **Overnight Excursions within Canada:**

These involve overnight stays and transportation to the site, e.g., TRCA Field Centres, trips to Quebec City or Ottawa, camping trips, band tours and exchanges.

#### (f) Trips/Excursions Outside of Canada:

These include one day and overnight trips. Because these trips have implications for health insurance and/or liability insurance, they require the approval of the Director of Education, or designate.

NOTE: "<u>Private trips</u>" are not to be considered as a TCDSB excursion. (refer to (o). page 10; #29, page 17 for more information on TCDSB policies related to private trips.)

## 4.11 Principal's Responsibilities for Overnight School Excursions: Within Canada

For each trip/excursion for which a stay of one or more nights is involved, the school principal shall:

(a) Complete the <u>School Excursion Approval Application Form</u>, (Appendix IV page 127), and submit it to the appropriate area superintendent. For TCDSB - subsidized excursions, this form is to be submitted a minimum of <u>5 weeks</u> before the departure date. For excursions other than TCDSB

subsidized excursions, the form is to be submitted a minimum of **<u>8 weeks</u>** before the departure date.

- (b) Complete and sign the <u>Principal's Checklist</u>, (Appendix IV, page 128) and submit this form along with the <u>School Excursion Approval Application</u> <u>Form</u>. (see (a) above.)
- (c) Conduct an information meeting for the parents/guardians of students involved at least <u>3 weeks</u> before the proposed excursion. Exceptions to the requirement for an information meeting are secondary school retreats, TCDSB sponsored leadership programs and secondary school sport teams that have qualified for regional and provincial championships. In these instances, a notice to parents and a signed parental approval may be considered in lieu of the required information meeting. If, however, additional sports and/or recreational activities are planned as part of the retreat or championship tournament, an information meeting <u>must be held</u>.
- (d) At the information meeting the principal shall arrange for the distribution of a sheet which outlines: expected outcome of the excursion; expectations of students with regard to behaviour and comportment; consequences of failure to live up to the stated expectations; and spaces for signatures of student and parent or guardian;
- (e) Make transportation arrangements. (Refer to Section 6, "**Transportation**" pages 42-49 for more information)
- (f) Obtain a Permission form and Student Health and Safety form signed by a parent/guardian for each student.
- (g) Make copies and share any Student Plans of Care with the supervising teacher(s)

#### 4.12 Principal's Responsibilities for International Excursions

Please refer to Appendix I, pages 88-116 for what is required when planning an international excursion.

## 4.13 Staff Meeting Required for The TCDSB Excursion Handbook Review

At the beginning of the school year, the principal shall set aside one staff meeting or part thereof, to discuss student safety and behavior, and provide attendees an opportunity to review the TCDSB Excursion Handbook and the individual school "Code of Behavior".

#### 4.14 Teacher-in-charge of Excursion

One teacher on any excursion must be appointed as "teacher-in-charge" of the excursion. The teacher-in-charge of the excursion must be aware of, and make sure that all other supervisors are aware of, the **Emergency Action Plan(s)** for each excursion, (refer to Appendix V, pages 144-157, for more information). Supervisors must be well acquainted with the items contained in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook.

Please note that occasional teachers are not to be considered as teacher-incharge of an excursion.

#### 4.15 Planned Outline of Excursion Required

A teacher must submit to the principal, for his/her approval, a planned outline of each excursion well in advance of the excursion date.

## 4.16 Consumption of Alcohol by TCDSB Staff on Excursions Prohibited

A staff member, while holding personal responsibility for the well-being and safety of students, will not consume alcoholic beverages at any time during excursions.

#### 4.17 Supervision Requirements

At least one of the adult supervisors on the excursion **must** be a certified teacher from the school involved. For any **extended and/or overnight excursions** in which students of both sexes are involved, **adult supervisors of both sexes** must be present.

#### (a) Number of Adult Supervisors for Excursions Within Canada

A sufficient number of adult supervisors must be provided to ensure that adequate care is taken of the students. Every reasonable precaution shall be taken to ensure the safety of students while on a school excursion.

As children grow in age and experience, the ratio of supervisors to students should reflect this change. With respect to supervision, the following minimum ratios are required for excursions that do NOT involve water related activities:

Grade Level	Ratio*
Kindergarten	1:6
Primary (Gr. 1-3)	1:10
Junior (Gr. 4-6)	1:15
Intermediate (Gr. 7-10)	1:20
Senior (Gr. 11 and up)	1:25

In the case of split grades the lower grade level ratios are to apply.

\*For Excursions involving <u>Water Related Activities</u> – Please refer to the *Quick Reference Chart* for the related Supervision Ratios– Section 8.8, page 60

#### (b) Number of Adult Supervisors for International Excursions

Grade Level	Ratio
Intermediate (Gr. 7-10)	1:12
Senior (Gr. 11 and up)	1:12

#### (c) "Buddy System" Required

The teacher-in-charge of the excursion must organize a "buddy system" so that student numbers can be determined quickly in the event of an emergency.

#### 4.18 Requirements for Adult Volunteers for Excursions

Principals may assign to a person who volunteers to serve, without remuneration, such duties in respect of the school as are approved by TCDSB, and may terminate such assignment (Education Act s.171 (1)(4).)

The principal shall:

 ensure all volunteers on overnight excursions, complete a Volunteer Registration Form and a Confidential Information and Communication Form as found in the TCDSB Volunteer Manual and ensure said volunteer submits to a current Police Reference Check, (PRC) including the Vulnerable Sector Screening Process, prior to the excursion

Note: volunteers for day excursions are excluded from obtaining a PRC

- ensure that all volunteers are supportive of the TCDSB's Mission
   Statement and the basic tenets of the Catholic School System;
- ensure that volunteers are aware of and supportive of all relevant TCDSB policies;
- be responsible for the recruitment, evaluation and termination of volunteers;
- be responsible for an orientation session for volunteers; and
- ensure that duties of teachers under the <u>Education Act</u> and its Regulations are respected. Volunteers must not assume the duties of teachers as defined in the <u>Education Act</u> and its Regulations.

The volunteers shall:

- function under the direction and supervision of the principal and staff to whom they are assigned;
- strictly respect the principle of confidentiality.

**Special Note:** Appendix VI pages 158-160, *"SUGGESTIONS FOR VOLUNTEERS ON EXCURSIONS"* can be copied and provided to volunteers to give them specific information on what is expected of volunteers on field trips.

#### 4.19 Inclusion of Students Unable to Pay for Trip

Reasonable attempts will be made to ensure that no student be prevented from participating through inability to pay. However no trip need be cancelled because someone cannot pay.

#### 4.20 Students Remaining at School

The principal shall make adequate provision for profitable schoolwork for those remaining at school.

#### 4.21 Sunday Eucharist

Where an excursion includes a Sunday, the teacher-in-charge of the excursion's plan shall specify participation in the Sunday Eucharist for all students and supervisors.

#### 4.22 Students Billeted in Homes in Other Locations

The TCDSB advises against billeting students as this would expose our students to an unacceptable level of risk for personal harm because there is no way to adequately assess the character and background of the billeting family. Even if parents consent to this form of billeting arrangement and agree to hold the Board harmless, the Board can still be exposed to significant financial and legal risk.

#### 4.23 Christmas Break or March Break Trips

These popular trips are subject to all approvals as outlined in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook. Teacher-organizers must first obtain approval, from their principal, **before starting** with any planning and/or contracts.

#### 4.24 Statement of Disclosure

The vendor will fully disclose to the principal any intention to offer remuneration, gifts or other benefits to staff or staff family members participating in a school excursion.

No personal profit or remuneration will be gained by any staff or staff family members of the TCDSB in regards an excursion.

Any proceeds offered by the vendor will be directed to reducing the cost of the excursion for students.

Please refer to TCDSB policy on Conflict of Interest Board Policy H.M.31.

## 4.25 Chart of Excursion Type and Steps Required – What I have to do!

The following chart is intended as a guide to assist teachers in organizing excursions. However teachers **must** review the relevant sections of the Handbook when planning an excursion. An excursion that involves watercraft, water activities, additional risk etc. requires further planning than what is outlined below.

Excursion Type	St	eps Required – What I have to do!
	1.	Parent/Guardian Permission Form - Local and Regular Use Sites (page 130)
		completed once each school year for entire school year. Two copies needed, one copy
		is to be signed and returned by the student and one copy retained by the
		parent/guardian.
	2.	List of students taking part in the excursion, one copy carried by teacher-in-charge and
Use of local site		one copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> excursion.
	3.	Copy of Student Plan of Care reviewed and carried for those students who require
	4.	one Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once each school year for the local
		and regular use site(s) covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)
	5.	Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once each school year for
		the local and regular use site(s) covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)
	4	
	1.	<i>Parent/Guardian Permission Form – Local and Regular Use Sites</i> (page 130) completed once each school year for entire school year. Two copies needed, one copy
		is to be signed and returned by the student and one copy retained by the parent/guardian.
Supplementary	2.	List of students taking part in the excursion, one copy carried by teacher-in-charge and
programs offered	2.	one copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> program or excursion.
at different locations	3.	Copy of Student <b>Plan of Care</b> reviewed and carried for those students who require
locations	0.	one
	4.	Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each program covered by
		the permission form. (refer to page 147)
	4.	Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each program
		covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)
	1.	Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) - completed once for
		each excursion. Two copies needed, one copy is to be signed and returned by the student
<b>.</b>	_	and one copy retained by the parent/guardian.
One day trips within Canada	2.	Copy of <b>Student Plan of Care</b> reviewed and carried for those students who require one
Ganada	3.	Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138)
Co-Instructional	4.	Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (pages 133-4)
<ul><li>Programs</li><li>Curricular</li></ul>	5.	List of students taking part in the excursion, one copy carried by teacher-in-charge and
	6	one copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> program or excursion.
	6.	Emergency Action Plan for One-Day Excursion (Injuries and Transportation)
		completed once for each program covered by the permission form. (refer to page
		154)

Excursion Type	Steps Required – What I have to do!			
	. Schoo	Cchool Excursion Approval Application Form (page 127) - completed for each excursion		
	and ser	nt with completed <i>Principal's Checklist</i> to Superintendent for approval.		
	2. Princip	al's Checklist (page 128) completed once for each excursion and attached to		
	Schoo	Excursion Approval Application Form.		
	B. Have a	parent meeting at least 3 weeks prior to each excursion.		
	. Parent	/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) - completed once for		
	each e	ccursion. Two copies needed, one copy is to be signed and returned by the student		
Overnight	and one	e copy retained by the parent/guardian.		
excursions within 5.	5. Studer	nt Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (pages133-4)		
Canada	6. Studer	t's Health and Safety Information Form (pages 135-36) - completed once for		
Co-Instructional	each e	ccursion. The teacher-in-charge must sign and keep a copy of this form with them		
<ul><li>Programs</li><li>Curricular</li></ul>	and on	e copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> excursion.		
		f <b>Student Plan of Care</b> reviewed and carried for those students who require one <b>nt To Medical Treatment Form</b> (page 137) - completed once for each excursion.		
	The tea	cher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school		
	office p	rior to <b>each</b> excursion.		
	. Emerge	ency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the		
	permiss	sion form. (refer to page 147)		
	0. Emerge	ency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered		
	by the p	permission form. (refer to page 152)		

Excursion Type	Steps Required – What I have to do!			
	1.	<b>Document One:</b> School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101) - completed for each excursion and sent to school principal or department head for approval. If necessary <b>Document Two:</b> Pre-Tour Checklist before Signing Agreement/Paying Deposit provided to tour operator (page 102-3).		
	2.	Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents / Information		
		Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (4 pages) (refer to		
		pages 104-8) and Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page		
		109) Complete both and forward to Director of Education or designate for approval.		
	3.	Once approval from Director of Education or designate then teacher-in-charge can:		
		<ul> <li>have a parent/guardian meeting to outline trip at least 3 weeks prior to excursion</li> </ul>		
		• develop a comprehensive parent/guardian permission form as outlined in		
		planning guide		
Excursions - outside	4.	Parent/Guardian Permission Form - All Excursions (page 131-2) - completed once		
of Canada		for each excursion. Two copies needed, one copy is to be signed and returned by the		
Co-Instructional		student and one copy retained by the parent/guardian.		
<ul><li>Programs</li><li>Curricular</li></ul>	5. 6.	<b>OSBIE Informed Consent Form</b> – for higher risk activities (page 138) <b>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</b> (pages 133-4)		
	7.	Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (refer to pages 135-6) -		
		completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must sign and keep a copy		
		of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> excursion.		
	8.	Copy of <b>Student Plan of Care</b> reviewed and carried for those students who require		
	9.	one Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each		
		excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy		
		left in school office prior to <b>each</b> excursion.		
	10.	Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip		
		Cancellation Insurance.		
	11.	Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by		
		the permission form. (refer to page 147)		
	12.	Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion		
		covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)		

## **SECTION 5**

### **Excursion Forms**

### 5.1 Chart of Excursion Type and Permission Form Required

Excursion Type	Permission Form(s) Required	Approved By
<ul> <li>a) Use of local site</li> <li>b) Supplementary programs offered at different locations</li> </ul>	<b>Parent/Guardian Permission Form – Local and Regular Use Sites</b> (page 130)	Principal
One day trips within Canada • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities – (page 138)	Principal
One day trips within Canada involving water related activities • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) OSBIE Informed Consent Form (page 138) Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (pages 133-4)	Superintendent upon recommendation of Principal

#### **REPORT APPENDIX B**

2. Principal's Checklist (page 128) and         3. Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2)         4. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for higher risk activities – (pages 133-4) – as required         5. Student Participation Checklist For Water Related Activities – (pages 133-4) – as required         6. Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular         7. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) – completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       Superintendent upon recommendation of Principal         7. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) – completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       Superintendent upon         8. Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.       Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)         10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion (refer to page 101)       Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)       Director of Education or designate upon recommendation and         • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular       1. Document A: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 102)       Director of Education or designate upon recommendation of Sup		1. School Excursion Approval Application Form (page 127) and		
131-2)       4. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required       5. Student Participation Checklist For Water Related Activities – (pages 133-4) – as required       5. Student Participation Checklist For Water Related Activities – (pages 133-4) – as required       5. Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (refer to page 5 133-4) – as required       5. Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (refer to page 5 133-4) – as required       5. Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (refer to page 5 133-4) – as required       5. Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (refer to page 5 133-4) – as required       5. Superintendent in-charge must sign and keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       5. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) – completed once for each excursion.       5. Deciment that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.       5. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)       10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion (refer to page 102)       1. Document One: School Excursion Applroation Form for International Excursions (refer to page 102)       1. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)       Director of Education or designate upon recommendation of Superintendent and Principal         • Co-Instructional Programs       • Director of Intermational Excursion F				
4. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required       5. Student Participation Checklist For Water Related Activities – (pages 133-4) – as required       5. Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (refer to pages 135-6) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must sign and keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       Superintendent upon         • Co-Instructional Programs       • Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       Superintendent         • Curricular       • Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion.       • Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion.       • Superintendent         • Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.       • Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)       10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation Form for International Excursions (refer to pages 101)       • Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to pages 101-1)       • Director of Education or designate upon 109)       • Director of 209         • Co-Instructional Programs       • Co-Instructional Programs       • Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)       • Director of 209         • Curricular       • Document Consent Form – for use				
6. Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (referto pages 135-6) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must sign and keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       Superintendent upon         • Co-Instructional Programs       7. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       Superintendent         8. Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.       Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.       Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)       Io. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)       Io. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)       Director of International Excursions (refer to page 101)         9. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)       Director of Ideignate upon recommendation of Superintendent         9. Curricular       4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)       SoBIE Informed Consent Form - for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required       Director of         6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities       Activities       Activities </td <td></td> <td><ol> <li>OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist For Water Related Activities</li> </ol></td> <td></td>		<ol> <li>OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist For Water Related Activities</li> </ol>		
<ul> <li>within Čanada         <ul> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion.</li> <li>Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.</li> <li>Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)</li> </ul> </li> <li>Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)</li> <li>Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108) and 3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109)</li> <li>Action of eage 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Courricular</li> <li>Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.</li> <li>Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)</li> <li>Decument One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)</li> <li>Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)</li> <li>Document A: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109) and</li> <li>Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>Subcument 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109) and</li> <li>Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>Subclin Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>		to pages 135-6) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-	Superintendent	
<ul> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.</li> <li>Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)</li> <li>Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)</li> <li>Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108) and</li> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>Aparent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)</li> <li>SoBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>	Within Canada	in-charge must sign and keep a copy of this form with them and one	-	
Programs       7. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.       of Principal         8. Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.       9. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)       10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)       1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)       2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108) and 3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109) and 4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)       Director of Education or designate upon recommendation of Superintendent and Principal		copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> excursion.	-	
Excursions - outside of Canada <ul> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>Courticular</li> <li>Completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.</li> <li>Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)</li> </ul> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)</li> <li>Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)</li> <li>Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to page 105-108)</li> <li>Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109)</li> <li>and</li> <li>Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)</li> <li>OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> <ul> <li>Director of Land Principal</li> <li>Activities</li> <li>Director of each excursion of Superintendent</li> <li>Constructional programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> </ul> <ul> <li>Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul> <ul> <li>Programs</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities<td></td><td>7. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) -</td><td></td></li></ul>		7. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) -		
prior to each excursion.         8. Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.         9. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)         10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)         10. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)         2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions - outside of Canada         • Co-Instructional Programs         • Curricular         • Co-Instructional Programs         • Curricular         • Suble Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required         • Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities	• Curricular	completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must	orrinopar	
<ul> <li>8. Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.</li> <li>9. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)</li> <li>10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)</li> <li>1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)</li> <li>2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)</li> <li>and</li> <li>3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109)</li> <li>and</li> <li>4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)</li> <li>5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>		keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office		
Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.9. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)excursional Programs• Co-Instructional Programs• Curricular• Curricular<		prior to <b>each</b> excursion.		
9. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)excursions - outside of Canada• Co-Instructional ProgramsPrograms• Curricular• Curricular• Suble Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities		8. Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel		
excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)excursions - outside of Canada• Co-Instructional ProgramsPrograms• Curricular• Curricular• Curricular• Suble Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities		Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.		
10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)e. Co-Instructional Programs• Co-Instructional Programs• CurricularDirector of S. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities		9. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each		
each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108) and• Co-Instructional Programs • CurricularDirector of and 4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2) 5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities		excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)		
152)1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101)2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)Excursions - outside of Canada• Co-Instructional Programs• Co-Instructional Programs• CurricularDiscurricular• Curricular• Discurricular• Curricular• Discurricular• Curricular• Discurricular• Discurricular• Curricular• Discurricular• Discurricular• Discurricular• Discurricular• Discurricular• Discurricular• Discurricular• Discuricular• Discuricular<		10. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for		
International Excursions (refer to page 101)2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)Director ofexcursions - outside of Canadaand 3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109)Director of Education or designate upon recommendation• Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular109) and 4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2) 5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activitiesof Superintendent and Principal		each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page		
<ul> <li>2. Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108)</li> <li>3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109)</li> <li>and</li> <li>4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)</li> <li>5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>		1. Document One: School Excursion Application Form for		
Excursions - outside of CanadaInformation Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (refer to pages 105-108) and 3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109) and 4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2) 5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related ActivitiesDirector of Education designate upon recommendation of Superintendent and Principal				
Excursions - outside of CanadaExcursions (refer to pages 105-108) and 3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109) and 4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2) 5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related ActivitiesDirector of Education or designate upon recommendation of Superintendent and Principal				
Excursions - outside of Canadaand 3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109)Education or designate upon recommendation of Superintendent and• Co-Instructional Programs • Curricularand 4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2) 5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related ActivitiesEducation or designate upon recommendation of Superintendent and Principal				
of Canada3. Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109)Education or designate upon recommendation• Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular109)andrecommendation of Superintendent and Principal• Curricular4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2) 5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required 6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activitiesand Principal	Excursions - outside		Director of	
<ul> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>109)</li> <li>and</li> <li>Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)</li> <li>OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>			Education or	
<ul> <li>Co-instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> <li>A Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)</li> <li>S OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>	Collectructional	100)		
• Curricular       4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)       of Superintendent         5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities       and Principal         (page 138) – as required       6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities			recommendation	
<ul> <li>(page 138) – as required</li> <li>6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities</li> </ul>		4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)	of Superintendent	
6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities		5. OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities	and Principal	
		(page 138) – as required		
(pages 133-4) – as required		6. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities		
		(pages 133-4) – as required		

## 5.2 School Excursion Approval Application Form – Overnight Trips Within Canada (Appendix IV, page 126)

The use of the <u>School Excursion Approval Application Form</u> is compulsory. It is to be completed and submitted by the principal to the field superintendent.

(Refer to chart Section 5.1, page 35)

An approved excursion (i.e. one which has the appropriate level of signed approval of the principal, field superintendent and/or director) means that the TCDSB takes responsibility for supervision, program relatedness and its share, if any, of financial responsibilities.

## Approval is required before ANY contract with carriers and/or travel agents and/or program personnel can be signed.

A copy of the <u>School Excursion Approval Application Form</u> can be found in Appendix IV, page 128. Schools can copy this form or download copies from the TCDSB's Intranet or the Physical/Health/Outdoor Education website.

This application form **IS NOT REQUIRED** for single day excursions in the immediate surrounding area. (Refer to chart Section 5.1, page 35, for appropriate form for single day excursion.)

#### 5.3 Principal's Checklist (Appendix IV, page 128)

The "Principal's Checklist" must be completed and submitted with the <u>School</u> <u>Excursion Approval Application Form</u>. It is intended to provide the superintendent with the information necessary to make a decision on whether to grant approval for the excursion.

#### 5.4 Teacher's Checklist (Appendix IV, page 129)

The "Teacher's Checklist" is provided as a guide to assist teachers in planning an excursion.

#### 5.5 Standard TCDSB Parent/Guardian Permission Forms

## Parent/Guardian Permission Form for Local and Regular Use Sites – Annual Use Form (Appendix IV, page 130)

For local and regular use sites which students walk from the school, such as a church, park, natural area etc. This form is to be completed once each school year for the entire year. The form should be completed in duplicate and sent home with the students. One copy is to be signed by the parent/guardian and returned to school and one copy is to be kept at home.

A second use for the annual use form is when a supplementary program is offered. This could include activities such as skating programs, art classes, computer labs, etc. The form should be completed as above. If transportation is required then the teacher-in-charge must complete the EAP for transportation (refer to Appendix V, pages 151-152).

## (b) Parent/Guardian Permission Form- All Excursions (Appendix IV, pages 131-2)

This form can be used for all single day and overnight excursions.

#### 5.6 Student Participation Form for Water Related Activities

#### (Appendix IV, pages 133-4)

Any Excursion that involves a water related activity needs to use this checklist. A copy of this checklist is to be submitted to the Principal and Superintendent, along with all other related forms, for approval. Water activities may include but are not limited to: swimming, use of small water craft, water park activities.

## 5.7 Student Health and Safety Information Form (Appendix IV, pages 135-6)

The Student Health and Safety Information Form is to be used for all overnight excursions and all sports team participants. The information on this form is to be kept confidential. It is necessary for the well-being of the student that the information be as complete as possible. The teacher-in-charge of the excursion is required to ensure the forms are completed properly and is to sign each form. A copy of this form should be kept at the school and a signed copy carried by the teacher-in-charge of the excursion. These forms are specific to an excursion and should be disposed of in an appropriate manner after the excursion is completed.

If a parent/guardian refuses to provide completed forms it is at the discretion of the appropriate superintendent to grant permission for the student to attend the excursion.

#### 5.8 Consent to Medical Treatment Form (Appendix IV, page 137)

The Consent to Medical Treatment form is to be used for all overnight excursions. This form allows a student to receive medical treatment in case of an emergency or when a parent/guardian cannot be reached. These forms are specific to an excursion and should be disposed of in an appropriate manner after the excursion is completed.

If a parent/guardian refuses to provide completed forms it is at the discretion of the appropriate superintendent to grant permission for the student to attend the excursion.

A copy of this form should be kept at the school and a copy carried by the teacherin-charge of the excursion.

#### 5.9 Volunteer Driver - Authorization to Transport Students Form (Appendix IV, pages 139-140)

The "Volunteer Driver - Authorization to Transport Students Form" is to be completed by any person who will be transporting students in a non-school vehicle. The form is in three parts as follows:

- **Part 1** to be completed by all volunteer drivers.
- Part 2 to be completed and attached to Part 1 if the volunteer driver is not the vehicle owner.
- Part 3 to be completed and attached to Part 1 if the volunteer driver is a student.

For more information about requirements for volunteer drivers refer to Section 6.7 pages 45-47.

#### 5.10 Transportation Form – Ordering TTC Tickets

#### (Appendix IV, page 141)

The regular TCDSB Transportation Form is to be used when ordering TTC tickets. The completed form is to be sent to the Student Transportation Services Department.

#### 5.11 Media Consent Form (Appendix IV, page 142)

The Media Consent Form is to be used for an excursion when the students may be either interviewed or photographed by the media. No student may be interviewed or photographed, by the media, unless this form is signed by the parents/guardians prior to the excursion.

#### 5.12 Emergency Action Plan for Injuries Form (Appendix V, page 147)

For all excursions an Emergency Action Plan for Injuries must be completed. Please review page 147 prior to completing this form. A copy of this form must accompany the teacher-in-charge of the excursion and a copy must be left at the school office.

## 5.13 Emergency Action Plan for Transportation Form

#### (Appendix V, page 152)

For all excursions where transportation is part of the excursion an Emergency Action Plan for Transportation must be completed. Please review pages 151-152 prior to completing this form. A copy of this form must accompany the teacher-incharge of the excursion and a copy must be left at the school office.

# 5.14 Emergency Action Plan for One Day Excursion (Injuries and Transportation) (Appendix V, page 154)

This form is designed for excursions that take place in a single day and require transportation. It is a combined simplified version of the above two forms. A copy of this form must accompany the teacher-in-charge of the excursion and a copy must be left at the school office.

#### 5.15 Bus Seating Plans - (Appendix V, Pages 155-157)

For all excursions where a school bus or highway coach is used to transport students a bus seating plan must be completed and attached to the EAP for Transportation.

- School Bus Seating Plan for Grades K-5 3 Students per Seat (155)
- School Bus Seating Plan 2 Students per Seat (156)
- Highway Coach Seating Plan (157)

#### 5.16 OSBIE Informed Consent Form – (Appendix IV, Page 138)

The OSBIE Informed Consent Form, or waiver forms supplied by activity vendors, should be used for all higher risk activities. Uses include: a) activities involving water, b) contact sports (i.e. hockey, football, rugby, etc...), c) activities more susceptible to slips and falls (i.e. skating, skiing, zip lining, rock climbing walls, etc...).

## **SECTION 6**

## Transportation

#### 6.1 Emergency Action Plan for Transportation

In any situation where transportation (e.g. bus, car, train, plane, boat, canoe, horse etc.) is part of an excursion there are a variety of concerns that must be dealt with prior to the excursion. An Emergency Action Plan (EAP) for Transportation must be prepared. Items that may be included in an EAP for transportation can be found in, Appendix V, pages 150-152. A copy of this form (page 152) must accompany the teacher-in-charge of the excursion and a copy must be left at the school office.

#### 6.2 School-Arranged Transportation

Once approval for an excursion has been granted, the school principal will arrange his or her own transportation. Contact Student Transportation Department for a list of TCDSB recommended transportation companies. If another company is used the principal must ensure the company has adequate insurance. In the latter case refer to Appendix X Insurance Requirements for Transportation of Students pages 173-174.

For overnight trips once transportation has been arranged the principal will notify the Superintendent indicating the name of the carrier, the destination, accommodation(s) and the name of a contact person. The contact person would usually be the teacher-in-charge of the excursion. The name of a contact person is necessary in case the bussing arrangements have to be changed due to an emergency or inclement weather.

For excursions where travel by watercraft is necessary please refer to Section 10, **"Activities Involving Watercraft",** pages 65-67.

#### 6.3 Renting Vehicles

- It is highly recommended that vehicles such as vans, buses etc. not be rented by parents, students or employees for transporting students. If a parent, student or employee does rent such a vehicle - for the transportation of students - then they should do so in the name of TCDSB. In addition all the rules and regulations apply that relate to:
  - volunteer drivers
  - provincial licensing requirements
- 2. If a parent, student or employee has a rental vehicle for personal use and at that time volunteers to transport students then the same rules and regulations apply as if the driver used his/her own personal vehicle.
- Schools are asked to no longer, purchase, rent or lease 10+ passenger vans given the poor safety record of these vehicles. Parent volunteers with access to these types of vehicles should not be allowed to transport students.
- 4. Principals must make parents, students or employees who rent vehicles aware of the OSBIE requirements for rental of vehicles (see excerpt below) - refer to the OSBIE website for a complete and up-to-date version of the OSBIE document

#### Rental/Temporary Substitute/Donated/Borrowed Vehicles

In 2006, changes to the Ontario Highway Traffic Act and the Insurance Act made the personal automobile Third Party Liability of a RENTER of any vehicle in Ontario the primary coverage. To address cases where employees rent vehicles to conduct school board business in Ontario, effective January 1, 2007, OSBIE members carrying their Fleet Auto insurance with OSBIE can purchase an endorsement to make the board's Third Party Automobile Liability coverage primary. For this endorsement to apply, any vehicles rented by employees for school board business up to 30 days must be in the name of the school board. (n.b. as of the printing of this document TCDSB has purchased this endorsement). Legal Liability for damage to non-owned vehicles is covered for rental vehicles under the Comprehensive General Liability policy, Endorsement #2, subject to a \$250 deductible. From a risk management perspective, however, it is recommended that school boards advise employees to purchase the Deductible Waiver coverage available on a daily rate through the rental agency. This will make the rental agency's coverage primary if there is any damage to the rental vehicle itself, and will reduce the effect of claims experience rating on the school board's premiums.

#### 6.4 Bus Seating Plan

For excursions where a bus is used to transport students, other than public transit, a bus seating plan must be completed and copies attached to the <u>EAP for</u> <u>Transportation</u>. Blank copies of various bus seating plans can be found in, Appendix V, pages 155-157.

#### 6.5 Severe Weather or Poor Driving Conditions

- (a) During severe weather or poor driving conditions, principals must ensure that weather and road conditions are conducive to travel before students leave for an excursion.
- (b) An excursion may not leave the school by vehicle if any one or more of the following exist:
  - 1. There are blizzard conditions en route or Environment Canada forecasts blizzard or severe weather conditions.
  - 2. The Ontario Provincial Police has issued an advisory against travel on any en route highway.
  - 3. The wind-chill falls in the "very high or extreme" categories as defined by Environment Canada.
  - 4. On return trips the teacher-in-charge must verify weather and road conditions. Every reasonable effort must be made by the teacher-in-charge to contact the school principal to assist in making the decision to change the trip itinerary.

#### 6.6 Students Arranging Own Transportation

From time to time, for the sake of convenience, students on a one-day excursion are requested to travel to or from a location other than their home school.

#### (a) Elementary Students

Elementary grade students are <u>not</u> to travel without appropriate supervision to or from locations. All excursions begin and end at the home school unless a parent requests, in writing, a different procedure for his/her child. This parental request must be subsequently approved by the principal or supervising officer.

#### (b) Secondary Students

Secondary School groups will have to decide on a procedure, appropriate for the age of the students and the circumstances involved. For example, it may not be appropriate for individual students to travel without appropriate supervision late in the evening. However signed parental permission <u>must</u> be received prior to allowing any student(s) to make arrangements or plans that allow him/her to travel unsupervised. The information from the parents must include information on what alternative arrangements have been made.

#### 6.7 Volunteer Drivers

"Volunteer drivers" are defined as individuals, authorized by the principal, who have agreed to transport students using their own or another licensed automobile and who meets all the requirements of the TCDSB, as outlined below.

Prior to any student being transported by a volunteer driver the teacher-in-charge of the excursion is expected to ensure that all the relevant sections of the **"Volunteer Driver - Authorization to Transport Students Form" (Appendix IV, pages 139-140)** are completed and submitted to the school principal for authorization. (Refer to Section 5.9, page 40 for a detailed description of the form.)

- (a) Volunteer drivers should hold a minimum of a valid Ontario Class G2 or better license. (For more information on the graduated licensing system in Ontario refer to Appendix IX, pages 170-172).
- (b) Volunteer drivers must have the following current insurance coverage on any vehicle used to transport students for an excursion:
  - Motor Vehicle Liability, with a limit on liability of at least \$1,000,000;
  - Accident Benefit;
  - Uninsured Automobile
- (c) Ontario legislation makes automobile insurance compulsory in the Province of Ontario. The same legislation makes the owner's insurance primary coverage in the event of an accident.
- (d) If a vehicle which is not owned by TCDSB is being operated by a volunteer or any other TCDSB employee for approved school activities, the TCDSB's non-owned automobile insurance endorsement will respond to third party liability claims in excess of the owner's insurance limit up to a total of \$20 million.
- (e) There is no coverage provided by the TCDSB's insurance for damage to a volunteer or employee's vehicle while they are being operated for TCDSB activities.
- (f) According to provincial legislation, passengers who are injured would recover accident benefits coverage from their own or a parent's/guardian's automobile policy. In the absence of a personal or family automobile policy, the passenger would then be eligible to recover benefits from the insurance policy covering the vehicle in which they are riding.
- (g) For the personal protection of volunteer drivers, it is recommended that drivers carry a minimum of \$1 million of third party automobile liability insurance. Volunteers and TCDSB employees who use their personal vehicles for transporting students to school activities should advise their insurance carrier.

- (h) The law requires that all drivers possess and carry a valid certificate indicating they possess insurance coverage.
- (i) Volunteer drivers must provide TCDSB with prompt written notice, with particulars, of any incident (e.g. accident, police involvement) arising out of the use of a licensed automobile during a trip on TCDSB-related business.

#### 6.8 Written Approval of Vehicle Owner Required

If the volunteer is not the vehicle owner, the school principal must obtain the written approval of the owner of the particular vehicle. This ensures that the owner of the vehicle (likely the person holding insurance) is aware that the volunteer driver is using the car to transport students. (Refer to Appendix IV, "Volunteer Driver - Authorization to Transport Students Form – Part 2", page 140)

#### 6.9 Air Bags

If a vehicle is equipped with a front seat passenger-side air bag, students must not be transported in that seat unless;

- the air bag has been properly deactivated and/or
- the student meets the minimum requirements for safety

According to the latest information from Transport Canada, in any vehicle where the front seat air bag has not been properly deactivated, all children under the age of 12 years should be seated in the rear seat.

#### 6.10 Child Booster Seats and Restraints

Booster seats are required for students under the age of eight, weighing more than 18 kg but less than 36 kg (40-80 lbs.) and who stand less than 145 cm (4 feet 9 inches) tall.

A student can start using a seatbelt alone once **any one** of the following criteria is met:

• The student turns eight years old;

- The student weighs 36 kg (80 lbs.); or
- The child is 145 cm (4 feet 9 inches) tall.

# 6.11 Parents/Guardians must be Advised Child(ren) Being Driven by Volunteer Driver(s)

- (a) Principals must include in the Parent/Guardian permission Form that students are being driven by volunteer drivers
- (b) If the volunteer driver is a student the guidelines below, Section 6.12, must be adhered to.

#### 6.12 Students Driving Personal Vehicles

The principal, at his or her discretion, may refuse to permit a student to act as a volunteer driver if, in the opinion of the principal, it would be unsafe or otherwise inappropriate.

There are certain additional conditions which are required if students elect to transport other students. The student driver must:

- (a) complete Part 1 and Part 3 of the "Volunteer Driver Authorization to Transport Students Form" (Appendix IV, pages 139-140) prior to excursion
- (b) if the student is not the vehicle owner then Part 2 of the "Volunteer Driver
   Authorization to Transport Students Form" must be completed. This ensures that the vehicle owner (likely the person holding insurance) is aware of what his/her car is being used for
- (c) have completed a driver education course and
- (d) possess, as required by provincial law, valid and adequate insurance coverage

In addition to the above the principal must have written permission from the parent/guardian of all student passengers acknowledging that they consent and understand that another student driver is transporting their child.

#### 6.13 Private/Rented Aircraft

TCDSB staff will not take TCDSB students on flights using personal or rented aircraft. The TCDSB's insurance policy excludes coverage where the aircraft is owned/leased/rented by an employee.

#### 6.14 Commercial Aircraft

Only licensed, certified commercial passenger air carriers are to be used.

#### 6.15 Flight Cancellation Insurance

Cancellation insurance, if available, is the responsibility of the student or parent/guardian. Cancellation and resultant loss of any funds, no matter what the cause, is the responsibility of the student, parent/guardian or their insurer (should coverage have been purchased). The TCDSB assumes no financial responsibility in the event of flight cancellation for whatever reason.

## **SECTION 7**

### **Safety and Medical Requirements**

#### 7.1 Introduction

Provided excursions are planned and carried out appropriately, they can and should be considered an integral component of a student's learning. Excursions in general, and outdoor education activities in particular, require a high level of care, safety, instruction and planning. There is the risk of injury in these activities. As such, leadership, certification, preparation and informed parental consent must be done in accordance with all regulations as described.

#### 7.2 Physical Education: Ontario Safety Guidelines

The Ontario Physical and Health Educators Association (OPHEA), in conjunction with other partners, created a document entitled **Physical Education: Ontario Safety Guidelines**. These guidelines delineate **minimum** safety standards that must be met by teachers and administrators in addressing the safety components of their school program.

The **OPHEA Safety Guidelines** give considerable detail about safety and safe practices for many activities. Teachers **must** review these guidelines prior to having TCDSB students take part in any activity and where appropriate teachers **must** make use of the guiding principles in the document and to use the services of certified instructors and technicians in the activities. The guidelines are reviewed and updated regularly so teachers and administrators must review the on-line guidelines to ensure any activity being considered is planned using the most current **Safety Guidelines**.

The procedure to access these guidelines can be found at the OPHEA website: <a href="http://www.safety.ophea.net">www.safety.ophea.net</a>

#### 7.3 Emergency Action Plan for Injuries (Appendix V, page 147)

Given that there is an element of risk in all physical activity, an encounter with an injury or accident is highly possible. Recognizing this fact, it is necessary to establish a plan of action for dealing with an emergency if it occurs. The key to the **Emergency Action Plan for Injuries** is getting the professional care to the injured person as quickly as possible. For that to happen efficiently and effectively, you must be prepared with an **Emergency Action Plan for Injuries**. A fill-in-the-blanks copy of an **Emergency Action Plan for Injuries** can be found on page 138. A copy of this form must accompany the teacher-in-charge of the excursion and a copy must be left at the school office.

Please review the section "When an Injury Occurs" pages 148-149 prior to going on any excursion.

If the excursion is a day trip and not overnight then the single page form "Emergency Action Plans – One Day Excursion" (page 154) can be used for both EAP for Injuries and Transportation.

#### 7.4 Travel Medical Insurance

For international excursions participants must have travel medical insurance.

#### 7.5 Vaccinations

For international excursions, where necessary, participants must have appropriate and up-to-date vaccinations.

#### 7.6 Student Health Card

It is strongly recommended that students carry their personal health card or a photocopy on all school excursions.

Privacy policies dictate that student health card numbers are not to be collected for excursions.

According to the Ontario Government's Ministry Of Health website:

"Even if you do not have a Health Card, physicians and hospitals must provide you with emergency health care services."

#### 7.7 First Aid Training

It is strongly recommended that at least one teacher and/or teacher on overnight excursions and/or day excursions have knowledge of emergency first aid procedures. For excursions such as hikes and/or canoe trips, it is mandatory that one of the supervisors/instructors has emergency first aid training (e.g. St. John Ambulance). The name of that person and his/her qualifications are to be included as information to parents.

#### 7.8 Students Requiring Special Care

Several times each school year, excursions are planned for classes which include a student who requires special consideration for transportation and/or medical care and/or feeding and/or sleeping arrangements. Every attempt should be made to include these students as part of the school community during educational excursions.

TCDSB and the various destination facilities make every attempt to include students with special care needs. At some locations, wheelchair access is difficult if not impossible. However, every consideration is to be given to include special care students in class excursions. When students with special care needs participate in a class excursion, the following shall be consulted as considered:

- (a) TCDSB's Protocols for Prevalent Medical Conditions Handbook, 2018;
- (b) the School Administrator's Manual;
- (c) the need for an educational assistant for a special need student; and
- (d) the need for appropriate transportation arrangements.

The school principal should initially contact the regional program coordinator of special services for up-to-date information about available services.

The principal and parent/guardian should meet to discuss whether the excursion location and available services would be appropriate and agreeable for the student(s) involved.

The safety and physical-emotional-medical well-being of each student is the most important consideration in deciding if the student does or does not participate.

#### 7.9 Use of Prescription Medication by Students while on Excursions

"Any request by parents for the administration of oral medication or the injection of medication in an emergency must be processed according to the procedures outlined in the <u>Protocols For Prevalent Medical Conditions Handbook, 2018</u>. Similarly, parents should be informed of their responsibility of alerting school personnel when medication needs to be taken by a student or is self-administered by a student."

## 7.10 Use of Non-Prescription or Over-the-Counter Drugs by TCDSB Students while on an Excursion

Students bringing prescription or over-the-counter medications must give the medications to a supervisor for safe storage. The medication must be taken in the presence of a supervisor and the remaining medication returned immediately to the supervisor for safe storage.

Students should never carry their own medication with the exception of inhalers for breathing problems and injectable medication such as Epinephrine using EpiPen® or AUVI-Q for anaphylaxis. Refer to TCDSB booklet <u>ANAPHYLAXIS –</u> <u>PROTOCOL AND GUIDELINES 2013</u>; and <u>Protocols For Prevalent Medical</u> <u>Conditions Handbook, 2018</u> for more information.

**All** supervisors on an excursion must be made aware of students who carry either of the above medications.

# 7.11 Use of Illegal Drugs/Alcohol and/or Tobacco by TCDSB Students while on Excursion

Students, even those of legal age, are NOT allowed to consume alcohol on TCDSB property or TCDSB excursions. The use of tobacco is NOT allowed on TCDSB property and TCDSB organized excursions.

Students should be advised that if they are caught with illegal drugs that the police will be called to deal with the matter.

Students and parents should be made aware, in clear terms, what the consequences are for breaking the rules. (TCDSB Policy Manual Section S.M. 10)

#### 7.12 Fire Drill-Evacuation Procedure

As an extension of TCDSB's fire drill procedures, TCDSB requires the following action:

If an excursion is to a conventional residential outdoor Centre, a fire drill procedure is generally dealt with when students arrive. The teacher-in-charge of the excursion should ensure this is done during the pre-trip planning meeting with Centre staff.

Excursions, which use motels, hotels, and/or dormitory residences, require that the teacher-in-charge investigate evacuation procedures and provide accurate details to students. It is most important that a predetermined meeting location be established in the event that a fire alarm is sounded.

#### 7.13 Anaphylaxis – The Life-Threatening Allergic Reaction

## DEFINITION: Anaphylaxis is a SEVERE, and LIFE-THREATENING allergic reaction caused by exposure to a trigger (allergen).

Common allergen triggers are foods, insect stings, medications, exercise and latex rubber. An anaphylactic reaction involves symptoms from one or more body systems as noted below.

Refer to: Protocols for Prevalent Medical Conditions Handbook, 2018

BODY SYSTEMS	SYMPTOMS
SKIN	Hives (red itchy welts or swelling on skin), Itching, Warmth, Redness
EYES	Swollen, itchy, running, bloodshot or with mucous
NOSE	Nasal Congestion or hay fever-like symptoms, running, itchy, stuffy, sneezing
THROAT	Sore, swollen
STOMACH/DIGESTIVE SYSTEM	Vomiting, cramps, bloating, nausea, diarrhea
URINARY SYSTEM	Incontinence
RESPIRATORY SYSTEM	Difficulty breathing, severe asthmatic reaction, coughing, wheezing, shortness of breath, chest pain or tightness, throat tightness, trouble swallowing, hoarse voice
CIRCULATORY SYSTEM	Drop in blood pressure, unconsciousness, pale/blue colour, dizziness/lightheadedness, weak pulse, fainting, shock, loss of consciousness
NEUROLOGICAL	Anxiety, headache
OTHER	Disorientation, sense of foreboding, fear or apprehension, sense of doom, uterine cramps

The very nature of anaphylaxis has serious implications for students/staff participating in school excursions (particularly to remote sites).

An incidence of anaphylactic shock is regarded as a medical emergency and must be **treated within a 3-minute timeframe.** Treatment includes a 3-Step Plan.

1) Injection of medication (Epinephrine using Epi-pen or AUVI-Q)

2) Have student take a fast acting antihistamine, either a tablet or syrup &

3) Obtain immediate hospital aid by calling 911

Any student who has been diagnosed as anaphylactic must carry a minimum of two epinephrine auto-injectors e.g. Epi-pens or AUVI–Q while on an excursion.

Each administration of epinephrine is intended to provide relief of symptoms for 15-20 minutes. Repeated applications should be given if symptoms persist or worsen, or if emergency transport to a hospital is prolonged due to distance/accessibility.

It is important that as part of the preplan of any trip that all students and staff, who are going on the trip, be informed of all Anaphylaxis procedures and routines, prior to the trip.

The student body and all staff should be made aware of and prohibited from bringing any known allergen triggers of the anaphylactic students.

# A cell phone or radio for reaching 911 must accompany any supervisor working with the identified student.

Where food allergens are a known catalyst, preventative measures must be taken. This is especially so with excursions which involve dining out or overnight accommodation. Restaurants/kitchens are to be alerted to the identified student's dietary restrictions, and traveling classmates are to be restricted from packing snacks (which may contain traces of certain allergens). It must be stressed that mere proximity, not necessarily consumption, could lead to an attack.

Incidents of anaphylactic reaction should be documented on the Ontario School Boards Insurance Exchange (OSBIE) Incident Report Form found at the OSBIE website.

http//osbie.on.ca/english/index.cfm

#### 7.14 Emergency Procedures for Students Without a Medical Diagnosis of Anaphylaxis and Prescribed medication

Only a physician can diagnose anaphylaxis. School staff, **will not attempt to diagnose Anaphylaxis**. If a student **appears** to be developing an anaphylactic reaction and the school **does not** have medical information as required by this protocol, then the on-site supervisor shall:

- Begin emergency medical procedures by injecting the student with the teacher-in-charge or supervisors epinephrine auto-injector (Epi-pen or AUVI-Q).
- 2. Call 911 and inform them that you have a person who is experiencing anaphylactic shock and that you have injected epinephrine (epi-pen® or AUVI-Q).

See the TCDSB documents <u>ANAPHYLAXIS – PROTOCOL AND GUIDELINES</u> 2013, and refer to the <u>Protocols for Prevalent Medical Conditions Handbook</u>, 2018 for further information.





## **SECTION 8**

### **Excursions Involving Water Activities**

#### 8.1 Safety and Water Activities

*"It is to be understood that water activities and swimming are synonymous with each other and are bound by the same rules of safety."* (Coroner's Jury, November 25, 1983.)

A heightened safety-consciousness is warranted in excursions involving water activities.

See the <u>Quick Reference Chart for Water Activities</u> (Section 8.8) and <u>Modified Supervision Ratios</u> for those related activities.

#### 8.2 Ontario Physical Health Education Safety Guidelines

Prior to taking part in any activity involving water (e.g. swimming, boating) teachers/supervisors must reference and follow the on-line OPHEA Safety Guidelines specific to the activity. A copy of the OPHEA Guidelines can be found at the OPHEA website: <u>www.safety.ophea.net</u>

#### 8.3 Leaving Students Unsupervised is Forbidden

Students should never be left unsupervised during any water activity. A further reference from the Coroner's Report (see 8.1 above) deals with the necessity for constant and alert supervision. The student who drowned was in knee deep water. Again, we quote, "under no circumstances, should any group of children in the water be left unattended and without careful and close supervision at any time." (Coroner's Jury Recommendation Number 10, November 25, 1983.)

#### 8.4 Supervising Systems

Teachers are required to use a system of supervision while students are engaged in swimming activities. Recognized systems for the supervision of swimming activities include the following:

- subdivision of students into age groups with the use of colour coded arm bands
- use of the "buddy system" (Coroner's Jury Recommendation Number 6, November 25, 1983)

#### 8.5 Students Involved in a Stream or Pond Study

Students involved in a stream or pond study activity at an outdoor education field centre are not required to have the swim qualifications needed for a Recreational Water Activity such as a swim program under the following conditions:

- The activity is supervised by an instructor from the field centre
- The students do not enter the water unless it is less than 60 cm deep

#### 8.6 Water Parks

Water parks are those facilities which have slides, pools and various play areas where water is involved. The use of such facilities is to be considered as synonymous with swimming. All the rules regarding lifeguards, minimum swimming qualifications, supervision and safety apply.

#### 8.7 Using Private Pools or Pools in Hotels with Students Prohibited

Teachers are not to use swimming pools in private homes and/or yards and/or apartment-condominium buildings for swim programs and/or for student swimming parties/pool parties. Students are not to use pools when staying in hotels.

The intent of this rule is to avoid allegations of improper behaviour and to cover the possibility that adequate supervision and qualification rules are not being followed.

#### 8.8 Quick Reference Chart: Excursions to Amusement Parks and Other Excursions Involving Water not found in the OPHEA Safety Guidelines

The age and maturity level of the students; as well educational value of the activity should be taken into consideration when planning an excursion. Supervisors must be with students at all times.

Quick Reference Chart	What is required				
	Parent/ Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions	Informed Consent Form	TCDSB Water Competency Testing – see Checklist	Student Health and Safety Information Form	Supervision Ratio
<i>Maid of the Mist -</i> Niagara Falls Boat Tour (Gr. 4+)	$\checkmark$	~		$\checkmark$	Gr. 4-6 = 1:10 Gr. 7-10 = 1:12 Gr. 11+ = 1:15
Toronto Island Ferry (Gr. 1+)	$\checkmark$	√		$\checkmark$	Gr. 1-3 = 1:6 Gr 4-6 = 1:10 Gr. 7-10 = 1:12 Gr. 11+ = 1:15
Pontoon Boat at Lake St George Outdoor Ed Centre (Gr 4-12)	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	Gr. 4-6 = 1:10 Gr. 7-10 = 1:12 Gr. 11+ = 1:15
Canada's Wonderland – No Water Park Usage (Gr. 4+)	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	Gr. 4-6 = 1:10 Gr. 7-10 = 1:12 Gr. 11+ = 1:15
Canada's Wonderland including Water Park (Gr. 4+)	$\checkmark$	~	✓	$\checkmark$	Gr. 4-6 = 1:10 Gr. 7-10 = 1:12 Gr. 11+ = 1:15
Wet'n'Wild Water Park (Gr. 4+)	$\checkmark$	~	~	$\checkmark$	Gr. 4-6 = 1:10 Gr. 7-10 = 1:12 Gr. 11+ = 1:15
City of Toronto Splash Pads (Kindergarten and up)	$\checkmark$	✓		$\checkmark$	Gr. K-3 = 1:6 Gr 4-6 = 1:10 Gr. 7-10 = 1:12 Gr. 11+ = 1:15
Swimming or Small Craft Water Activities (See OPHEA Safety Guidelines for complete list of requirements)	$\checkmark$	✓	~	$\checkmark$	See OPHEA Safety Guidelines and Section of 4.17 of TCDSB Excursion Handbook

#### 8.9 Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities

(Appendix IV, pages 133-4)

Any Excursion involving water activities must use the Student Participation Checklist. Students must meet or exceed the OPHEA minimum safety standards, or have a valid swim test or swim certification (see checklist). Students are to be tested by a certified lifeguard instructor. Schools should not use certified lifeguards from their own school to administer the swim test.

Students who do not have their water competency qualifications cannot participate in swimming, waterpark, or small craft water activities. These students must be clearly highlighted on the TCDSB Water Competency Checklist. The permission form sent home for this student must clearly state that he/she has not passed their water competency test and cannot participate in the water related activities portion of the excursion. Appropriate supervision of these students is required.

Supervisors must be with students at all times.

## **SECTION 9**

### **School Swim Program**

#### 9.1 Ontario Physical Health Education Safety Guidelines

Prior to taking part in any swimming activity teachers/supervisors <u>must</u> reference the OPHEA Safety Guidelines. A copy of the OPHEA Guidelines can be found at the OPHEA website: <u>www.safety.ophea.net</u>

#### 9.2 Classroom Teacher's Role

- (a) If a teacher is organizing and supervising a class involved in a "learn to swim" program, usually at a location away from the home school, she/he will remain in the observation area to maintain surveillance of the students who are swimming and to supervise any non-participants.
- (b) Teachers involved in direct instruction and/or coaching may do so if the student teacher ratio does not exceed 25:1:
  - the teacher holds a valid Ontario Teacher's Aquatic Standard (OTAS) certificate
  - additional instructors are required for groups where the student teacher ratio exceeds 25:1.
- (c) A teacher who does not hold a valid aquatic standards certification may be involved as a team coach providing there are sufficient numbers of lifeguards provided.

## 9.3 Private Home Pools, Apartment/Condominium Pools, or Hotel Pools are Not Allowed for Swimming Lessons

Principals and/or teachers will not use a private residence pool or one in an apartment, condominium building.

#### 9.4 Limits on Non-Swimmers

Non-swimmers: students who have not passed the Swim Test are to be confined to the shallow end with appropriate supervision. See OPHEA Safety Guidelines.

#### 9.5 Students with Warts, Disease, Sores

Regardless of pool regulations, students with plantar warts, any skin disease or sore must not enter the pool.

# 9.6 Lifeguard Requirements during a Physical Education Class, Competition or School Swim Team Practice

The following are excerpts from Ontario Regulation 565 under the <u>Health</u> <u>Protection and Promotion Act, 1990.</u> A public pool is exempt from the safety supervision requirements [as they relate to number of lifeguards], during a period when the pool is being used solely by one or more groups each not exceeding twenty-five in number for aquatic instruction, practice, competition or display under the direct supervision of a certified aquatic instructor or coach.

Every aquatic instructor and every coach shall,

- (a) be at least seventeen years of age;
- (b) be the holder of one of the following qualifications that has been issued to him or her and that has been dated not more than two years prior to the date on which he or she is acting as an aquatic instructor or coach,
  - The Canadian Red Cross Society's Leader Award or Water Safety Instructor Award.
  - (ii) The Young Men's Christian Association's Instructor Certificate.
  - (iii) The Life Saving Society Canada's Instructor Certificate together with an assistant lifeguard certificate.
  - (iv) The Ontario Teacher's Aquatic Standard, where the holder is giving aquatic instruction under the auspices of a school board or board of education.

- (v) Where the holder is giving underwater aquatic instruction, an instructor certificate issued by,
  - 1. The National Association of Underwater Instructors
  - 2. The Professional Association of Diving Instructors, or
  - 3. The Association of Canadian Underwater Councils.
- (vi) A lifeguard certificate.
- (vii) A certificate that the Minister of Health considers equivalent to a qualification referred to in paragraphs (i) to (vi); and
- (c) have available at the pool when on duty the certificate referred to in clause
   (b) or a copy thereof that is certified by the operator and permit the owner,
   the operator or a public health inspector to examine the certificate at any
   time.

#### 9.7 Teacher Awareness of Emergency Procedures

All teachers must be aware of emergency procedures and equipment.

#### 9.8 Dialing 911 in Emergencies

In the event of drowning, serious injury or emergency, call 911 for aid.

# **SECTION 10**

# **Activities Involving Watercraft**

#### **10.1** Responsibility for Safe Use of Watercraft

Any activity involving watercraft has inherent risks. A heightened safetyconsciousness is warranted in excursions involving watercraft activities. It is ultimately the responsibility of the teacher-in-charge of the excursion who has the final say in whether an activity takes place or is cancelled due to safety concerns. The safety concerns could be things such as; watercraft condition, lack of sufficient safety devices, weather conditions, student behavior etc.

#### **10.2 Non Swimmers Excluded from Watercraft Activities**

NON SWIMMERS: THOSE STUDENTS WHO HAVE NOT PASSED THE SWIM TEST OR ATTAINED APPROPRIATE QUALIFICATIONS ARE NOT ALLOWED TO PARTICIPATE IN WATERCRAFT ACTIVITIES – SEE STUDENT PARTICIPATION CHECKLIST FOR WATER RELATED ACTIVITIES (Appendix IV, Pages 134-135).

It should be noted that this rule does not restrict TCDSB students from participation in events which involve:

- (a) Ferry boat service to Toronto Islands
- (b) Toronto Harbour registered tour boats (e.g. as part of Harbourfront's Education Afloat program)
- (c) Use of the pontoon research platform at Lake St. George Field Centre. However, while on board this vessel, TCDSB students will wear an approved life jacket or approved Personal Flotation Device.

For any other program involving watercraft, the appropriate superintendent approval is required before non-swimmers, as defined above, may be included.

#### 10.3 Safety Training

The teacher-in-charge of the excursion must ensure all passengers of watercraft are briefed about safety or evacuation procedures prior to departure.

#### 10.4 Safety/Rescue Equipment

The "Safe Boating Guide" published by the Canadian Coast Guard clearly states which items MUST be aboard small watercraft. Secure a current copy of the guide from the Canadian Coast Guard through either their website, <u>www.ccg-gcc.gc.ca</u>, or by telephoning 1-800-267-6686.

#### **10.5 Wearing of Approved Flotation Devices:**

#### (a) Instruction

In situations where instruction (examples: learning to sail, windsurf and/or canoe) is the activity, the OPHEA Safety Guidelines *must* be followed.

#### (b) Travel

In situations where recreational travel (example: canoe trip, sailing on an open lake) is the activity, the OPHEA Safety Guidelines *must* be followed.

#### (c) **Exceptions**

It should be noted that the only exceptions to the mandatory wearing of a government approved lifejacket or PFD include:

- 1. Ferry boat service to Toronto Islands
- 2. Toronto harbour registered tour boats

# For any other exceptions, the appropriate superintendent approval is required.

#### **10.6 Passenger/Weight Limitations**

No watercraft shall carry more passengers and/or weight than recommended by the manufacturer.

#### **10.7 Rules for Canoe Tripping**

#### (a) Canoe Tripping Defined

Canoe tripping is defined as travelling in groups through wilderness or semiwilderness areas for a period of time which includes at least one overnight camp.

Special Note: Canoe tripping is *not allowed* at the elementary level.

WHITE WATER ACTIVITIES are <u>not allowed</u> at the elementary or secondary levels.

#### (b) Ontario Physical Education Safety Guidelines

All requirements and planning outlined in the <u>Physical Education: Ontario</u> <u>Safety Guidelines – Secondary Curricular</u> must be followed in order for TCDSB secondary students to be involved in a canoe tripping experience. A copy of the OPHEA Guidelines can be found at the OPHEA website: <u>www.safety.ophea.net</u>

#### (c) **Pre-Planned Schedule**

All cance tripping experiences with TCDSB secondary students are to be pre-planned by the teacher/principal and approved by the appropriate Superintendent at least four weeks prior to the trip. The plans must clearly outline contingency plans (i.e. delay due to bad weather); response to emergency situations and rescue/evacuation plans should such be necessary.

# **SECTION 11**

# **Procedures for a Medical Emergency**

#### **11.1 Emergency Action Plan for Injuries**

Supervisors in charge of an excursion must have an <u>Emergency Action Plan for</u> <u>Injuries</u> (EAP) in place prior to participating in any excursion. Refer to Appendix V pages 146-147, to create an EAP. In addition a copy of the EAP and complete itinerary must be left at the school.

If the excursion is a one day trip and not overnight then the single page form "Emergency Action Plans – One Day Excursion" (page 154) can be used for both EAP for Injuries and Transportation.

#### 11.1.1 Student Plan of Care

Any student with one of the four *Prevalent Medical Conditions (anaphylaxis, Asthma, Diabetes, Epilepsy and Seizures)* should have a **Plan**of Care filled out. One copy should be with the teacher accompanying the student. Refer to the **Protocols for Prevalent Medical Conditions Handbook,**2018

#### 11.2 Student Health & Safety Form; Health Card Numbers

The teacher-in-charge must carry a copy of each student's **Health and Safety Form**. Privacy policies dictate that student health card numbers should not be collected for excursions.

According to the Ontario Government's Ministry Of Health website:

"Even if you do not have a Health Card, physicians and hospitals must provide you with emergency health care services."

#### **11.3 Location of an Excursion**

The location of your excursion greatly determines the procedures you follow. A broken arm on a canoe trip requires a different procedure than the same accident on a bus trip to Midland. Plan for and act according to the location of the excursion.

#### 11.4 Neck Injury

IF YOU SUSPECT BACK AND/OR NECK INJURIES, AVOID MOVING THE PATIENT UNLESS YOU ARE TRAINED TO HANDLE SUCH A CASE. CALL IN TRAINED PERSONNEL. CALL FOR AN AMBULANCE.

#### **11.5 Concussion Protocol**

#### 11.6 Calling 911; & if no ambulance is available

The principal or teacher-in-charge of the excursion must call 911 and arrange to have the patient moved to the emergency department at the nearest hospital. When parents/guardians are unavailable, the principal or teacher-in-charge must designate another supervisor (e.g. teacher or parent) to accompany the student to the hospital. If at all possible, this supervisor must not be the teacher-in-charge of the trip. The supervisor must stay with the student until relieved by another supervisor or parent/guardian.

If an ambulance cannot reach the student, then:

- (a) Subject to the approval of the owner, a private vehicle may be used <u>and</u>
- (b) The student is to be accompanied by a responsible person approved by the principal or teacher-in-charge. If at all possible this person must not be the teacher-in-charge of the trip.

#### 11.7 Students Not To Be Sent Home Alone

If a student is ill and/or injured, he or she must **NOT** be sent home unaccompanied. If the student's parents/guardians are unavailable to accompany the ill/injured student, the principal or teacher-in-charge will designate a supervisor (teacher or parent/guardian) to accompany the student home. However no ill/injured student should be left unattended.

#### **11.8 Contact Principal**

At the first opportunity, the teacher-in-charge of the excursion must make every reasonable effort to contact the principal and inform him/her of the accident.

#### 11.9 Advise Parents/Guardians

The principal must advise the parents/guardians as soon as possible.

#### 11.10 Parent/Guardian Responsibility

If the parents/guardians can get to the location of the accident or a hospital, the person supervising the student should surrender responsibility to them.

#### **11.11 TCDSB Staff or Volunteer Injuries**

A teacher or volunteer, who is injured, is required to report any injury, no matter how insignificant, to his/her principal. At that point the principal must complete the **Accident Investigation Report – For Staff Injuries.** Refer to Section 14.1, pages 80, for a complete guide to reporting staff or volunteer injuries.

#### 11.12 Reporting Accidents and/or Serious Injuries

School principals and/or site supervisors must complete an OSBIE electronic "Incident Report Form" (refer to Appendix IV, page 143) on any matter which gives rise to an injury requiring medical attention to TCDSB students or visitors to the school site or during an off-site school activity. Accurate reporting of details, in our increasingly litigious environment, is essential as the content of the incident report is often heavily relied upon where a legal action arises out of any incident. Timely reporting is essential to maximize the Insurer's opportunity to collect evidence of the accident and increase the probability of recovering the loss from a third party. Delayed reporting could cause TCDSB to lose its insurance coverage for the claim.

#### **REPORT APPENDIX B**

In the event that a serious injury (i.e. where the injured party requires hospital admission - excluding minor out-patient treatment) or fatality occurs on the school property or during an off-site school activity, the principal or designated supervisor must immediately telephone the Risk Management Department at the Catholic Education Centre. Should Risk Management personnel be unavailable, then the supervisor should call directly to OSBIE's Claims Administrator at the insurer's office. In addition to the above the principal or designated supervisor must report the incident to the appropriate Superintendent.

School principals and/or site supervisors must complete an electronic Incident Report Form for every incident resulting in serious injury.

The Claims Administrator will advise the principal how to proceed and will caution the principal to instruct his/her staff to refrain from providing information to any other parties (except police). Please note that an incident report form is still required.

Risk Management Department (CEC):**222-8282 Ext. 2101 or 2258**OSBIE's Claims Administrator:**1-800-668-6724**OSBIE website: http//osbie.on.ca/english/index.cfm

#### 11.13 Dealing with the Media during Emergencies

TCDSB has a document titled <u>The Communications Handbook</u> which indicates how staff is to deal with the media. Contact the Communications Department at the C.E.C., ext. 5314, for a copy or schools can access the Communications Department on the TCDSB intranet website.

# **SECTION 12**

# **Special Considerations for Principals**

#### **Preface Note**

The following items are those of a discretionary nature. They do not have the weight of a regulation. However, since the principal bears the burden of responsibility for all the students of his/her school, the following factors are to be considered when out-of-school excursions are being planned.

#### **12.1 Excursion Planning Approval**

A teacher must consult with and obtain the approval of the principal before the planning for an excursion may proceed.

#### **12.2 Relationship to Curriculum**

Excursions are intended to be a valid extension of and/or an enrichment of the existing in-school program. The principal should look carefully at the planned excursion to see that this is considered in all planned activities. The TCDSB attempts to avoid excursions which might be called "events in isolation".

#### **12.3 The Institute for Catholic Education (ICE) documents**

Appendix VII, pages 161-168, is a copy of The Institute for Catholic Education (ICE) documents. These should be referred to when planning an excursion. As stated in the ICE documents, "Catholic education views human life as an integration of body, mind, and spirit. Rooted in this vision, Catholic education fosters the search for knowledge as a lifelong spiritual and academic quest. The expectations of Catholic graduates, therefore, are described not only in terms of knowledge and skills, but in terms of values, attitudes and actions."

#### **12.4 Duration and Distance of Excursion**

The excursions for students in kindergarten to grade 5 should generally be of a short duration and distance. Long distance and overnight programs should be considered appropriate for grades six and above and then only after both teacher and students have had several short, successful field trip experiences.

#### 12.5 Cancellations

Part of your trip planning should include knowledge of forecasted weather patterns. Decisions on alternate programs, should inclement weather or other circumstances place you in a situation where the excursion must be concluded, should be included in your plan.

#### 12.6 Sending Students Home

A plan should be created in consultation with the teacher-in-charge on what will be done if one or more students are so disruptive that they are to be returned to the school or home. The plan should include notification of the student's parent/guardian and the principal. Plans for the transportation of the disruptive students should also be considered.

#### **12.7 Teacher Experience and Maturity**

The principal should carefully weigh the experience of the teacher(s) involved against the demands and complexity of the trip.

#### 12.8 Use of Parent/Guardian Volunteers on Excursions

Schools often use parent volunteers to aid in the supervision of students as well as helping carry out programs. A few suggestions are offered here:

 Refer to the TCDSB volunteer manual "Volunteers Welcome!" available on the TCDSB internet website.

- (b) Parents/Guardians should have an active role both in the planning and execution of the excursion.
- Be realistic about the size of the group assigned to any parent/guardian. A suggested ratio for the primary division is one adult for every six students.
   For the junior and intermediate divisions, one adult for every ten students will do.
- (d) Introduce parents/guardians and students to each other. Explain the roles of parents/guardians to students.
- (e) Discuss with parents/guardians your expectations for children's behavior and strategies for coping with misbehavior.
- (f) Before the excursion, meet with parent/guardian volunteers and discuss such items as the purpose of the excursion, what will be done in the classroom before and after the event and, outline the general nature of the excursion and what the teaching staff hope will be learned from it.

**Special Note:** Appendix VI pages 158-160, *"SUGGESTIONS FOR VOLUNTEERS ON EXCURSIONS"* can be copied and provided to volunteers to give them specific information on what is expected of volunteers on field trips.

#### **12.9 Requirements for Adult Volunteers for Excursions**

Principals may assign to a person who volunteers to serve without remuneration such duties in respect of the school as are approved by the TCDSB and to terminate such assignment (Education Act, s.171 (1)(4)). The principal shall:

 ensure all volunteers on overnight excursions, complete a Volunteer Registration Form and a Confidential Information and Communication Form as found in the TCDSB Volunteer Manual and ensure said volunteer submits to a current Police Reference Check, (PRC) including the Vulnerable Sector Screening Process, prior to the excursion Note: volunteers for day excursions are excluded from obtaining a PRC

- ensure that all volunteers are supportive of the TCDSB's Mission Statement and the basic tenets of the Catholic School System;
- ensure that volunteers are aware of and supportive of all relevant TCDSB policies;
- be responsible for the recruitment, evaluation and termination of volunteers;
- be responsible for an orientation session for volunteers; and
- ensure that duties of teachers under the <u>Education Act</u> and its Regulations are respected. Volunteers must not assume the duties of teachers as defined in the <u>Education Act</u> and its Regulations.

The volunteers shall:

- function under the direction and supervision of the principal and staff to whom they are assigned;
- strictly respect the principle of confidentiality.

#### 12.10 Planning for the Behavior Program (BP) Students on Excursions

Please refer to The TCDSB Special Services Department for assistance in planning excursions involving student with special needs.

# **SECTION 13**

# **Special Considerations for Teachers**

#### **13.1 Excursion Planning Approval**

A teacher must consult with and obtain the approval of the principal before the planning for an excursion may proceed.

#### **13.2 The Institute for Catholic Education (ICE) documents**

Appendix VII, pages 161-168, is a copy of The Institute for Catholic Education (ICE) documents. These should be referred to when planning an excursion. As stated in the ICE documents, "Catholic education views human life as an integration of body, mind, and spirit. Rooted in this vision, Catholic education fosters the search for knowledge as a lifelong spiritual and academic quest. The expectations of Catholic graduates, therefore, are described not only in terms of knowledge and skills, but in terms of values, attitudes and actions."

#### 13.3 Pre-trip Visit

It is not always possible to pre-visit a site but it is certainly highly desirable. If you as teachers travel to the site, you will quickly recognize problems and shortcomings in your plans as well as seeing opportunities which would otherwise not be considered.

#### **13.4 Excursion Impact on Students**

The mere novelty of travelling to a site, which is new, different and unknown, has an impact on your students. They will recall events and facts learned from such excursions long after the event has passed. Since the impact of a field trip is significant, it is worth maximizing the time away. Teachers should refer to the **"Teacher's Checklist"** found in Appendix IV page 129, for a complete listing of the steps needed to plan an excursion.

#### 13.5 Keeping Students Involved

We have observed students at a variety of sites. Some students come to a given facility and pour off the bus uncertain of where they are or what they are to do or see. Others have definite tasks assigned to them. Our observation is that supervision is less troublesome when students have an active role. Follow up surveys show that the actively involved student retains ideas, facts and concepts for a longer period of time than those students who simply show up at a facility.

An orientation to a site in the early stages of an excursion increases comfort and safety for supervisors and students.

#### 13.6 Pre-Trip/Post-Trip Activities

Neither of these opportunities should be missed. A considerable amount of map reading practices can be done – with enthusiasm – by students using road and/or topographical maps to plan routes to a novel site. Their motivation is high. Once the trip is complete, the opportunity to show and tell others about their trip keeps the enthusiasm for the experience at a high level.

#### 13.7 Student Planning

Generally, students make impulsive decisions in the planning process. They are more interested in getting on with the "doing" of the event than in the form of it. This is a good opportunity for growth as you work with them on such items as appropriate clothing lists, menu planning (and the associated problems of storage, refrigeration, and cooking), division of duties and sharing the workload.

This can be a time to practice letter-writing skills as students request information. Of course, follow up letters of appreciation are equally important in the planning process.

#### 13.8 Lost Students

You and your class should work out a locating system if someone should become separated from the group. A good prevention and safety strategy is to "buddy-up" students so a student is less likely to wander off alone.

#### 13.9 Use of Drugs, Alcohol and Tobacco

The use of drugs, alcohol and tobacco are potentially problematic. Schools have a code of conduct which is to be followed. It is worth spending time, with all appropriate grades, discussing the consequences of having or using any of the three on a school outing, prior to the experience. (Refer to Sections 7.9, 7.10 & 7.11, pages 53-54, for more information)

#### 13.10 Use of Personal Vehicles on TCDSB Business

Please refer to Section 6.7 "Volunteer Drivers", pages 45-47, for information on the use of personal vehicles for TCDSB business.

#### **13.11 List of Students and Emergency Contacts**

For all excursions a listing of participants is to be provided to the person listed in the Handbook (refer to Section 5.1 "**Excursion Type and Permission Form Required**" page 35-6) authorized to grant the approval. Along with the list of participants and accompanying teachers and other supervisors, a parent or guardian who can be reached in case of any emergency is also to be listed.

#### **13.12 Student Identification**

For all excursions, participants should have their name or some form of identification on their person.

#### 13.13 Student Health Card

It is recommended that students carry their personal health card or a photocopy on all school excursions.

Privacy policies dictate that student health card numbers should not be collected for excursions.

According to the Ontario Government's Ministry Of Health website:

"Even if you do not have a Health Card, physicians and hospitals must provide you with emergency health care services."

#### **13.14 Students without Ontario Medical Coverage**

Students who are new to the province may not have OHIP coverage. In such cases it is suggested that the parent/guardian of the student should arrange private medical coverage through a private company such as Blue Cross OR Green Shield, for the duration of the excursion. Refer to Section 14.2(b) "**Student Accident Insurance (SAI)**", page 81, for more information on student medical coverage.

#### **13.15 Planning for the Behavior Program Students**

Please refer to The TCDSB Special Services Department for assistance in planning excursions involving student with special needs.

# **SECTION 14**

# Information Regarding Insurance, Liability and Safekeeping of Funds

#### 14.1 Reporting of a TCDSB Staff Injury

A teacher is required to report any injury, no matter how insignificant, to his/her principal. At that point the principal must complete the **Accident Investigation Report – For Staff Injuries.** 

The following is an outline of the procedures designed to assist the schools/workplaces when completing the **Accident Investigation Report – For Staff Injuries.** 

- The Accident Investigation Report For Staff Injuries is completed and signed by a principal or supervisor. Under no circumstance should the injured employee be asked to complete or sign the report.
- The report must be completed within two working days after learning of the accident. If the reports are submitted later than the prescribed time, the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board (formerly WCB) will subject the TCDSB to a monetary penalty for late filing.
- If a staff member visiting a school, or assigned to temporary duties at a school, sustains a work-related injury, it is the responsibility of the principal or supervisor to complete the report as he/she would for regular staff.
- Please read the instructions on the front page of the Accident Investigation Report carefully prior to completing the form.

Once the report is completed and signed, fax it promptly to the Benefits and Compensation Department at (416) 229-7051.

#### 14.2 Insurance Considerations

#### (a) Liability Insurance

The TCDSB provides liability insurance, via its carrier, Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange, for all staff carrying out activities on behalf of the TCDSB including activities carried out on excursions. The liability insurance provides coverage in any instance where a claim of negligence is filed against the TCDSB or its employees. Volunteers who are adequately trained for assisting with supervision of activities are also covered under the TCDSB's liability insurance policy.

#### (b) Student Accident Insurance (SAI)

In September each year, SAI is offered to all students for a modest premium. SAI provides medical coverage, including dental, as one of its primary benefits. SAI is highly recommended for all students where medical coverage, via the employer of parents/guardians is not available; especially those involved in sports, co-op education, shop and any other high-risk activities.

Whether purchased or not, SAI provides coverage for students while on any TCDSB approved excursion. Sporting events (i.e. competitive events between schools) are not included in the SAI definition of excursion and, as such, are covered only where the student has purchased SAI.

#### (c) Travel Insurance

Medical expenses for accidents, which occur outside of Canada, can be costly. Prudent teachers, students and volunteers who are travelling outside of Canada will purchase appropriate travel insurance.

Some Student Accident Insurance (SAI) plans (i.e. Super Plan) also provide accidental death, emergency hospital and repatriation coverage and may

provide an adequate and less expensive alternative to other travel insurance options.

#### (d) Trip Cancellation Insurance

Trip cancellation insurance may be purchased through a travel agent at the time of payment if such an excursion warrants this type of insurance. Normally, deposits and/or full payments are not refundable. Cancellation insurance provides financial protection (i.e. refunds) in the event of illness or death of the traveler(s) or a member of the traveler's family.

Some SAI plans (i.e. Super Plan) also provide trip cancellation insurance. Refer to Section 14.2 (b) **"Student Accident Insurance (SAI)"**, above, for more information.

#### (e) Automobile Insurance

The Province of Ontario's no-fault insurance affords protection for both bodily injury and property damage to the vehicle owner and the owner's family. Therefore, if a student or an adult travelling in any vehicle (or if hit while a pedestrian) is hit by any vehicle, that person is protected under their own policy.

The TCDSB maintains a non-owned auto insurance policy which will provide coverage for claims in excess of the insurance carried on a vehicle not owned by the TCDSB, where an accident occurs while carrying out TCDSB business. All vehicle passengers are covered for any excess (secondary) cost, to a limit of \$20 million, arising after the primary (i.e. driver's policy) policy coverage limits have been exhausted. Primary coverage for students travelling in an automobile would be provided by the insurance policy of their parents/guardians. In the event that a student's parents/guardians did not have insurance (i.e. don't own or lease a vehicle), primary insurance coverage would then normally be provided by the insurer of the owner of the vehicle.

For information on the requirements for volunteer drivers refer to Section 6.7 **"Volunteer Drivers"** pages 45-47.

For information on the requirements for students driving personal vehicles refer to Section 6.12 **"Students Driving Personal Vehicles"** pages 47.

#### 14.3 Financial Considerations

Principals should ensure arrangements are in place for covering all the financial matters related to an excursion, including a refund procedure, a contingency fund and an accounting for all expenditures.

- Only TCDSB approved vendors and third party service providers identified in the TCDSB Excursion Handbook can be used to support an overnight or international excursion.
- ii. The vendor will fully disclose to the principal any intention to offer remuneration, gifts or other benefits to staff or staff family members participating in a school excursion.
- iii. No personal profit or remuneration will be gained by any staff or staff family member of the TCDSB in regards an excursion.
- iv. Any proceeds offered by the vendor will be directed to reducing the cost of the excursion for students.
- v. No TCDSB staff member who also is a vendor for trips and excursions shall be permitted to operate a TCDSB excursion for student.

#### 14.4 Safekeeping of Funds

To safeguard all funds collected for school excursions, schools should take necessary precautions, e.g. deposit funds in bank accounts, and use school safe where available. Money should not be left in areas that are easily accessible, e.g. secretary's desk, unlocked filing cabinets, etc.

#### 14.5 Withdrawal of Permission

On those rare occasions on which the approval of an excursion previously granted must be withdrawn, the decision will be made by the staff person(s) responsible for the approval, as set out in this Handbook, and only after careful thought as to what alternatives might be possible in the particular circumstances. If the approval is withdrawn, the staff person(s) responsible for the approval, as set out in this Handbook, shall endeavour, as soon as possible, to advise all concerned and to assist them in minimizing resulting losses.

# **SECTION 15**

# **Special Considerations for Students**

**Preface Note:** This section can be brought to the attention of the students or used in a behavioral contract.

#### 15.1 Adherence to School's Code of Conduct

Students shall adhere to the school's Code of Conduct for the duration of all excursions. Students who fail to adhere to the Code of Conduct while on excursions will be subject to the same consequences as if the students were in attendance at school during regular school hours.

#### **15.2 Student Behavior on Excursions**

While on excursions, and while travelling to and from excursions, students will continue to be responsible for their conduct to the principal. Students will be responsible to follow the directions and supervision of the teacher-in-charge, teachers on the excursion or any volunteers acting as supervisors on the excursion. Students shall comply with their obligations under section 23 of Regulation 298 to the Education Act, including the following:

- exercise self-discipline;
- accept just discipline as would be exercised by a kind, firm and judicious parent;
- be courteous to fellow pupils and obedient and courteous to teachers:
- be clean in person and habits; and
- show respect for public or private property.

#### 15.3 Responsibility for Damages or Costs for Being Sent Home

Students will be responsible for any applicable losses or costs should they engage in misconduct, including a breach of the school's Code of Conduct. This could include costs for transportation home or for damages resulting from misconduct.

#### 15.4 Responsibility for Missed Work

Students will be responsible for completing any regular schoolwork missed while on the excursion.

# **SECTION 16**

# **School Administrative Procedures**

#### **16.1 Reproduction of Forms, Checklists**

Any of the documentation, which follows in the Appendices, may be duplicated for staff use. For some items, such as medical forms, it is necessary to produce a double set. One set should remain at the school, while the other goes with the teacher-in-charge.

#### 16.2 Appendix Materials – A Summary of Appendix Items

Appendix I – TCDSB Planning Requirements for International Excursions (88-116)

Appendix II - Considerations for Excursion Approval (Principal/Superintendent) (117-119)

Appendix III - Charts (120-125)

- Chart for Excursion Type and Permission Form Required (121-2)
- Chart for Excursion Type and Steps Required What I have to do! (123-125)

Appendix IV – TCDSB Excursion Forms (pages 126-143)

- School Excursion Approval Application Form (127)
- Principal's Checklist (128)
- Teacher's Checklist (129)
- Parent/Guardian Permission Form Local and Regular Use Sites (130)
- Parent/Guardian Permission Form All Excursions (131-2)
- Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (133-4)
- Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (135-136)
- Consent to Medical Treatment (137)
- OSBIE Informed Consent Form (138)
- Volunteer Driver Authorization Form (139-140)
- Transportation Form Ordering TTC Tickets (141)
- Media Consent Form (142)
- Ontario School Boards Insurance Exchange Incident Report (143)

Appendix V - Emergency Action Plans (144-157)

- Introduction to Emergency Action Plans (145)
- Emergency Action Plan for Injuries (146-149)
- Emergency Action Plan for Transportation (150-152)
- Emergency Action Plan for One Day Excursion (153-154)
- Bus Seating Plans (155-157)

Appendix VI - Suggestions for Volunteers on Excursions (158-160)

Appendix VII – The Institute for Catholic Education Documents (ICE) (161-168)

Appendix VIII - List of Transportation Suppliers (169)

Appendix IX – Graduated Licensing for Automobile Drivers (170-172)

Appendix X – Insurance Requirements for Transportation of Students (173-174)

# APPENDIX I

# TCDSB PLANNING REQUIREMENTS FOR INTERNATIONAL EXCURSIONS



Outdoor Education Department TCDSB

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### Page

- 89 Table of Contents
- 90-91 Preamble
- 92 Introduction
- 93-95 General Requirements for TCDSB International Excursions from the <u>TCDSB</u> <u>Excursion Handbook</u>
- 96-98 Additional Requirements for Planning a TCDSB International Excursion
- 99 Flow Chart for 3 steps
- 100-103 **<u>Step One</u>** of the Planning Process for a TCDSB International Excursion -Approval of Principal/Coordinator
- 104-109 **<u>Step Two</u>** of the Planning Process for a TCDSB International Excursion -Approval of Director of Education
- 110-111 **<u>Step Three</u>** of the Planning Process for a TCDSB International Excursion Approval of Parent/Guardian
- 101-111 TCDSB Documents Required for Planning a TCDSB International Excursion
  - 101 <u>Document One</u>: School Excursion Application Form for Overnight/International Excursions
  - 102-103 <u>Document Two</u>: Pre-Tour Checklist before Signing Agreement/Paying Deposit
  - 105-108 <u>Document Three</u>: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/ Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions
  - 109 <u>Document Four</u>: Principal's Checklist for International Excursions
  - 112-113 Toronto Catholic District School Board Student's Health and Safety Information Form
  - 114 Toronto Catholic District School Board Consent to Medical Treatment Form
- 115-116 Definitions and Contacts related to planning a TCDSB International Excursion

# PREAMBLE

As today's youth come of age and are educated in a world more interconnected than any other time in history, the ability to learn about the plight of the world's poorest is literally at his/her fingertips. Following the words of Pope Francis, the Toronto Catholic District School Board expects that their graduates "[develop] attitudes and values founded on Catholic social teaching and act to promote social responsibility, human solidarity and the common good" during their time in school. Similarly, yet another Toronto Catholic District School Board Graduate Expectation is that students, "[respect] and affirm the diversity and interdependence of the world's peoples and cultures." International travel and first-hand service to the world's most disadvantaged is the most effective way of educating students, giving them the opportunity to "take initiative and demonstrate Christian leadership" as well as a life-changing experience which reaffirms their commitment to Catholic teachings regarding social justice and global equity.

As leader of the Catholic Church, Pope Francis sets goals and guidelines for Catholic disciples across the globe to follow. Francis, a Jesuit, takes his name from St. Francis of Assisi- a 13<sup>th</sup> century friar who dedicated his life to caring for the poor and disadvantaged in society. In the early days of Francis's papacy, he made it clear that the priorities of the Catholic Church under his leadership will be to care for and protect all of humanity-"…especially the poorest, the weakest, the least important, those whom Matthew lists in the final judgment on love: the hungry, the thirsty, the stranger…"

When Toronto Catholic District School Board students travel overseas, they are given the unique opportunity to apply the teachings regarding social justice they have learned in the classroom. In forming connections and friendships with individuals from different walks of life, students generate empathy and an understanding of the needs of the poor. International excursions involve an exchange of knowledge, as students often find that those they have come to "help" have more to teach them than they could have ever imagined. Immersing oneself in another culture reveals a shared humanity between Toronto students and native citizens, shattering the myth that people from the "developed" and "developing" world are somehow fundamentally different. Volunteering abroad drives

90

home the point that we now more than ever live in a global community in which we all share responsibility for the well-being of one another.

Many parents may have concern for the safety of their children in the developing world, such concerns can be exaggerated and a product of many negative stereotypes associated with the developing world. While the images of violence, poverty, and disease attached to the developing world are not unsubstantiated, students who travel abroad receive vaccinations prior to departure and are accompanied by security throughout the entirety of their stay. The security staff act more as a source of comfort than an actual deterrent- the students end up viewing the staff more as friends than guards within a week of the trip. Many educators would argue that it is precisely because violence, poverty, and disease exist in the developing world that it is important to allow our youth to travel abroad. Shielding children from the realities that billions of people on the Earth live with every day, only propagates ignorance and preserves an unjust status quo. It is precisely because these issues exist that we must encourage our youth to travel.

Pope Francis has decried the "globalization of indifference" in today's increasingly unequal world. Students who return from trips in the developing world return recognizing that the phrase, "that is not our problem" has no place in their lives. The Pope also has made clear that simply proclaiming Christianity isn't enough- words must be followed by actions. It is imperative that today's youth be encouraged and given the opportunities to act on the teachings regarding social justice they have studied in the classroom.

International travel has an educational value that cannot be quantified nor underestimated. It makes abstract teachings reality, demonstrating to Canada's future leaders that indifference to the plight of the most disadvantaged in our global society has no place in their lives.

91

# INTRODUCTION

An international excursion has many more potential risks and may involve activities that are outside the realm of standard excursion activities (e.g. airline travel, swimming on a coral reef etc.) There is no way to cover all potential variations or situations that may be part of an international excursion. Due to the potential higher risk and complexity of an international excursion there are planning aspects unique to this type of excursion.

Teachers/TCDSB staff etc. who wish to take students on an international excursion <u>must</u> hire a TCDSB approved outside agency (tour operator) to organize the excursion. The person/agency planning the excursion must follow the guidelines as laid out in this TCDSB document.

Getting TCDSB approval for an international excursion is in three steps:

- 1. Principal/coordinator approval for the planning process to be undertaken
- 2. Final approval from the Director of Education or designate for the international excursion
- 3. Signed parental/guardian approval

This section of the TCDSB Excursion Handbook is designed to assist TCDSB staff with the planning for an international excursion. It has been organized so that TCDSB staff can follow through the section and using the information and documents provided follow the 3 step process.

# General Requirements for TCDSB International Excursions from the TCDSB Excursion Handbook

The information in the first few pages, below, is a summary of some pertinent information from other areas of the TCDSB Excursion Handbook.

# **Restrictions on School Excursions and Activities**

#### Areas Where No Travel is Allowed

No school may organize travel to:

- (a) natural disaster areas
- (b) war zones
- (c) regions with political or civil instability.

Please check with Foreign Affairs Canada for information related to these issues. Foreign Affairs Canada (1-800-267-6788) (website: http://travel.gc.ca/)

# **Procedures for Taking Students on Excursions**

#### **Signing Contracts for Excursions**

Any contract must be signed by the person granting the approval for the excursion. That is as follows:

- Day trips Principal
- Overnight trips within Canada Superintendent
- International Trips Director of Education or designate

#### **Excursion Type and Who Grants Approval**

(If unsure of from whom to seek approval contact the Outdoor Education Department or your superintendent)

Excursion Type	Examples	APPROVED BY
Excursions - outside of Canada • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	<ul> <li>School excursion to Italy, United States, Germany etc.</li> <li>International Tournement (sports, arts etc.)</li> <li>Band or choir excursion to a foreign country</li> <li>School group (language, history etc.) trip to a foreign country</li> </ul>	Director of Education or designate upon recommendation of Superintendent and Principal

#### Types of TCDSB Excursions

#### (f) Trips/Excursions Outside of Canada:

These include one day and overnight trips. Because these trips have implications for health insurance and/or liability insurance, they require the approval of the Director of Education or designate.

# NOTE: "<u>Private trips</u>" are not to be considered as a TCDSB excursion. (refer to #17, pages 14 for more information on Board policies related to private trips.)

#### **Students Billeted in Homes in Other Locations**

Billeting students has often been used as a means of reducing costs for excursions as well as an opportunity for students to meet new people in different cultural situations.

The principal shall approve, in advance, any billeting arrangements.

Before planning any such arrangement, the supervisor-in-charge must make every effort to ensure that students are entering a safe and secure environment.

The teacher-in-charge shall include information about the accommodation and/or billeting arrangements on the Parent/Guardian Permission Form, including:

(i) the name(s) of the individual(s) with whom the student will be billeted;

- (ii) contact information, including the telephone number and address, of the individual(s) with whom the student will be billeted;
- (iii) whether any other students will be billeted with the student; and
- (iv) any other pertinent information regarding the individual(s) with whom the student will be billeted.

Where possible, students should be billeted in groups of two or more.

#### **Christmas Break or March Break Trips**

These popular trips are subject to all approvals as outlined in the Handbook. Teacher-organizers must first obtain approval, from their principal, **before starting** with any planning and/or contracts.

#### **Sunday Eucharist**

Where an excursion includes a Sunday, the teacher-in-charge of the excursion's plan shall specify participation in the Sunday Eucharist for all students and supervisors.

#### **Statement of Disclosure**

The vendor will fully disclose to the principal any intention to offer remuneration, gifts or other benefits to staff or staff family members participating in a school excursion.

No personal profit or remuneration will be gained by any staff or staff family members of the TCDSB in regards an excursion.

Any proceeds offered by the vendor will be directed to reducing the cost of the excursion for students.

No TCDSB staff member who also is a vendor for trips and excursions shall be permitted to operate a TCDSB excursion for student.

Please refer to TCDSB policy on Conflict of Interest Board Policy H.M.31.

# Additional Requirements for Planning a TCDSB International Excursion

# The Planning Process

As indicated in the introduction the planning process is divided into 3 steps:

- 1. Initial approval from the appropriate principal or coordinator this first step is designed to allow preliminary planning without having to finalize all the arrangements.
- The second step in the process involves final approval from the Director of Education or designate. At this stage all the documentation from the tour operator, dates, activities and cost have to be completed
- 3. The third and final step in the approval process is the parent/guardian information meeting and the signed approval from same.

# Principal's Responsibilities for International Excursions

There continues to be certain political and social unrest around the world. It is incumbent upon the organizers of any trip that takes students abroad to ensure that the intended destination is safe. In addition, trip organizers must ensure that students and their parents/guardians are fully apprised of the risks associated with international travel.

In addition to any other applicable requirements outlined in this Handbook (such as the overnight excursion requirements), trip organizers must take the following steps when an international excursion is planned:

- (a) Any contract must be signed by the Director of Education or designate.
- (b) The trip organizer must check with Foreign Affairs Canada and International Trade Canada (1-800-267-6788) (website: http://travel.gc.ca/) in advance of the excursion, to determine whether the intended destination has been deemed dangerous for travelers.

- (c) The trip organizer must enquire about, and pursue, cancellation options with the tour operator, in an effort to reduce the financial impact of a cancellation or delay of an international excursion.
- (d) The trip organizer must inform participants in international excursions that the excursion may be cancelled or delayed at some time in the future if there is political unrest, the threat of war or insurrection, or the threat of terrorism at the destination.
- (e) The trip organizer must inform participants of any risks associated with the international excursion, Board policy, and cancellation options.
- (f) If cancellation insurance is available for the international excursion, the trip organizer must require that all participants purchase such insurance.

If the trip organizer learns that the destination may be dangerous for travellers, the trip organizer must delay or cancel the international excursion.

### **Teacher-in Charge**

One teacher on any excursion must be appointed as "teacher-in-charge" of the excursion. Please note that occasional teachers are not to be considered as teacher-in-charge of an excursion. (Section 4.14, p. 25 – TCDSB <u>School Excursion Handbook</u>).

# **Choosing a Tour Operator**

When travelling to foreign countries planning is of paramount importance. There are professional tour operators who have the experience and expertise in planning these excursions. TCDSB has canvased many tour operators and has developed a list of approved operators. These tour operators have been made aware of the requirements expected by TCDSB. Any person planning an international excursion for TCDSB students **must** use one of these tour operators. A list of these recommended operators is available from the TCDSB link below:

http://intranet.tcdsb.org/Departments/BusinessServices/MaterialsManagement/Pages/Trav el-and-Tour-Operator's-List.aspx

### **Tour Leader or Manager**

The tour operator <u>must</u> provide a tour leader or manager for each TCDSB excursion. Tour operators must provide documentation of a current Police Reference Check, (PRC) including the Vulnerable Sector Screening Process, for the tour leader or manager prior to the excursion.

# PLANNING A TCDSB INTERNATIONAL EXCURSION

#### Step One

1. Read through Appendix I of the TCDSB Excursion Handbook

2. Gather General Information from TCDSB approved vendor (Document Two - Pre-Tour Checklist)

3. Complete Document One and submit to Principal/Coordinator

## Step Two

1. Gather specific information and complete all 4 pages of Document Three

2. Principal must complete Document 4

3 Submit both documents to Director of Education for approval

# **Step Three**

1. Parent/Guardian Student Meeting,

2. Confirm contract with TCDSB approved vendor

3.Collect money and Final forms

**Special Note:** Approval must be received before moving to the next step. This is a simplified version of the process. Reference to Appendix I of the TCDSB Excursion Handbook for specific information is necessary.

# Step One of the Planning Process for <u>TCDSB International Excursions - Approval of</u> <u>Principal/Coordinator</u>

To complete the first part of the planning process the teacher-in-charge is responsible to complete Document One, **"School Excursion Application Planning Form for International Excursions"**. The completed form with any supporting documentation is to be given to the appropriate school principal or department coordinator and once the document is approved the teacher-in-charge can then proceed to the next stage of the planning process.

Step One involves research and enough planning to allow the person approving the excursion an opportunity to make sure the excursion meets TCDSB requirements related to curricular relevance, cost, and safety. At this stage of the planning process the teacher-in-charge can contact tour operators but cannot commit to any formal agreement nor allow any marketing by tour operators to the students or parents/guardians. All research is for information purposes only so the person granting approval has enough information to make an informed decision. In addition if the teacher-in-charge wishes to inform students and parents/guardians of the nature of the excursion he/she must do so with the complete understanding that the excursion has not been approved but is only being considered.

Document Two, "Pre-Tour Checklist - Before Signing Agreement/Paying Deposit" can be provided to any prospective tour operator to facilitate the planning process. A more formalized checklist is included in the second part of the planning process once preliminary approval has been obtained. Written documentation from the tour operator is not required at this stage but may assist in gaining approval for the final stages of the planning process.

100

* 30000		Oocument One R ON APPROVAL APPLICAT -OF - CANADA AND INTERN	
Name of Teacher or Organ	nizer of Excursion		
Position of Responsibility	:	School:	
Type of Excursion:	Curricular:	Co-Instructional:	Both:
		el, accommodations, participants, activ g approval - use back of page if necess	
Curricular relevance or purp	ose of the excursion:		
Related Credit Courses: (if a	pplicable)		
Anticipated No. of Students	Involved:	Grade(s):	·
Dates: from	] Day Mont	tototh Year Day Month	Year
Estimated Cost For Entire G Accommodation:		Anticipated Sources of Rev School Accounts:	enue: \$
Travel:	\$	School Fund Raising:	\$
Cost of Occasional Teachers	\$	TCDSB Subsidies:	\$
Meals:	\$	Student's/Parent's Share:	\$
Programs/Materials:	\$	Other (a)	\$
Other:	\$	Other:(b) Teacher contributions	if \$
TOTAL:	\$	TOTAL:	\$
	list of student parti	proceed without approvals and sign cipants provided to the appropriate Dat approval of excursion refer to Section 4.7 p. 21 of <u>T</u>	Superintendent. te:
``````````````````````````````````````		ence Declaration) for the current sch	
	EXC		
Signature of Superir (All Overnight/Out of Canada/II			or Designate -of-Canada/International)
	EXCUR	SION NOT APPROVED	
Signature of Superir	ntendent		or Designate
(All Overnight/Out of Canada/In			

#### Document Two

# Pre-Tour Checklist before Signing Agreement/Paying Deposit

In addition to TCDSB Policy for School Excursions, all schools must follow the below procedures while booking tours with TCDSB approved vendors for international tours.

- 1) School must check the validity of Tour Operator's TICO & IATA certificate and get copies of same prior to booking trips/paying advance. This is to ensure against the Tour Operator's bankruptcy in order to recover the paid money.
- 2) School must get in writing information on the cancellation fees, administration fees for changes in itinerary or participants.
- 3) School must get in writing information on the Tour Operator's refund policy.
- 4) School must get the copy of current valid "Liability Insurance Certificate". Certificate must be a minimum of 2 million Canadian dollars. TCDSB must be listed as 'Additional insured" on the certificate.
- 5) School must get the copy of current valid "Errors & Omissions Certificate" (Professional) for a minimum of 1 million Canadian dollars. TCDSB must be listed as 'Additional insured" on the certificate.
- 6) School must ensure that tour leader/manager provided by operator for the tour must have a current clear police background check before they have any contact with students.
- 7) Tour Company must book travel arrangements in foreign countries and take responsibility for travel insurance and quality for same.
- 8) Tour Company must insure all activity providers comply with (as far as practicable) and have copies of OPHEA Safety Guidelines that relate to any specific activity in which students will be involved.
- 9) Travel tour operator should provide certified tour leader / manager as responsible for administering first aid and administering medications as required by students. If not by travel operator, then school should designate teacher, who can take care of these responsibilities.
- 10) Travel tour operator must provide "Risk Assessment Plan", "Safety Plan" & "Crisis Response Plan" for the following:
  - Students identified as anaphylactic
  - Students with allergies / life threatening allergies
  - Missing students
  - Care to be taken while using public transit
  - Handling & reporting of minor accidents & major accidents
  - Hotel & accommodation safety
  - Food Safety

(Page 1 of 2)

# Document Two

## Pre-Tour Checklist before Signing Agreement/Paying Deposit

- Water Safety (swimming/boating/canoeing etc.)
- How situation will be handled In case of weather/natural disaster, flight issues (delay/cancellation) and road transportation issues (breakdown, delay or cancellation). A written detailed explanation of areas of responsibility for all participants, (i.e. who makes the decision to change itinerary for inclement weather etc.) must be provided.
- Domestic /international destination issues (Security, Safe country, travel documents, weather conditions, pandemic outbreak, people, local foods, safety etc.),
- Night time security personnel provided (if applicable)
- List of emergency contact numbers including 24 hour emergency toll free number of tour operator & tour leader cell # as well as local office details or contacts at tour destination. This list must be accessible to chaperones/teachers/supervisors, Principals, Students and Parents.
- List of hospitals, emergency medical & ambulance numbers, consulate/embassies, local police at tour destination.
- 11) Travel tour operator must provide, in writing, a procedure for communicating changes to itineraries before and after departures. Document must be provided to school, teachers/leaders/chaperones, students and parents.
- 12) Travel Operator must provide travel insurance to all travelers that cover:
  - trip cancellation before departure, trip interruption, after departure & unused portion of pre-paid travel arrangements,
  - emergency medical insurance,
  - loss/damage/delay baggage & personal effects,
  - flight accident insurance
  - travel accident insurance.
- 13) Prior to the trip, the Travel operator must provide the detailed Itinerary sheets showing Transportation (Flight/bus details), Hotel reservations, Food/Activities and Public transports.
- 14) Prior to the trip, the travel operator must provide the details of travel documents required while booking for international tours including their assistance.

(Page 2 of 2)

# Step Two of the Planning Process for TCDSB International Excursions - Approval of Director of Education

Once step one is completed and approval has been given the teacher-in-charge can complete the planning process that will hopefully lead to approval from the Director of Education, or designate. Once this approval has been given the final approval process can take place.

This second step involves a more formalized and comprehensive planning process. All documentation and material from the tour operator must be attached to the final checklist.

At this stage of the process, the teacher can, if he/she wishes hold a "Marketing Meeting" with the vendor and interested parties. However it must be made clear to all parties that the excursion will not go forward until it has been approved by the Director of Education or designate.

Document Three "Excursion Approval Form and Documents/Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions" is a comprehensive list of the information that must be submitted to the Director of Education, or designate, for approval. The more complete the information and documentation the quicker and more likely approval will be granted. Since final booking cannot be made until the Director of Education or designate grants approval this information must be submitted in time to allow time for the final booking of the excursion.

Document Four is the "**Principal's Checklist for International Excursions**" that must accompany Document Three.

#### <u>Document Three</u> <u>Excursion Approval Form and Documents/Information Required from</u> <u>Tour Operator for all International Excursions</u>

Date of Excursion:					
Destination(s):					
School Name:	Date:				
Teacher-in-Charge:					
Travel Tour Operator Name:					
Travel Tour Operator Address:					
Travel Tour Operator TICO & IATA Number:					
Travel Tour Operator Contact Name:					
Travel Tour Operator Contact Number:					
Travel Tour Operator Contact E-mail:					
Name of Travel Insurance Company:					
□ Tour operator is from the TCDSB Approved	Vendor List				
$\Box$ A complete copy of trip itinerary is attached v	with explanation of activities				
□ A complete breakdown of trip costs is attached	ed				
□ Copy of Travel Tour Liabilities Insurance Cer	tificate has been attached.				
Copy of Errors and Omissions Certificate has	s been attached.				

Principal/Coordinator Signature Date

(Page 1 of 4)

## Please indicate with a checkmark (v) for complete, an (X) for not complete or NA (Not Applicable) for each of the following

#### NOTE: If an item is marked not complete (X) please provide an explanation and/or timeline as to when item will be completed

#### Tour Operator Responsibilities

Tour operator has provided the clear details of Administration & Cancellation fees before advance payment & contract sign Tour operator has provided valid IATA certificate for international ticketing & tours Tour operator has provided detailed itinerary sheets for transportation (flight / bus / train), hotel reservations, food & other activities if applicable Tour operator has provided details of travel documents required for international tours Tour operator has provided certified first aid administrator/tour leader for administering first aid & medications as required by participants Tour operator has provided valid Liability Insurance Certificate for a minimum of 2 million Canadian dollars - School or TCDSB name is included in this certificate as "additional insured" Tour operator has provided valid Errors & Omissions Certificate - School or TCDSB name is included in this certificate as "additional insured" Tour operator has provided information on Travel Insurance to cover trip cancellation / interruption, emergency medical, loss/damage/delay - baggage & personal effects & travel accident insurance to each participant Tour operator has provided current Police clearance certificate for background check of Tour Leader(s) / Manager(s), who is going with tour Tour operator has provided the process of communicating changes to Itineraries before and after departures that include School, teachers / chaperones, students and parents

(Page 2 of 4)

#### Please indicate with a checkmark (V) for complete, an (X) for not complete or NA (Not Applicable) for each of the following

#### NOTE: If an item is marked not complete (X) please provide an explanation and/or timeline as to when item will be completed

#### Risk Assessment & Safety Plan

- Arrangement has been made for students identified as Anaphylactic or students with one of the four Prevalent Medical Conditions during the excursion
  - \_\_\_\_\_ During flight
  - \_\_\_\_\_ Land or water transportation
  - \_\_\_\_\_ At hotel or other accommodation
  - \_\_\_\_\_ At all restaurants or any location where food is being served
- Supervisor-in-Charge will carry an Epi-pen or AUVI-Q and a copy of the **Student Plan of Care**, if students require one.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Student who has been identified as Anaphylactic will carry an Epi-pen or AUVI-Q
- Tour operator will be responsible for providing a person responsible to carry and administer an Epi-pen or AUVI-Q
- Arrangement is made for students requiring special care flight, hotel, bus, hotel etc.
- I have reviewed TCDSB handbook, TCDSB Protocols for Concussions
- \_\_\_\_\_ Action plan for missing students is prepared
- \_\_\_\_\_ Safety guidelines for using public transit have been prepared
- \_\_\_\_\_ Alternate arrangement plan for flight delay / cancellation have been prepared
- Alternate arrangement plan for road transportation issues (breakdown, delay or cancellation) have been prepared
- Tour Destination details for weather conditions, pandemic outbreak, security, safe country, people, local foods, travel documents required etc. have been provided
- \_\_\_\_\_ A plan for the Hotel & Accommodation safety for students has been provided
- \_\_\_\_\_ A plan related to food safety for students has been prepared
- All Physical Education activities, in which the students will take part, have been reviewed to ensure they meet the OPHEA Safety Guidelines
- A safety plan is in place for all activities, in which the students will take part, that are not covered by the OPHEA Safety Guidelines (e.g. construction of schools) For water transportation all Water Safety guidelines have been met
- \_\_\_\_\_ For water transportation, in case of inclement weather or breakdown plans for alternate /delayed or cancellation of travel have been provided
- \_\_\_\_\_ Night Time Security has been arranged
- \_\_\_\_\_ Bus seating plan completed

(Page 3 of 4)

#### Please indicate with a checkmark (V) for complete, an (X) for not complete or NA (Not Applicable) for each of the following NOTE: If an item is marked not complete (X) please provide an explanation and/or timeline as to when item will be completed

#### Emergency / Crisis Management Plan

- \_\_\_\_\_ A plan is in place for the handling & reporting procedure for minor accidents
- A plan is in place for the handling & reporting procedure for major accidents
- \_\_\_\_\_ A plan is in place if a student goes missing
- \_\_\_\_\_ A plan is in place for the handling & reporting procedure in case of weather / natural disaster
- A list of emergency contact numbers including 24 hours emergency toll free number of tour operator & tour leader cell # has been prepared and made accessible to chaperone/teachers, principal, students and parents.
- A list of appropriate hospitals, consulates / embassies, local police, medical & ambulance numbers for tour destination has been prepared and made accessible to chaperone/teachers, principal, students and parents.

(Page 4 of 4)

# Document Four

Notonto Catholic Fitter School Br

# Principal's Checklist for International Excursions

This form is to be completed by the principal, signed and attached to Document Three "Teacher-in-Charge Checklist".

Document I nree		narge Checklist".		
School:	Date:	indicates as action has been taken		
A checkmark indicates the action has been comp (NA) indicates the item is not applicable for the ex- explanations.				
I have reviewed Appendix I p. 92-93, "Princ Excursions".	ipal's Respon	sibilities for International		
I have reviewed Section 12 "Special Consi	derations for I	Princinals" pages 68-71 of The		
TCDSB Excursion Handbook.				
I have reviewed Section 4.25 "Excursion T pages 29-32, of <u>The TCDSB Excursion Ha</u>	indbook.	Required – What I have to do!"		
Tour operator is from the TCDSB Approved I have reviewed Sections 12.8 "Use of Pare		<b>/olunteers on Excursions</b> " pages		
69-70 and Section 12.9 "Requirements for	or Adult Volun	teers on Excursions" pages 70-		
71, of The TCDSB Excursion Handbook.				
I have reviewed with the teachers TCDSB h	andbook, <u>ANA</u>	PHYLAXIS – PROTOCOL AND		
GUIDELINES 2013, and Protocols for Preval	ent Medical Co	nditions, 2018		
I have reviewed with teachers TCDSB hand	lbook, <u>TCDSB</u>	Protocols for Concussions		
The school staff has been in-serviced regard	ding excursions	S.		
Standard Parent/Guardian Permission Form	is being used.			
provide teachers/supervisors with a copy of	the Student P	lan of Care, if a student requires		
one. Refer to <b>Protocols for Prevalent Med</b>	ical Condition	<u>s, 2018</u> .		
A parent meeting is being planned. Date if k	nown			
Arrangements will be made for students who	have been ide	entified with one of the four		
Prevalent Medical Conditions (Anaphylaxis,	Asthma, Diabe	tes, Epilepsy and Seizures).		
Arrangements will be made for students req	uiring special c	are.		
Every effort will be made to ensure that no s inability to pay.				
Arrangements will be made for students una	•			
Arrangements have been made for participa supervisors				
At least one of the supervisors/instructors is	-	t aid.		
All TCDSB water policies have been reviewe				
All TCDSB watercraft policies have been rev	All TCDSB watercraft policies have been reviewed.			
All TCDSB canoe-tripping policies have bee	n reviewed.			
All TCDSB private or rented aircraft policies	have been revi	iewed.		
There will be a copy at school, of any contra	• •			
All supervisors have been reminded to comp school year. <u>https://www.tcdsb.org/FORSTAFF/</u>		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Signature of Principal	Date	(Page 1 of 1)		
1	09			

# Step Three of the Planning Process for TCDSB International Excursions - Approval of Parent/Guardian

Once the excursion has been approved by the Director of Education, or designate, the teacher-in-charge is required to hold a parent/guardian information meeting. At this meeting the teacher-in-charge can provide complete information to students, parents/guardians. Once this meeting is held the teacher-in-charge can collect signed TCDSB forms required for an international excursion. The teacher-in-charge is required to complete the documentation necessary for this type of trip at least 8 weeks prior to the date of the excursion.

The TCDSB documentation required is:

- 1. Signed Parent/Guardian Permission Form
- 2. Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages)
- 3. Consent to Medical Treatment Form

# School Generated Parent/Guardian Permission Form for TCDSB International Excursions

The Parent/Guardian permission form is one of the most important documents being sent home. Two copies of this form should be sent to the parent/guardian for each student. One copy is to be signed and returned to the school, the second copy is to be kept by the parents/guardians for their information. The form shall contain, but is not limited to, the following information (where applicable):

- School Name
- Date
- Teacher-in-Charge
- Date of tour
- Full cost of tour
- Additional tour costs for which students' will be responsible
- Tour Cancellation Charges if trip cancelled by student
- Travel Tour Operator Name
- Travel Tour Operator Address

- Travel Tour Operator TICO & IATA Number
- Travel Tour Operator Contact Name
- Travel Tour Operator Contact Number
- Travel Tour Operator Contact E-mail

#### **Destination & Tour Details including**

- full itinerary with a comprehensive description of all activities
- the location of the excursion with relevant times and dates
- the nature and purpose of the excursion
- the supervision that will be provided and by whom
- transportation arrangements
- how parents will be contacted should an injury occur
- plans that are in place should cancellations, delays, alternate transportation arrangements become necessary
- indicate when students are being driven by a volunteer driver
- indicate when the volunteer driver is a student
- the cost of the activity for students and supervisors (where applicable) and any special needs such as lunches, clothes, money etc.
- indicate that Parents/Guardians are responsible to make the necessary arrangements if, for any reason, it becomes necessary to send their son/daughter home prior to the end of the excursion. The Board is in no way responsible for reimbursing parents/guardians if this situation occurs.
- a reminder that the parent/guardian should let the school know of any relevant medical conditions, e.g. allergies
- any additional information, which could have a bearing on whether, the parent/guardian would give or withhold permission for their child to fully participate in the excursion; and
- highlight any unusual factors, such as rigorous exercise, water sports, canoeing, etc.
   Special risks must be clearly brought to the attention of the students and the parent/guardian.
- a reminder that cancellation, travel and medical insurance coverage must be purchased as part of the package



# TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD STUDENT'S HEALTH AND SAFETY INFORMATION FORM

The information you provide on these forms is collected under the authority of the Education Act, R.S.O. 1991, Section170(1) and will be used for administration of school excursions and in the event of a medical emergency. All information is collected, used, disclosed, and disposed of in accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (RSO 1990 M.56).. If you have any questions regarding the collection or use of this information, please contact the school Principal.

School Name:			
Name of Child:		Date of Birth:	Sex: M- D M or F
First Name	Last Name	Y-	M- D M or F
Student's Home Address:			
Number	Street	City	Postal Code
Student's Home Phone Number:			
Mother's (Guardian's) Name:		Cell #	t:
Mother's (Guardian's) Address: _ (If different from student's)			
Place of Employment:		Phone #: _	
Father's (Guardian's) Name:		Cell #	t:
Father's (Guardian's) Address:			
Place of Employment:		Phone #: _	
Family Doctor:		Phone #:	
Does your child have a Student F	Plan of Care for one of the	e following:	
Anaphylaxis 🗌 🦳 Asthma [	Diabetes	Epilepsy and Seizure	
Provide details of any special con in his/her participation in a full ac			taken into consideration
Allergy: □insect □plant □food □o	drug/serum	y or sensitivity:	
Does your child carry an Epi Pen	or AUVI-Q? Yes 🗌 No	•	
Asthma:			
Diabetes:			
Epilepsy or Seizure:			
Feet or Legs:			
Heart:			
Skin:			



# TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD STUDENT'S HEALTH AND SAFETY INFORMATION FORM

Recent illness or operation:		
Other:		
Concussion(s) date(s):		
Details of Concussion:		
Blood type (if known):		
Date of last Tetanus shot (if known):		
If there are any other medical details that you safety of your child, please contact the teacher details.		
Signature of Parent or Guardian (or student over the age of 18 years or students	– s 16 or 17 years old who ha	Date ve withdrawn from parental control)
Signature of Teacher-in-charge of Excursion		Date

(Page 2 of 2)



# TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD CONSENT TO MEDICAL TREATMENT

(a) When on Field Trips

and (b) When parents cannot be contacted

The information on this form is collected under the authority of the Education Act, R.S.O. 1991, Section170(1) and will be used for administration of school excursions and in the event of a medical emergency. If you have any questions regarding the collection or use of this information, please contact the school Principal.

To: Any Qualified Health Care Provider

# CONSENT TO MEDICAL TREATMENT

I hereby consent to the administration of any medical treatment deemed by any qualified medical practitioner to be necessary for the health and welfare of my child, \_\_\_\_\_

Child's Name

including the administration of an anesthetic and the performance of any necessary operation during the period \_\_\_\_\_\_ to

	Y - M - D
Y-M-D	
Dated at thi	is day of
Parent Contact Numbers:	Cell:
Parent email:	
Signature of Parent or Guardian	Date

(or student over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control)

(Page 1 of 1)



# Definitions and Contacts related to planning a TCDSB International Excursion

<u>The International Air Transport Association</u> (IATA) is the trade association of airlines. Our 240 members comprise 84% of the total air traffic.

The Travel Industry Council of Ontario (TICO) is a self-managed, not-for-profit corporation, responsible for administering and enforcing the Ontario *Travel Industry Act, 2002* and Ontario Regulation 26/05 on behalf of the Ontario government. The legislation governs all of the approximately 2,500 travel retailers and travel wholesalers registered in Ontario. In addition, TICO administers an industry-financed Travel Compensation Fund to protect against bankruptcy/services not provided for the money paid in advance.

<u>Liability Insurance Certificate</u> – proof that provider has liability insurance to cover personal/body injury, property damage, incidental professional and malpractice, environmental impairment, sexual assault, non-owned automobile etc. For TCDSB the minimum amount is 2 million Canadian dollars – copies available from the vendor's insurer.

<u>Errors & Omissions Certificate</u> (Professional) – proof that provider has liability insurance, to pay for damages incurred if the professional's services are deemed to be faulty. For TCDSB the minimum amount is 1 million Canadian dollars – copies available from the vendor insurer.

**IMIAT** – International Association for Medical Assistance to Travellers (imiat.org).

**<u>OPHEA</u>** – Ontario Physical Health Educational Association – The provincial organization responsible for The Ontario Physical Education Safety Guidelines

<u>The Ontario Physical Education Safety Guidelines</u> represent the minimum standards for risk management practice for school boards. They focus the attention of teachers, intramural supervisors and coaches on safe practices, in every activity, in order to minimize the element of risk. To access these guidelines: <u>www.safety.ophea.net</u>

#### **Canadian Contacts**

- 1) Government of Canada Office travel.gc.ca/offices
- Foreign Affairs Canada and International Trade Canada (1-800-267-6788) website - http://travel.gc.ca/
- Canadian Emergency Watch and Response Centre (Ottawa) 613-996-8885 (call collect)
  - a. Email: sos@international.gc.ca
  - b. Consult: travel.gc.ca/emergencies
- 4) Travel updates
  - a. travel.gc.ca/updates
  - b. travel.gc.ca/rssfeeds
  - c. Follow DFAIT on Twitter at @DFAIT\_MAECI
- 5) Information/Issues Concerning Canadian Passports

passportcanada.gc.ca

1-800-567-6868

Twitter – twitter.com/passportcan

Facebook – facebook.com/passportcan

You Tube - youtube.com/passportcan

From outside Canada 819-997-8338

# **APPENDIX II**

# CONSIDERATIONS FOR EXCURSION APPROVAL (PRINCIPAL/SUPERINTENDENT)



# CONSIDERATIONS FOR EXCURSION APPROVAL (Principal/Superintendent)

This two-page list of questions is intended to be a guide to assist the person responsible for granting approval for an excursion. Depending on the nature and duration of the excursion, some items may have a greater importance and some not applicable. Each situation is unique so please adapt the list to suit your situation.

- Have you reviewed Section 12 "Special Considerations for Principals" pages 72-75, of The TCDSB Excursion Handbook?
- Have the teachers reviewed Section 13 "Special Considerations for Teachers" pages 76-79, of The TCDSB Excursion Handbook"?
- Has the school staff been in-serviced regarding excursions?
- Has the school staff been in-serviced regarding safety?
- What is the educational value of the trip?
- What is the name of the teacher-in-charge of the trip?
- Is there an outline for the trip?
- For excursions where it is needed has an Excursion Approval Form been completed and sent to the person granting approval?
- For excursions where it is needed has the Principal's Checklist been completed and submitted with the Excursion Approval Form?
- Is the standard Parent/Guardian Approval Form being used?
- Have all Student Health Information and Medical Consent Forms been completed?
- Have the Student Plans of Care for the Four Prevalent Medical Conditions been shared?
- What arrangements are included for students requiring special care?
- What is the number of male and female students?
- What is the number of male and female supervisors?
- What efforts have been made to ensure that no student is prevented from participation through inability to pay?
- What arrangements have been made for students remaining in school?

(Page 1 of 2)



# CONSIDERATIONS FOR EXCURSION APPROVAL (Principal/Superintendent)

- If the excursion includes a Sunday have arrangements been made for participation in the Sunday Eucharist for all students and supervisors?
- Is there a copy of a list of student participants and emergency contacts:
  - with the teacher-in-charge on file at the school?
- Is there a copy of a list of staff members, including statement of health records, next of kin and emergency contact numbers:
  - with the teacher-in-charge on file at the school?
- Is there a list of emergency support services in the area e.g. police, hospital etc.? (names and numbers where possible)
- First Aid Training: What is the name of the person qualified? What is the nature of the qualification?
- Is there an Emergency Action Plan in place for injuries?
- Is there an Emergency Action Plan in place for transportation?
- Is there a map showing the trip route, itinerary?
- Is there a copy on file at the school of any contract or proposed contract with any travel agent?
- Are there any water activities included in the trip plans?
  - If so, how are TCDSB water policies to be implemented?
- Are there any small watercraft activities included in the trip?
  - If so, how are TCDSB watercraft policies to be implemented?
- Are there any canoe tripping activities included in the trip?
  - If so, how are TCDSB canoe tripping policies to be implemented?
- Are there any private or rented aircraft activities included in the trip?
  - If so, how are TCDSB private or rented aircraft policies to be implemented?

# **APPENDIX III**

# CHARTS

# Excursion Type and Permission Form Required

Excursion Type	Permission Form(s) Required	Approved By
Use of local site	<b>Parent/Guardian Permission Form – Local and Regular Use Sites</b> (page 130)	Principal
Supplementary programs offered at different locations	<b>Parent/Guardian Permission Form – Local and Regular Use Sites</b> (page 130)	Principal
One day trips within Canada • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) Consent/Waiver Form - (OSBIE or Vendor supplied) – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required	Principal
One day trips within Canada involving water related activities • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	<ul> <li>Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2)</li> <li>Consent/Waiver Form - (OSBIE or Vendor supplied) – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (page 133-4) – as required</li> </ul>	Superintendent upon recommendation of Principal
Overnight excursions within Canada • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	School Excursion Approval Application Form (page 127) Principal's Checklist (page 128-9) Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) Consent/Waiver Form (OSBIE or Vendor supplied) – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (page 133-4) – as required	Superintendent upon recommendation of Principal

	Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (page 101)	
	Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents/	Director of
<ul> <li>Excursions - outside of Canada</li> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> </ul>	Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (page 105-108)	Education or
	Principal's Checklist International Excursions (page 109)	designate upon recommendation
	Parent/Guardian Permission Form (pages 131-2)	of Superintendent and Principal
	<b>Consent/Waiver Form (OSBIE or Vendor supplied)</b> – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required	
	Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (page 133-4) – as required	

# Excursion Type and Steps Required –

#### What I have to do!

The following chart is intended as a guide to assist teachers in organizing excursions. However teachers **must** review the relevant sections of the Handbook when planning an excursion. An excursion that involves watercraft, water activities, additional risk etc. requires further planning than what is outlined below.

Steps Required – What I have to do!		
hission Form – Local and Regular Use Sites (page 130) shool year for entire school year. Two copies needed, one copy returned by the student and one copy retained by the art in the excursion, one copy carried by teacher-in-charge and office prior to <b>each</b> excursion. Care reviewed and carried for those students who require <b>n for Injuries</b> completed once each school year for the local covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147) <b>n for Transportation</b> completed once each school year for \ optimize and the permission form. (refer to page 147)		
e site(s) covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152) <b>dission Form – Local and Regular Use Sites</b> (page 130) shool year for entire school year. Two copies needed, one copy returned by the student and one copy retained by the art in the excursion, one copy carried by teacher-in-charge and office prior to <b>each</b> program or excursion. Care reviewed and carried for those students who require <b>n for Injuries</b> completed once for each program covered by fer to page 147) <b>n for Transportation</b> completed once for each program		
fe		

Excursion Type	Steps Required – What I have to do!
	<ol> <li>Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) - completed once for each excursion. Two copies needed, one copy is to be signed and returned by the student and one copy retained by the parent/guardian.</li> <li>OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for use with higher risk activities (page 138) – as</li> </ol>
One day trips within Canada	<ul> <li>required)</li> <li>3. Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (page 133-4) – as required</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Co-Instructional Programs</li> <li>Curricular</li> </ul>	<ol> <li>List of students taking part in the excursion, one copy carried by teacher-in-charge and one copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> program or excursion.</li> <li>Copy of Student Plan of Care reviewed and carried for those students who require one</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for One-Day Excursion (Injuries and Transportation)</li> </ol>
	completed once for each program covered by the permission form. (refer to page 154)
	1. School Excursion Approval Application Form (page 127) - completed for each excursion and sent with completed <i>Principal's Checklist</i> to Superintendent for approval.
	<ol> <li>Principal's Checklist (page 128) completed once for each excursion and attached to School Excursion Approval Application Form.</li> </ol>
	3. Have a parent meeting at least 3 weeks prior to each excursion.
	4. Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) - completed once for
	each excursion. Two copies needed, one copy is to be signed and returned by the student
Overnight excursions within Canada	<ul> <li>and one copy retained by the parent/guardian.</li> <li>OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for higher risk activities (page 138) as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (page 133-4) – as required</li> <li>Student's Health and Safety Information Form (pages 135-6) - completed once for each</li> </ul>
Co-Instructional	excursion. The teacher-in-charge must sign and keep a copy of this form with them and
Programs	one copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> excursion.
Curricular	8. Student Plan of Care for Anaphylaxis, Asthma, Diabetes, Epilepsy and Seizure – as
	required, a copy should be carried by the supervising teacher(s)
	9. Consent To Medical Treatment Form (page 137) - completed once for each excursion.
	The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to <b>each</b> excursion.
	10. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the
	permission form. (refer to page 147)
	11. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered
	by the permission form. (refer to page 152)

Excursion Type	Steps Required – What I have to do!			
	<ol> <li>Document One: School Excursion Application Form for International Excursions (refer to page 101) - completed for each excursion and sent to school principal or department head for approval. If necessary Document Two: Pre-Tour Checklist before Signing Agreement/Paying Deposit provided to tour operator (page 102-3).</li> </ol>			
	<ol> <li>Document Three: Excursion Approval Form and Documents / Information Required from Tour Operator for all International Excursions (4 pages) (refer to pages 105-108) and Document 4: Principal/Coordinator's Checklist (refer to page 109) Complete both and forward to Director of Education or designate for approval.</li> <li>Once approval from Director of Education or designate then teacher-in-charge can:         <ul> <li>have a parent/guardian meeting to outline trip at least 3 weeks prior to</li> <li>excursion</li> </ul> </li> </ol>			
Excursions - outside of Canada • Co-Instructional Programs • Curricular	<ul> <li>excursion</li> <li>Parent/Guardian Permission Form – All Excursions (page 131-2) - completed once for each excursion. Two copies needed, one copy is to be signed and returned by the student and one copy retained by the parent/guardian.</li> <li>OSBIE Informed Consent Form – for higher risk activities (page 138) – as required</li> <li>Student Participation Checklist for Water Related Activities (page 133-4) – as required</li> <li>Student's Health and Safety Information Form (2 pages) (refer to pages 135-6) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must sign and keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion</li> <li>Student Plan of Care for Anaphylaxis, Asthma, Diabetes, Epilepsy and Seizure – as required, a copy should be carried by the supervising teacher(s)</li> <li>Consent To Medical Treatment Form (refer to page 137) - completed once for each excursion. The teacher-in-charge must keep a copy of this form with them and one copy left in school office prior to each excursion.</li> <li>Make it a requirement that all participants purchase Travel Medical and Trip Cancellation Insurance.</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Injuries completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 147)</li> <li>Emergency Action Plan for Transportation completed once for each excursion covered by the permission form. (refer to page 152)</li> </ul>			

# **APPENDIX IV**

# TCDSB EXCURSION

FORMS

#### SCHOOL EXCURSION APPROVAL APPLICATION FORM Use for: ALL OVERNIGHT EXCURSIONS WITHIN CANADA

	: ALL OVERNIG	GHT EXC	URSIONS	WITHIN CAN	IADA
Name of Teacher or Organizer of	f Excursion				
Position of Responsibility:			School:		
Type of Excursion: Curricular:	Co-Instructio	onal:	Both:		
Excursion Description: (location) and any relevant information to a					
Curricular relevance or purpose					
Related Credit Courses: (if applicate					
Name(s) of Approved Superviso	r(s):				
Anticipated No. of Students Invo	lved:		Grade	(s):	
Dates: from Your child will be transported by Charter Bus Public Trans Other (please specify):	it 🗌 Volunteer Dr	appropriate iver	): Student Volun		<del></del>
Estimated Cost For Entire Gro			ed Sources of	Revenue:	
Accommodation:	\$	School A	ccounts:		\$
Travel:	\$	School F	und Raising:		\$
Cost of Occasional Teachers	\$	TCDSB S	Subsidies:		\$
Meals:	\$	Student's	/Parent's Sha	are:	\$
Programs/Materials:	\$	Other (a)			\$
Other:	\$	Other:(b)	Teacher contribu	utions if applicable	\$
TOTAL:	\$	TOTAL:			\$
It is understood that this excu completed, and a finalized list Signature of Principal: (indicates recommendation of this excursion	of student particip	oants prov	ided to the a		perintendent.
Have all supervisors compl YesNo Excursion Approved	eted their iCOD (	Offence		) for the curre lot Approved	ent school year.
Signature of Superintender (All Overnight Excursions)		or	-	of Superinter ght Excursio	



#### PRINCIPAL'S CHECKLIST This form is to be completed by the principal, signed and attached to the Excursion Approval Form.

A checkmark indicates the action has been completed. A blank indicates no action has been taken. (NA) indicates the item is not applicable for the excursion. Please use the back of the form to add any explanations.

- \_\_\_\_\_ I have reviewed Section 12 **"Special Considerations for Principals"** pages 69-70, of <u>The</u> <u>TCDSB Excursion Handbook</u>.
- \_\_\_\_\_ I have reviewed Section 4.25 "Excursion Type and Steps Required What I have to do!" pages 29-32, of <u>The TCDSB Excursion Handbook</u>.
- I have reviewed Sections 12.8 "Use of Parent/Guardian Volunteers on Excursions" pages 69-70 and Section 12.9 "Requirements for Adult Volunteers on Excursions" pages 70-71, of <u>The TCDSB Excursion Handbook</u>.
- I have reviewed with the teachers TCDSB handbook, <u>ANAPHYLAXIS PROTOCOL AND</u> <u>GUIDELINES 2013</u>, and <u>Protocols for Prevalent Medical Conditions, 2018</u>
- \_\_\_\_\_I have reviewed with teachers TCDSB handbook, TCDSB Protocols for Concussions
- \_\_\_\_\_ The school staff has been in-serviced regarding excursions.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Standard Parent/Guardian Permission Form is being used.
- \_\_\_\_\_ A parent meeting is being planned. Date if known \_\_\_\_\_\_
- \_\_\_\_\_ Arrangements will be made for students who have been identified as anaphylactic.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Arrangements will be made for students requiring special care.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Copies of any Student Plan of Care will be shared and carried by the supervisor(s)
- \_\_\_\_\_ Every effort will be made to ensure that no student is prevented from participation through inability to pay.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Arrangements will be made for students unable to take part in the excursion.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Arrangements have been made for participation in the Sunday Eucharist for all students and supervisors
- \_\_\_\_\_ At least one of the supervisors/instructors is qualified in first aid.
- \_\_\_\_\_ All TCDSB water policies have been reviewed.
- \_\_\_\_\_ All TCDSB watercraft policies have been reviewed.
- \_\_\_\_\_ All TCDSB canoe-tripping policies have been reviewed.
- \_\_\_\_\_ All TCDSB private or rented aircraft policies have been reviewed.
- \_\_\_\_\_ There will be a copy, on file at the school, of any contract or proposed contract with any travel agent.
- \_\_\_\_\_All supervisors have been reminded to complete their iCOD (Offence Declaration) for the current school year. <u>https://www.tcdsb.org/FORSTAFF/iCodDocs/Pages/default.aspx</u>

Signature of Principal

Date

(Page 1 of 1)

# **TEACHERS' CHECKLIST**

String School Bro

of the excursion, some items may have a greater importance. Adapt the list to suit your situation.

- Preliminary written proposal submitted to school principal well in advance of excursion date(s) (8-10 weeks).
- \_\_\_\_ Principal's approval/support obtained.
- TCDSB Application for School Excursion Form submitted and school's superintendent's signed approval obtained.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Detailed program developed (includes site visit, pre-trip activities, activities on site, equipment needs, student checklists, reservations at sites and so on) and approved by principal.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Parents/Guardians informed of details of trip.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Parent/Guardian meeting held.
- Two copies of the Parent/Guardian Permission Form sent out and one signed copy returned for each student.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Health Information Forms and Consent to Medical Treatment Forms given to students.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Student Health & Safety Information Forms and Consent to Medical Treatment Forms have been completed and returned for all students.
- \_\_\_\_\_I have obtained and read any Student Plans of Care for Anaphylaxis, Asthma, Diabetes, Epilepsy and Seizure.
- If the excursion includes a Sunday arrangements have been made for participation in the Sunday Eucharist for all students and supervisors.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Emergency Action Plan for Injuries is completed. (Appendix V, page 148)
- \_\_\_\_\_ Emergency Action Plan for Transportation is completed. (Appendix V, Page 153)
- Emergency Action Plan for Day Trips (where applicable) is completed. (Appendix V, Page 155)
- I have reviewed "When an Injury Occurs" on pages 149-150 of <u>The TCDSB</u> <u>Excursion Handbook</u>

I have reviewed TCDSB handbook, <u>ANAPHYLAXIS – PROTOCOL AND GUIDELINES</u> <u>2013</u>, and Protocols for Prevalent Medical Conditions, 2018

- I have reviewed the TCDSB handbook, TCDSB Protocols for Concussions
- \_\_\_\_\_ Arrangements have been made for students who have been identified as anaphylactic.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Clear established routine for handling emergencies is in place.
  - ◆ Accidents ◆ Lost Students ◆ Fire ◆ Anaphylaxis
- \_\_\_\_\_ List of students and emergency contact left with:
  - ◆ Teacher-in-charge ◆ School ◆ Superintendent
- \_\_\_\_\_ Post-trip presentation to parents/guardians, other students, is planned.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Students have proper identification.
- \_\_\_\_\_A "buddy system" has been organized with the students.

# ASTONIO Calling

# TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

# PARENT/GUARDIAN PERMISSION FORM LOCAL AND REGULAR USE SITES (Annual Use Form)

School: \_\_\_\_\_

The school will be using (specific name of church, hall, park etc.)

This/These facility(ies) is/are to be used on a regular basis throughout the \_\_\_\_\_\_ -

\_\_\_\_\_ school year for the students of grade \_\_\_\_\_\_.

I give permission for my child, \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ to take part in supervised activities at the above named location(s) for the school year \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ -

**Principal's Signature** (indicates approval of this/these events). (To be signed before copies are sent for signature of parent/guardian)

Date

Signature of Parent or Guardian Date (or student over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control)



#### TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PARENT/GUARDIAN PERMISSION FORM – ALL EXCURSIONS

School:		
I/We give permission for my/our child,	Student's full name	
To go on the school excursion to:		
Nature and purpose of the excursion:		
We will not be participating in water related act	ivities	
$\hfill\square$ We will be participating in water related activitie	es – see attached Additional Excursi	on Information form
Departure time from school:	_ Departure Date:	
		Y-M-D
Anticipated return time to school:	Return Date:	
Nous shild will be transported by (sheet, all that are		Y-M-D
Your child will be transported by (check all that are		-
Charter Bus Public Transit Volunteer I Other (please specify):	—	
Teacher-in-Charge		
Supervisor(s): (1)		
	(4)	
Cost of Excursion \$ per student:	Cost of Excursion \$ per supervise	or: (if applicable)
Extra costs for students:	·	

The receipt of the following information is acknowledged by the signature of the parent or guardian.

- 1. If an excursion is organized without approval being obtained, the TCDSB declines to assume financial or other responsibility of personal liability incurred by students and/or their parent(s)/guardian(s) in connection with their private arrangements for excursions which are not part of the school curriculum.
- 2. Each child's parent(s)/guardian(s) is/are to receive a copy of the pertinent information contained on the approval form
- 3. Please indicate on the back of this form or on the **Student Health Information Form** any relevant medical information concerning your child.
- 4. If an alternate travel, accommodation or activity plan for your child has been made, list details on the reverse side and sign that your permission is given for these changes.
- 5. Parents/Guardians are responsible for making the necessary arrangements if, for any reason, it becomes necessary to send their child(ren) home prior to the end of the excursion. The TCDSB is in no way responsible for reimbursing parents/guardians if this situation occurs.

Principal's Signature (indicates approval of this/these events). (To be signed before copies are sent for signature of parent/guardian) Date

Date

(or student over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control)



# TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FORM – ALL EXCURSIONS

Additional Information:

We will be participating in water related activities: The Activities Include:

In order to participate in the activity listed above your child must pass a Swim Test as stated in the Ontario Physical Health Education Association (OPHEA) Safety Guidelines. Alternatively, your child must hold one of the following current certificates: Swim to Survive or Swim to Survive+ (both received within 12 months of the excursion); or Bronze Medallion or higher (certified within 24 months of the excursion).

☐ Your child may still participate wearing a properly fitting Personal Flotation Device (PDF) as per the OPHEA Safety Guidelines.

Your child can not participate in the water portion of the activity listed above if they do not pass the swim test

#### Parent/Guardian: please check the appropriate boxes below:

My Child has a Current Certificate – copy attached. I give my child permission to participate in the water activities listed.

I give permission for my child to do the Water Competency Test (to be administered by an NL Certified Lifeguard and documented by a representative of the school). If my child passes the test, I give my child permission to participate in the water activities listed.

I do **NOT** give permission for my child to participate in any water activities. My child has permission to participate in any other non-water related activities.

Principal's Signature (indicates approval of this/these events). (To be signed before copies are sent for signature of parent/guardian) Date

Signature of Parent or Guardian Date (or student over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control)

(page 2 of 2)

TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOAF			STUDENT PARTICIPATION CHECKLIST FOR WATER RELATED ACTIVITIES			
School: Principal: Teacher: Class Grade: Date:		Addres Instruct	or Name: ing Society ID	#:		
STUDENT NAME	DID NOT PASS SWIM TEST or HAVE SWIM Certificate	PASS OPHEA SWIM TEST Administered NL Certified Lifeguard Valid within 12 months of the activity or excursion	TO SURVIVE d CERTIFICATE	HAS SWIM TO SURVIVE + CERTIFICATE Grade 7-12 (copy attached) Valid within 12 months of the activity or excursion	Has CURRENT (within 24 months of certification date) Bronze Cross, Bronze Medallion or Higher (copy attached)	
1.						
2.						
3.						
4.						
5.						
6.						
7.						
8.						
9.						
10.						
11.						
12.						
13.						

STUDENT NAME	DID NOT PASS SWIM TEST or	PASS OPHEA SWIM TEST Administered NL Certified	HAS SWIM TO SURVIVE CERTIFICATE Grade 4-6	HAS SWIM TO SURVIVE + CERTIFICATE Grade 7-12	Has CURRENT (within 24 months of certification date) Bronze Cross,
	HAVE SWIM Certificate	Lifeguard Valid within 12 months of the activity or excursion	(copy attached) Valid within 12 months of the activity or excursion	(copy attached) Valid within 12 months of the activity or excursion	Bronze Medallion or Higher (copy attached)
14.					
15.					
16.					
17.					
18.					
19.					
20.					
21.					
22.					
23.					
24.					
25.					
26.					
27.					
28.					
29.					
30.					
31.					
32.					

### **REPORT APPENDIX B**



### TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD STUDENT'S HEALTH AND SAFETY INFORMATION FORM

The information you provide on these forms is collected under the authority of the Education Act, R.S.O. 1991, Section170(1) and will be used for administration of school excursions and in the event of a medical emergency. All information is collected, used, disclosed, and disposed of in accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (RSO 1990 M.56).. If you have any questions regarding the collection or use of this information, please contact the school Principal.

School Name:				
Name of Child:			Date of Birth: Y- M- D	Sex:
First N	lame	Last Name	Y- M- D	M or F
Student's Home Add	ress:			
Number	Street	City Postal Code		
Student's Home Pho	ne Number:			
Mother's (Guardian's	) Name:		Cell #:	
Mother's (Guardian's	) Address:			
(If different from student's) Place of Employment			Phone #:	
Father's (Guardian's)	) Name:		Cell #:	
Father's (Guardian's) (If different from student's)	) Address:			
•			Phone #:	
			<b>5</b> 1 <i>1</i>	
Family Doctor:			Phone #:	
Does your child have	a Student Plan o	f Care for one of the	following:	
Anaphylaxis 🗌	Asthma 🗌	Diabetes	Epilepsy and Seizure	
Provide details of any in his/her participatio	•		ave which must or should be take ram:	n into consideration
Allergy: □insect □pla	nt □food □drug/s	erum □other allergy	y or sensitivity:	
Does your child carry	/ an Epi Pen or Al	JVI-Q?Yes 🗌 No		
Asthma:				
Diabetes:				
Epilepsy or Seizure:				
Feet or Legs:				
Heart:				
Skin:				



### TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD STUDENT'S HEALTH AND SAFETY INFORMATION FORM

Recent illness or operation:		
Other:		
Concussion(s) date(s):		
Details of Concussion:		
Blood type (if known):		
Date of last Tetanus shot (if known):		
If there are any other medical details that you safety of your child, please contact the teacher details.	at school or use the space b	
	_	
Signature of Parent or Guardian (or student over the age of 18 years or students	s 16 or 17 years old who ha	Date ve withdrawn from parental control)
Signature of Teacher-in-charge of Excursion		Date

(Page 2 of 2)



### TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD CONSENT TO MEDICAL TREATMENT

(b) When on Field Trips

and (b) When parents cannot be contacted

The information on this form is collected under the authority of the Education Act, R.S.O. 1991, Section170(1) and will be used for administration of school excursions and in the event of a medical emergency. If you have any questions regarding the collection or use of this information, please contact the school Principal.

To: Any Qualified Health Care Provider

### **CONSENT TO MEDICAL TREATMENT**

I hereby consent to the administration of any medical treatment deemed by any qualified medical practitioner to be necessary for the health and welfare of my child, \_\_\_\_\_

Child's Name

including the administration of an anesthetic and the performance of any necessary operation during the period \_\_\_\_\_\_ to

Y – M – D

Y – M – D

Dated at \_\_\_\_\_ this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Parent or Guardian Date (or student over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who have withdrawn from parental control)



The \_\_

(Name of school)

\_\_\_\_\_ is arranging

(Description of activity and dates)

### THIS FORM MUST BE READAND SIGNED BY EVERY STUDENTWHO WISHES TO PARTICIPATE AND BY A PARENT OR GUARDIAN OFA PARTICIPATING STUDENT.

#### **ELEMENTS OF RISK:**

Educational activity programs, such as the activity listed above, involve certain elements of risk. Injuries may occur while participating in these activities.

The risk of sustaining injuries can result from the nature of the activity and can occur without any fault of either the student, or the school board, its' employees/agents or the facility where the activity is taking place. By choosing to take part in this activity, you are accepting the risk that you/your child may be injured. The chance of an injury occurring can be reduced by carefully following instructions at all times while engaged in the activity.

If you choose to participate in \_\_\_\_\_\_ on \_\_\_\_\_, you must understand that you bear the responsibility for any injury that might occur.

The Toronto Catholic District School Board does not provide accidental death, disability, dismemberment or medical expense insurance on behalf of the students participating in this activity.

### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

WE HAVE READ THE ABOVE. WE UNDERSTAND THAT IN PARTICIPATING IN THE ACTIVITY DESCRIBED ABOVE, WE ARE ASSUMING THE RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH DOING SO.

Signature of Student:		Date:
Signature of Parent/Guardian:		Date:
PERMISSION I give	_ permission to participate in the _	(Description of activity)
Signature of Parent/ Guardian:		Date:



### VOLUNTEER DRIVER - AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSPORT STUDENTS – PART 1

This will authorize: \_\_\_\_\_

(Name of Volunteer Driver)

to transport students participating in the events listed on the attached school schedule **OR** to transport students participating in the following school activity:

Driver's License No.:	Driver's Pho	one No.:	
Vehicle Information: Make:	Year:	License No.	
Vehicle Owner:			

(Vehicle owner's name)

If the volunteer driver is not the vehicle owner then a completed part 2 must be attached.

Insurance Co.: \_\_\_\_\_

Policy No.:

If volunteer driver is a student then a completed part 3 must be attached.

### Driver Declaration: Please read carefully before signing.

- 1. I declare that I hold a valid unrestricted Ontario Class G2 or better license.
- 2. I understand that when transporting students, safety is my first responsibility. Since it is important to focus on driving and to reduce driver distractions I will not use a cellular phone (hand-held or hands-free or any other hand-held (mobile) wireless communication device while driving students. Wireless hand-held devices include but are not limited to cellular phones, Blackberrys, PDAs, MP3 players, GPS, etc. Hand-held (mobile) wireless communication devices can only be used when the vehicle is safely parked.
- 3. I understand that the TCDSB will not provide legal advice nor assistance to anyone charged in relation to the use of hand-held (mobile) wireless communication devices.
- 4. I declare that I am using a licensed automobile, which carries valid automobile Third Party Liability insurance, with a limit on liability of at least \$1,000,000. In addition the vehicle has; Accident Benefit and Uninsured Automobile coverage
- 5. I understand that the TCDSB's Excess Automobile Liability insurance comes into effect only after the vehicle owner's primary Third Party Liability insurance limit has been exhausted. The TCDSB's Third Party Liability insurance provides protection up to a total of \$20 million for each occurrence.
- 6. I understand that there is no coverage provided by the TCDSB's insurance for damage to a volunteer or employee's vehicle. In addition there is no coverage for a premium adjustment as the result of an accident while the vehicle is being operated for TCDSB activities.
- 7. I understand that according to provincial legislation, passengers who are injured would recover accident benefits coverage from their own or a parent's/guardian's automobile policy. In the absence of a personal or family automobile policy, the passenger would then be eligible to recover benefits from the insurance policy covering the vehicle in which they are riding.
- 8. I understand that if a vehicle is equipped with a front seat passenger-side airbag, students must not be transported in that seat if they do not meet the minimum requirements for safety, unless the airbag has been properly deactivated. According to the latest information from Transport Canada, all children aged 12 and under should be seated in the back of any vehicle where the air bag has not been properly deactivated.
- 9. I promise to provide the school TCDSB with prompt written notice, with particulars, of any accident arising out of the use of a licensed automobile during a trip on TCDSB-related business.

Driver's Signature (indicates the above has been read and agreed to)

Date

Date

School Name

Principal's Signature

**REPORT APPENDIX B** 



### VOLUNTEER DRIVER - AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSPORT STUDENTS - PART 2

This part must be completed if the volunteer driver is not the vehicle owner.

### Declaration to be signed by the vehicle owner.

- 1. I declare that I have read the Driver Declaration on the first part of this authorization form.
- 2. I declare that I have authorized \_\_\_\_\_\_ to drive my vehicle to transport students participating in the school events listed.
- 3. I declare that he/she holds an unrestricted G2 or better driver's license, is authorized to drive and is insured as an operator under the vehicle's liability insurance.
- 4. I declare the vehicle described above is mechanically fit and that there are seatbelts in good working condition for all passengers and that appropriate car/booster seats are used.

Owner's Signature (indicates the above has been read and agreed to)



### VOLUNTEER DRIVER - AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSPORT STUDENTS - PART 3 STUDENT VOLUNTEER DRIVER AUTHORIZATION

Date

### If the volunteer driver is a student the following must be completed:

Date of driver education course: \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Y - M - D

I am aware that my son/daughter \_\_\_\_

(Name of Volunteer Driver)

\_\_\_\_\_ will be a volunteer

driver and will be transporting other students.

Parent/Guardian Signature

Date

**REPORT APPENDIX B** 

.0	No Cat/	b.
10	+	16
Dist	\$	Pard
''ic	School	8.

Loronto Catholis	TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
First School As	EXCURSION ORDER
Ticl School B	FOR TTC TICKETS ONLY
SCHOOL _	LOCATION #
DATE OF 1	TRIP:

n	EST	'INI	AΤ	'IN	NI-
D	EOI	IIN	ЯΙ	IU	IN.

TORONTO TRANSIT TICKETS	QUANTITY
ADULTS	
CHILDREN (12 YEARS OF AGE OR UNDER)	
STUDENTS (19 YEARS OF AGE OR UNDER)	

SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL:	DATE:
	Y – M - D
FOR BOARD USE ONL	.Ү
REQUISITION #	
Cost Centre: Cost Element/GL	Acct:
DATE ORDERED:	
SIGNATURE:	

### PLEASE SEND COMPLETED FORM TO STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SERVICES, CEC



### TORONTO CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD MEDIA CONSENT FORM

I,(Name of Parent/Guardian)	, hereby give my consent to
(Name of Parent/Guardian)	
The Toronto Catholic District School Boar	d for my child,
, (	of,
(Name of Student)	of, (Name of School)
to participate in the media activity on	
	(Date)
at	, and to be filmed,
at(Location)	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
audiotaped, videotaped or photographed l	by print or broadcast media.
I also consent to my child being interviewe printing by the news media on the followin	ng topics:
Signature of Parent/Guardian (or student over the age of 18 years or students 16 or 17 years old who h	ave withdrawn from parental control)
Date	

This personal information is collected under the authority of the Education Act and is used for the purpose of promoting Catholic education in Toronto.

### **OSBIE Incident Report Form**

The OSBIE incident report form is to be accessed at the following OSBIE website:

http://www.osbie.on.ca/incident-reports/

A copy of the file will be sent by OSBIE to TCDSB Risk Management Department.

**REPORT APPENDIX B** 

### **APPENDIX V**

# EMERGENCY ACTION PLANS (EAP)

### INTRODUCTION TO EMERGENCY ACTION PLANS

### 1. Emergency Action Plan for Injuries

Given that there is an element of risk in all physical activity, an encounter with an injury or accident is highly possible. Recognizing this fact, it is necessary to establish a plan of action for dealing with an emergency when it occurs. The key to the **Emergency Action Plan for Injuries** is getting the professional care to the injured person as quickly as possible. For that to happen efficiently and effectively, you must be prepared with an **Emergency Action Plan for Injuries**. A fill-in-the-blanks copy of an **Emergency Action Plan for Injuries** can be found on page 147.

Please review the section "When an Injury Occurs" pages 149-150 prior to going on any excursion.

### 2. Emergency Action Plan for Transportation

In any situation where transportation (e.g. bus, car, train, plane, boat, canoe, horse etc.) is part of an excursion there are a variety of concerns that must be dealt with prior to the excursion. An **Emergency Action Plan for Transportation** must be completed so that plans are in place to deal with emergencies that may arize. A copy must accompany the teacher-in-charge and a copy kept on file at the school. A fill-in-the-blanks copy of an **Emergency Action Plan for Transportation for Transportation** can be found on page 152.

### 3. Emergency Action Plan for One Day Excursion (Page 154)

This form is a simplified version of the two forms above. It contains all the information needed for a single day excursion.

### **EMERGENCY ACTION PLAN FOR INJURIES**

The following is a sample **Emergency Action Plan for Injuries** taken from information found in: <u>Ministry of Tourism/Recreation booklet "Exercise Caution,</u> <u>Prevent Sport Injuries, 1988" and Ministry of Tourism/Recreation Provincial Sport</u> <u>Organizations Risk Management Manual, 1987.</u>

### Each supervisor on the excursion should know the following information:

- 1. Location and access to the first-aid kit.
- 2. Location and access to a telephone.
- 3. Telephone number of ambulance (if area does not have 911 service).
- 4. Telephone number of hospital.
- 5. Know directions and best access routes to hospital.
- 6. Each supervisor should be made aware of the students who are carrying medication, such as inhalers, EpiPen® or Allerject®.

### **Additional Information for Overnight Excursions**

When on an overnight excursion the following information should be included as part of the EAP:

- 7. The teacher-in-charge of the excursion should have a copy of each student's "Health and Safety Information Form". (Appendix IV, p. 135-6)
- The teacher-in-charge of the excursion should have a copy of each student's "Consent to Medical Treatment Form". (Appendix IV, page 137)
- 9. Each supervisor should know the telephone number and location of any overnight accommodation.
- A copy of the Student Plan of Care, if a student requires one for Anaphylaxis, Asthma, Diabetes, Epilepsy and Seizure (Refer to the Protocols for Prevalent Medical Conditions Handbook 2018)

	<b>ACTION PLAN FOR INJURIES</b>
School:	Date:
Principal:	Contact No:
1. Teacher-in-charge	Contact No:
2. Teacher-in-charge	Contact No:
Date of Excursion:	
Destination:	
Location of first aid kit:	
Location of telephone:	
Name of nearest hospital	Telephone No:
911 emergency service available: Yes No	If no ambulance number:
Location of Parent/Guardian emergency meeting	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
See above if different from above comp	
Telephone No.:	Contact Name:
Location and access to first aid kit:	
Location and access to telephone:	
Name of nearest hospital See above	erent from above complete below.
Name of nearest hospital	Telephone No:
Describe Location	
How will parents be notified if an emergency sho	ould arise:
Location of Parent/Guardian emergency meeting School Office Other (explain)	g: School Library Gymnasium

### When An Injury Occurs

Please review the following information prior to taking part in an excursion.

- 1. Initially, when coming in contact with the injured student, take control and assess the situation.
- 2. Keep in mind the Cardinal Rule of Injury Care:

### A. DO NOT MOVE THE INJURED STUDENT.

### B. IF A STUDENT CANNOT START A MOVEMENT BY HIMSELF/HERSELF, DO NOT MOVE THE BODY PART FOR HIM/HER.

- 3. Instruct any bystanders to leave the injured student alone.
- 4. Leave any of the student's equipment in place.
- 5. Evaluate the injury. Once you have assessed the severity of the injury, decide whether or not further assistance is required.
- 6. If an ambulance is not needed, then decide what action is to be taken to remove the injured student from the playing surface.
- 7. If an ambulance is required:
  - a) Request assistance from another person (teacher/administrator/parent).
  - b) Have this person call an ambulance with the following information:
    - I. State that it is a medical emergency;
    - II. State what the emergency is;
    - III. Give exact location and closest cross streets;
    - IV. Give the telephone number from where you are placing the call;
    - V. Report back to the **in-charge** person and confirm that you made the call and give estimated time of arrival;
    - VI. Go to the access entrance and wait for the ambulance.

- 8. Once the call has been placed, observe the injured student carefully for any change in condition and try to reassure the injured student until professional help arrives.
- 9. Do not be forced into moving the injured student unnecessarily.
- 10. Do not provide the injured student with food or drink.
- 11. Stay calm. Keep an even tone in your voice.
- 12. When ambulance attendants arrive, instruct them on what happened, how it happened and what you have done. If aware, you can inform them about any medical-related problems or past injuries of the participant.
- 13. The **in-charge person or a designated adult** should accompany the injured student to hospital to help reassure the student and give the relevant medical history and injury circumstances to the physician.
- 14. THE PARENTS/GUARDIANS OF THE INJURED STUDENT MUST BE CONTACTED as soon as possible after the injury.
- 15. Complete an accident report and file with appropriate TCDSB Official and school administrator.
- 16. Establish emergency communication procedure for off-site activities e.g. cellular phone.

### **Emergency Action Plan for Transportation**

An **Emergency Action Plan for Transportation** may include but are not limited to items such as:

- 1. Proof of adequate insurance. (NOTE: *If the school is using a bus company taken from a TCDSB approved list proof of insurance is not necessary. (For information on insurance refer to Appendix X, page 170-2)*
- 2. The school should have readily available, in the office, a list of all contact names in respect of the excursion. This would include the teacher-in-charge, transport company and destination.
- 3. A list of contact number(s) for each student should be in the possession of the teacher-in-charge of the excursion and on file at the school.
- 4. Students should receive full safety briefings regarding the use of emergency gear and emergency procedures, possibly from the transportation provider, in advance of the excursion.
- 5. Contingency plans should be formulated for each aspect of the excursion, and should be shared with supervisors, students and transportation provider.
- 6. For excursions involving boating activities, the boat operator should be notified of the number of students under 40 kilograms, as these students will require a child's lifejacket. The excursion should not proceed if the boat does not have the requisite number of proper-fitting lifejackets for all adults and students, as well as any other necessary lifesaving equipment.
- 7. Where appropriate, a route map should be posted at the school and be part of the parent information night. Copies should be made available to parents.

- 8. Where appropriate a proposed itinerary, listing anticipated risks and countermeasures should be posted at the school and be part of the parent information night. Copies should be made available to parents.
- 9. A procedure for notifying parents in case of an emergency should be available at the school and for overnight excursions, be part of the parent information night. Copies should be made available to parents. A meeting place for parents should be planned for in case an emergency arises.
- 10. The teacher-in-charge of the excursion must organize a "buddy system" so that student numbers can be determined quickly, in the event of an emergency.
- 11. Where appropriate, a location should be designated to the students as the place to meet should an emergency arise. (e.g. Meet at the flagpole outside the building if the fire alarm should sound and evacuation became necessary or if travelling by subway and the student does not get off with the group the student should get off at the next stop and wait for a supervisor to retrieve them.)
- 12. Where appropriate a bus seating plan must be completed and a copy kept by the teacher-in-charge and a copy kept on file at the school office. Blank copies of various bus seating plans can be found on pages 155-7.

### **REPORT APPENDIX B**

T	MERGENCY ACTION PLAN FOR TRANSPORTATION
ER School <sup>80</sup> Sch	nool: Date:
Principal:	Contact No:
1. Teacher-in-o	charge Contact No:
2. Teacher-in-o	charge Contact No:
Date of Excurs	sion:
1. Destination:	
Contact Name	: Contact No:
2. Destination:	
Contact Name	: Contact No:
Other Exp	ansport: School Bus Highway Coach Aircraft Automobile
1. Carrier:	
	n: Phone No.:
	TCDSB approved list: Yes No If no, proof of adequate insurance must be attached
-	ncy Action Plan for Transportation form. ing safety briefing: Carrier Teacher-in-charge Other
2. Carrier:	
	n: Phone No.:
	TCDSB approved list: Yes No IIf no, proof of adequate insurance must be attached
to this Emerge	ncy Action Plan for Transportation form.
	ing safety briefing: Carrier Teacher-in-charge ther
How will paren	ts be notified if an emergency should arise:
Location of Pa	rent/Guardian emergency meeting: School Library Gymnasium
School Office	Other (explain)
Bus seating pla	an completed: Yes No

### Combined Emergency Action Plan (Transportation/Injuries) for One Day Excursions

This form is a simplified version of the two previous forms and is intended to be used for one-day excursions since the information required for one-day excursions is usually simpler than for more involved overnight excursions. However if necessary the two single page versions of EAP forms for injury and/or transportation can be used for one-day excursions.

Stort Carlos EMERGENCY	ACTION PLANS - ONE DAY EXCURSIONS
	INJURIES
School:	Date:
Principal:	Contact No:
1. Teacher-in-charge	Contact No:
2. Teacher-in-charge	Contact No:
Date of Excursion:	
Location of telephone:	
Location of epi-pen® or allerject®:	
Names of students who have been	n identified as anaphylactic:
Name of nearest hospital	Telephone No:
911 emergency service available:	Yes No If no, ambulance number:
Describe location of hospital:	

### TRANSPORTATION

1. Destination:		
Contact Name: Contact No:		
Mode(s) of Transport: School Bus Highway Coach Aircraft Automobile		
1. Carrier:		
Contact Person: Phone No.:		
Carrier is from TCDSB approved list: Yes No If no, proof of adequate insurance must be attached		
to this Emergency Action Plan for Transportation form.		
Person reviewing safety procedures: Carrier Teacher-in-charge Other		
How will parents be notified if an emergency should arise:		
Location of Parent/Guardian emergency meeting: School Library Gymnasium		
Bus seating plan completed: Yes No		



### SCHOOL BUS SEATING PLAN FOR GRADES K-5

### THREE STUDENTS PER SEAT

SCHOOL: \_\_\_\_\_ DATE: \_\_\_\_\_

### FRONT OF BUS

Α	В	С	D	Е	F
<u>SEAT 1A</u>	<u>SEAT 1B</u>	<u>SEAT 1C</u>	<u>SEAT 1D</u>	<u>SEAT 1E</u>	<u>SEAT 1F</u>
<u>SEAT 2A</u>	<u>SEAT 2B</u>	<u>SEAT 2C</u>	<u>SEAT 2D</u>	<u>SEAT 2E</u>	<u>SEAT 2F</u>
<u>SEAT 3A</u>	<u>SEAT 3B</u>	<u>SEAT 3C</u>	<u>SEAT 3D</u>	<u>SEAT 3E</u>	<u>SEAT 3F</u>
SEAT 4A	<u>SEAT 4B</u>	<u>SEAT 4C</u>	SEAT 4D	<u>SEAT 4E</u>	<u>SEAT 4F</u>
<u>SEAT 5A</u>	<u>SEAT 5B</u>	<u>SEAT 5C</u>	<u>SEAT 5D</u>	<u>SEAT 5E</u>	<u>SEAT 5F</u>
<u>SEAT 6A</u>	<u>SEAT 6B</u>	<u>SEAT 6C</u>	<u>SEAT 6D</u>	<u>SEAT 6E</u>	<u>SEAT 6F</u>
<u>SEAT 7A</u>	<u>SEAT 7B</u>	<u>SEAT 7C</u>	<u>SEAT 7D</u>	<u>SEAT 7E</u>	<u>SEAT 7F</u>
<u>SEAT 8A</u>	<u>SEAT 8B</u>	<u>SEAT 8C</u>	SEAT 8D	<u>SEAT 8E</u>	<u>SEAT 8F</u>
<u>SEAT 9A</u>	<u>SEAT 9B</u>	<u>SEAT 9C</u>	<u>SEAT 9D</u>	<u>SEAT 9E</u>	<u>SEAT 9F</u>
<u>SEAT 10A</u>	<u>SEAT 10B</u>	<u>SEAT 10C</u>	<u>SEAT 10D</u>	<u>SEAT 10E</u>	SEAT 10F
<u>SEAT 11A</u>	<u>SEAT 11B</u>	SEAT 11C	<u>SEAT 11D</u>	<u>SEAT 11E</u>	<u>SEAT 11F</u>
<u>SEAT 12A</u>	<u>SEAT 12B</u>	<u>SEAT 12C</u>	<u>SEAT 12D</u>	<u>SEAT 12E</u>	<u>SEAT 12F</u>

**REPORT APPENDIX B** 

### SCHOOL BUS SEATING PLAN

### **TWO STUDENTS PER SEAT**

SCHOOL: \_\_\_\_\_ DATE: \_\_\_\_\_

### FRONT OF BUS

Α	В	С	D
<u>SEAT 1A</u>	<u>SEAT 1B</u>	<u>SEAT 1C</u>	<u>SEAT 1D</u>
<u>SEAT 2A</u>	<u>SEAT 2B</u>	<u>SEAT 2C</u>	<u>SEAT 2D</u>
<u>SEAT 3A</u>	<u>SEAT 3B</u>	<u>SEAT 3C</u>	<u>SEAT 3D</u>
<u>SEAT 4A</u>	<u>SEAT 4B</u>	<u>SEAT 4C</u>	<u>SEAT 4D</u>
<u>SEAT 5A</u>	<u>SEAT 5B</u>	<u>SEAT 5C</u>	<u>SEAT 5D</u>
<u>SEAT 6A</u>	SEAT 6B	<u>SEAT 6C</u>	<u>SEAT 6D</u>
<u>SEAT 7A</u>	<u>SEAT 7B</u>	<u>SEAT 7C</u>	<u>SEAT 7D</u>
<u>SEAT 8A</u>	SEAT 8B	<u>SEAT 8C</u>	<u>SEAT 8D</u>
<u>SEAT 9A</u>	SEAT 9B	<u>SEAT 9C</u>	<u>SEAT 9D</u>
<u>SEAT 10A</u>	<u>SEAT 10B</u>	<u>SEAT 10\C</u>	<u>SEAT 10D</u>
<u>SEAT 11A</u>	<u>SEAT 11B</u>	SEAT 11C	<u>SEAT 11D</u>
<u>SEAT 12A</u>	<u>SEAT 12B</u>	<u>SEAT 12C</u>	<u>SEAT 12D</u>





### **HIGHWAY COACH SEATING PLAN**

SCHOOL: \_\_\_\_\_DATE: \_\_\_\_\_

### FRONT OF BUS

Α	В		С	D
<u>SEAT 1A</u>	<u>SEAT 1B</u>		<u>SEAT 1C</u>	<u>SEAT 1D</u>
<u>SEAT 2A</u>	<u>SEAT 2B</u>		<u>SEAT 2C</u>	<u>SEAT 2D</u>
<u>SEAT 3A</u>	<u>SEAT 3B</u>		<u>SEAT 3C</u>	<u>SEAT 3D</u>
<u>SEAT 4A</u>	<u>SEAT 4B</u>		<u>SEAT 4C</u>	<u>SEAT 4D</u>
<u>SEAT 5A</u>	<u>SEAT 5B</u>	-	<u>SEAT 5C</u>	<u>SEAT 5D</u>
<u>SEAT 6A</u>	<u>SEAT 6B</u>		<u>SEAT 6C</u>	<u>SEAT 6D</u>
<u>SEAT 7A</u>	SEAT 7B		<u>SEAT 7C</u>	<u>SEAT 7D</u>
<u>SEAT 8A</u>	SEAT 8B		<u>SEAT 8C</u>	<u>SEAT 8D</u>
<u>SEAT 9A</u>	SEAT 9B		<u>SEAT 9C</u>	<u>SEAT 9D</u>
<u>SEAT 10A</u>	SEAT 10B		<u>SEAT 10C</u>	SEAT 10D
<u>SEAT 11A</u>	SEAT 11B		<u>SEAT 11C</u>	SEAT 11D
<u>SEAT 12A</u>	SEAT 12B		<u>SEAT 12C</u>	SEAT 12D
<u>SEAT 13A</u>	SEAT 13B		<u>SEAT 13C</u>	SEAT 13D
<u>SEAT 14A</u>	<u>SEAT 14B</u>	<u>SEA</u>	<u>T 14C</u>	WASHROOM

# APPENDIX VI SUGGESTIONS FOR VOLUNTEERS ON EXCURSIONS

### SUGGESTIONS FOR VOLUNTEERS ON EXCURSIONS

Field trips are a wonderful way for teachers to enhance what their students are learning in the classroom. They also provide parents an opportunity to be directly involved in their child's education. Here are some tips to help you, and your child, get the most out of field trips:

**Volunteer if you can:** Taking a day off from work to chaperone a field trip is a great way to see what your child is learning and what your child and his/her friends are really like at school. Research shows that children whose parents are involved in school do better than those whose parents are not. So, if you can, take the time to chaperone a field trip

**Save conferences for later:** Avoid the temptation to discuss your child's progress with the teacher during a field trip. As a chaperone, you have responsibilities and the teacher needs to stay focused on the details of the field trip. Schedule another time where both you and the teacher can focus on your child.

**Leave the siblings at home:** Field trips are designed to reinforce what the students have been studying in class. Therefore, the field trip won't be as meaningful to younger siblings. Besides, other children could distract you from your role as chaperone. If the destination is truly wonderful, plan a second trip, with the whole family, later.

**Be a model:** How students behave is a reflection on the school. Therefore, principals and teachers expect students' behaviour to be exemplary. Chaperones should model good behaviour by listening to and following the rules laid out by the teacher. Let the students see you paying attention when the teacher, principal, or featured speaker is talking. If you're driving, obey the speed limit, wear your seat belt, do not use wireless communication devices and please don't smoke around the children.

**Be in charge:** As a chaperone, you're not along to be the students' buddy. You're the boss. Enforce the rules consistently, right from the beginning. Be stern, if necessary, and make sure the students understand the consequences for any misbehaviour.

**Be discreet:** The teacher may need to divulge private information to you about one of the students (e.g., medical condition), or you may overhear private conversations among the students. In either case, keep the information to yourself unless there's an emergency.

**Keep to the schedule:** Field trips are carefully orchestrated, with set times for arrival, departure, lunch, and events. It's important that all the chaperones follow the schedule precisely and keep the kids on time all day long.

**Focus on the children:** Although chaperoning may be a good opportunity to meet other parents, you need to stay focused on keeping your group of students together and on task. If you want to meet other parents, organize a get-together or attend a PTA meeting.

**Be honest with the teacher:** Don't wait until the end of the field trip to "vent" serious frustrations. Immediately report to the teacher if the children in your group behave in an unsafe or disrespectful manner.

**Pass along compliments:** Let the teacher know if you get compliments about your group's or the school's behaviour while on the trip. Congratulate the children, as well, for being excellent ambassadors for the school.

**One last thought -** if you're not one of the "official" chaperones, please don't be an "unofficial" one. When other parents show up at field trip destinations, it causes problems for the teacher and school. Remind yourself that the field trip is a learning opportunity for the class, not a family outing. The best thing non-chaperone parents can do is to be eager listeners when their children return from the field trip.

Adapted from: *Report to Parents*, by National Association of Elementary School Principals.

## **APPENDIX VII**

# THE INSTITUTE FOR CATHOLIC EDUCATION DOCUMENTS (ICE)

### THE INSTITUTE FOR CATHOLIC EDUCATION (ICE)

The Institute for Catholic Education is dedicated to working with, bringing together, and assisting all those who share responsibility for English Catholic education in their efforts to promote and maintain Catholic schools animated by the Gospel and reflecting the tenets of the Catholic faith.

The Institute was established by the Bishops of Ontario in 1986. Recognizing the collaborative nature of Catholic education, the direction of the Institute for Catholic Education is confined to a board of Directors with representatives from the associations of Catholic Bishops, teachers, trustees, parents and administrators.

Institute for Catholic Education, 10 St. Mary Street, Suite 604, Toronto, Ontario M4Y 1P9, Telephone: 416-962-0031, Fax: 416-962-1672

This material is used with the permission of the Institute for Catholic Education. Its use does not imply sponsorship or approval of the other contents of this publication by the Institute for Catholic Education.

### USING THE GRADUATE EXPECTATIONS

### <u>Context</u>

This image of the learner was developed by the Institute for Catholic Education in consultation with representatives of the Catholic community across Ontario.

The life roles, knowledge, skills and attitudes outlined in this document describe the distinctive expectations that the Catholic community has for graduates of Catholic secondary schools.

These expectations are based on research which identified current and future educational goals and priorities across the province and enhance the expectations of the Ontario Ministry of Education and Training as outlined in provincial curriculum documents.

### **REPORT APPENDIX B**

### Purpose

The starting point for the design of a provincial curriculum framework begins with the learning expectations which define what all students are expected to know, to do and to value when they graduate from secondary school.

The knowledge, skills and values described in this document create a common reference point from which Catholic curriculum writers can develop more comprehensive and specific curriculum in each subject area.

Catholic curriculum and resource materials, at all grade levels, contribute to achieving these expectations for graduating students. Teachers in Catholic schools will use these expectations to make curriculum decisions concerning program planning, instructional strategies, evaluation and assessment.

Catholic schools provide educational programs and services for students with a variety of learning needs and abilities. This framework document recognizes the need for flexibility to accommodate individual student differences.

As growth to full Christian maturity is a lifelong journey, we recognize that the attainment of these expectations will continue beyond graduation from secondary school. Because faith development is also an internal process, some expectations are beyond quantitative measurement.

We know too, that because of our human condition, we cannot expect to achieve all of these guiding principles perfectly; yet we persevere courageously, grounded in our essential humanity and humble dependence on God.

The Christian vision regarding the value of the human person and his/her journey is passed on only through community. Therefore, it is imperative that everyone in the Catholic community shares the responsibility to educate our young people.

The Institute for Catholic Education encourages students, teachers, parents, guardians, school councils, employees, business, labour community groups and individuals to discuss and use this document to guide the education and faith formation of students in Ontario Catholic schools.

### EXPECTATIONS OF THE ONTARIO CATHOLIC SCHOOL GRADUATE

### CATHOLICISM'S CORE UNDERSTANDING OF THE HUMAN CONDITION

Distinctive expectations for graduates of Catholic schools are determined and shaped by the vision and destiny of the human person emerging from our faith tradition. This Christian anthropology or world view, reveals the dignity and value of the person. Our tradition tells us God creatively and lovingly calls each of us into the wonder of life, sustaining us by the power of the Holy Spirit, throughout the human journey, into life eternal. We acknowledge that the journey includes moments of brokenness and sin. We recognize in the person of Jesus, the risen Christ, the human face of God sharing our life in order to heal us of our brokenness and liberate us from sin.

This Christian vision of the human journey is best understood within the context of relationship. It is accomplished in community, in solidarity with brothers and sisters in the Church and beyond.

Catholic education views human life as an integration of body, mind, and spirit. Rooted in this vision, Catholic education fosters the search for knowledge as a lifelong spiritual and academic quest. The expectations of Catholic graduates, therefore, are described not only in terms of knowledge and skills, but in terms of values, attitudes and actions.

### **VISION OF THE LEARNER**

### THE GRADUATE IS EXPECTED TO BE:

- 1. A discerning believer formed in the Catholic Faith community who celebrates the signs and sacred mystery of God's presence through word, sacrament, prayer, forgiveness, reflection and moral living.
- 2. *An effective communicator* who speaks, writes and listens honestly and sensitively, responding critically in light of gospel values.
- 3. A reflective, creative and holistic thinker who solves problems and makes responsible decisions with an informed moral conscience for the common good.
- 4. A self-directed, responsible, lifelong learner who develops and demonstrates their God-given potential.
- 5. A collaborative contributor who finds meaning, dignity and vocation in work which respects the rights of all and contributes to the common good.
- 6. A caring family member who attends to family, school, parish, and the wider community.
- 7. *A responsible citizen* who gives witness to Catholic social teaching by promoting peace, justice and the sacredness of human life.

### 1. A DISCERNING BELIEVER FORMED IN THE CATHOLIC FAITH COMMUNITY WHO:

- a. Illustrates a basic understanding of the **saving story** of our Christian faith.
- b. Participates in the **sacramental life** of the church and demonstrates an understanding of the centrality of the Eucharist to our Catholic story.
- c. Actively reflects on **God's Word** as communicated through the Hebrew and Christian scriptures.
- d. Develops attitudes and values founded on Catholic **social teaching** and acts to promote social responsibility, human solidarity and the common good.
- e. Speaks the **language of life**..."recognizing that life is an unearned gift and that a person entrusted with life does not own it but that one is called to protect and cherish it." (Witnesses to Faith)
- f. Seeks intimacy with God and celebrates **communion** with God, others and creation through prayer and worship.
- g. Understands that one's purpose or **call in life** comes from God and strives to discern and live out this call throughout life's journey.
- h. Respects the **faith traditions**, world religions and the life-journeys **of all people of good will**.
- i. Integrates faith with life.
- j. Recognizes that "sin, human weakness, conflict and forgiveness are part of the human journey" and that the cross, the ultimate sign of forgiveness is at the heart of **redemption**. (Witnesses to Faith)

### 2. AN EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATOR WHO:

- a. Listens actively and critically to understand and learn in light of gospel values.
- b. Reads, understands and uses written materials effectively.
- c. Presents information and ideas clearly and honestly and with sensitivity to others.
- d. Writes and speaks fluently one or both of Canada's official languages.
- e. Uses and integrates the Catholic faith tradition, in the critical analysis of the arts, media, technology and information systems to enhance the quality of life.

### 3. A REFLECTIVE AND CREATIVE THINKER WHO:

- a. Recognizes there is more grace in our world than sin and that hope is essential in facing all challenges.
- b. Creates, adapts, and evaluates new ideas in light of the common good.
- c. Thinks reflectively and creatively to evaluate situations and solve problems.
- d. Makes decisions in light of gospel values with an informed moral conscience.
- e. Adopts a holistic approach to life by integrating learning from various subject areas and experience.
- f. Examines, evaluates and applies knowledge of interdependent systems (physical, political, ethical, socio-economic and ecological) for the development of a just and compassionate society.

### 4. A SELF-DIRECTED, RESPONSIBLE, LIFE LONG LEARNER WHO:

- a. Demonstrates a confident and positive sense of self and respect for the dignity and welfare of others.
- b. Demonstrates flexibility and adaptability.
- c. Takes initiative and demonstrates Christian leadership.
- d. Responds to, manages and constructively influences change in a discerning manner.
- e. Sets appropriate goals and priorities in school, work and personal life.
- f. Applies effective communication, decision-making, problem-solving, time and resource management skills.
- g. Examines and reflects on one's personal values, abilities and aspirations influencing life's choices and opportunities.
- h. Participates in leisure and fitness activities for a balanced and healthy lifestyle.

### 5. A COLLABORATIVE CONTRIBUTOR WHO:

- a. Works effectively as an interdependent team member.
- b. Thinks critically about the meaning and purpose of work.
- c. Develops one's God-given potential and makes a meaningful contribution to society.

- d. Finds meaning, dignity, fulfillment and vocation in work which contributes to the common good.
- e. Respects the rights, responsibilities and contributions of self and others.
- f. Exercises Christian leadership in the achievement of individual and group goals.
- g. Achieves excellence, originality, and integrity in one's own work and supports these qualities in the work of others.
- h. Applies skills for employability, self-employment and entrepreneurship relative to Christian vocation.

### 6. A CARING FAMILY MEMBER WHO:

- a. Relates to family members in a loving, compassionate and respectful manner.
- b. Recognizes human intimacy and sexuality as God given gifts, to be used as the creator intended.
- c. Values and honours the important role of the family in society.
- d. Values and nurtures opportunities for family prayer.
- e. Ministers to the family, school, parish, and wider community through service.

### 7. A RESPONSIBLE CITIZEN WHO:

- a. Acts morally and legally as a person formed in Catholic traditions.
- b. Accepts accountability for one's own actions.
- c. Seeks and grants forgiveness.
- d. Promotes the sacredness of life.
- e. Witnesses Catholic social teaching by promoting equality, democracy, and solidarity for a just, peaceful and compassionate society.
- f. Respects and affirms the diversity and interdependence of the world's peoples and cultures.
- g. Respects and understands the history, cultural heritage and pluralism of today's contemporary society.
- h. Exercises the rights and responsibilities of Canadian citizenship.
- i. Respects the environment and uses resources wisely.
- j. Contributes to the common good.

## **APPENDIX VIII**

# LIST OF TRANSPORTATION SUPPLIERS

For the most up-to date list of TCDSB approved transportation suppliers go to Student Transportation Services on the TCDSB's

Sharepoint website at:

http://sharepoint01/sts/default.aspx Check under "Bus Companies"

## **APPENDIX IX**

# GRADUATED LICENSING FOR AUTOMIBILE DRIVERS

### **Graduated Licensing for Automobile Drivers**

As of April 1, 1994, all new drivers applying for their first car license enter Ontario's Graduated Licensing System (GLS). Graduated licensing lets new drivers get driving experience and skills gradually. The two-step licensing process takes at least 20 months to complete.

To apply for a license, a young person must be at least 16 years old and pass a vision test and a test of his/her knowledge of the rules of the road and traffic signs. After passing these tests, he/she will receive a Class G1 license and a driver information package for new drivers. He/she must pass two road tests to become fully licensed.

New drivers earn full driving privileges in two stages and have five years to complete the program (G1 or G2) and graduate to a full license (Class G).

### Class G1

New drivers of passenger vehicles learn to drive with six important conditions with a G1 license. A new driver must hold a G1 license for a minimum of 12 months before attempting the G1 road test. This time can be reduced to eight months if the new driver successfully completes an approved driver education course. Drivers earn a G2 license after successfully completing the G1 road test.

A G1 driver is required to:

- maintain a zero blood alcohol level while driving;
- be accompanied by a fully licensed driver, who has at least four years driving experience, and a blood alcohol level of less than .05 per cent, in case he/she needs to take over the wheel;
- ensure the accompanying driver is the only other person in the front seat;
- ensure the number of passengers in the vehicle are limited to the number of working seat belts;

- refrain from driving on Ontario's "400-series" highways or on high speed expressways such as the Queen Elizabeth Way, Don Valley Parkway, Gardiner Expressway, E.C. Row Expressway and the Conestoga Parkway;
- refrain from driving between midnight and 5:00 a.m.

**Note:** If the accompanying driver is a driving instructor licensed in Ontario, a G1 driver may drive on any road.

### Class G2

New drivers must hold a G2 licence for a minimum of 12 months before they can attempt the G2 road test. At this level, he/she has more privileges because of his/her driving experience. He/she may drive without an accompanying driver on all Ontario roads anytime. However, he/she is still required to:

- maintain a zero blood alcohol level while driving;
- ensure the number of passengers in the vehicle is limited to the number of working seat belts.

To further protect youth on Ontario roads, **effective September 1, 2005**: the number of young passengers that teen G2 drivers can carry will be limited from midnight to 5 a.m. as follows:

- Initially, G2 drivers 19 or under can carry only one passenger aged 19 or under.
- After the first six months, and until the G2 driver earns a full G licence or turns 20, they can carry only three passengers aged 19 or under.

The passenger restrictions do not apply if the G2 driver is operating a motor vehicle after 5 a.m. and before midnight.

These restrictions will not apply if the G2 driver is accompanied by a full "G" licensed driver (with at least four years driving experience) in the front seat, or if the passengers are immediate family members.

# **APPENDIX X**

# INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR TRANSPORTATION OF TCDSB STUDENTS

### **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR TRANSPORTATION OF STUDENTS**

### **TRANSPORTATION CONTRACTS**

It is recommended that transportation contracts with bus companies, and others, include an indemnity hold harmless clause to indemnify the TCDSB for any claims brought against them arising out of the operation of the vehicle. In addition, there should be a requirement for the contracting company to carry comprehensive general liability insurance (CGL) for claims that arise from injuries sustained, unrelated to the operation of the vehicle. For instance, dropping a child off at the wrong bus stop would be an example of a claim that would fall under a CGL insurance policy, and not the automobile liability coverage. There should be a requirement for the TCDSB to be named as an additional insured on the CGL Policy of the contractor.

### LIABILITY REQUIREMENTS

The Third Party Liability insurance limits for school buses are as follows:

SEATING	LIABILITY LIMITS
1 to 7	\$1,000,000
8 to 12	\$5,000,000
13 plus	\$8,000,000

Schools that use independent operators, other than those from the TCDSB approved list (Appendix VII), must ensure that these operators are carrying at least the minimum insurance limits.

### TEACHERS AND VOLUNTEERS

Teachers and volunteers must have \$1,000,000 liability limits in order to become volunteer drivers. (\$200,000 is the minimum required by law.)

### TAXIS

Taxis should carry the minimum limits, outlined above, based on seating capacity.